
Hermantown City Council Meeting – July 6, 2021 

Because of attendance considerations at the regular meeting location due to the 
health pandemic, Hermantown’s July 6, 2021, City Council Meeting will be conducted 
both remotely and with in-person access to Council Chambers.  

The City Council meeting will utilize the platform “Zoom,” which allows the public to 
view and/or hear the meeting from their phone or computer. Interested parties can 
also choose to attend the City Council Meeting in person at City Hall. Current 
Minnesota Department of Health guidelines regarding the health pandemic will be 
observed during this meeting. 

The 6:30 p.m. City Council Meeting will be available at: 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81434223227?pwd=ckQ5S3o4NUFiQk1BZTZ0UXMyTjdPZz09 

and/or by calling the number (312) 626-6799 and utilizing the meeting ID number of 
814-3422-3227 and the passcode of 529600.

Public comment may be possible, but difficult, during the meeting, but any public 
comments, questions, or concerns can be e-mailed to Community Engagement 
Manager, Joe Wicklund, at jwicklund@hermantownmn.com up to 3:30 p.m. the day of 
the meeting with the e-mail title “July 6, 2021, Meeting.” It is important to note that all 
comments regarding the July 6, 2021, meeting are public data.  

A few important tips regarding the Zoom platform: 

• If your computer does not support audio, you can still watch the meeting on
your computer and call in on your phone to hear the meeting

• It is a challenging situation for all of us, so grace and understanding are
appreciated

The 4:30 p.m. Pre-Agenda Meeting will be available in-person only at City Hall. Public 
comment is not a factor in the pre-agenda meeting, but the meeting is open and 
members of the public are invited and welcome to attend to this meeting. Attendees 
of the Pre-Agenda Meeting should expect to follow the current social distancing and 
mask guidelines. 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81434223227?pwd=ckQ5S3o4NUFiQk1BZTZ0UXMyTjdPZz09


This agenda has been prepared to provide information regarding an upcoming meeting of the Hermantown City Council. This document does not 
claim to be complete and is subject to change at any time. 

AGENDA 

Pre-Agenda Meeting Tuesday, July 6, 2021 at 4:30 p.m. 
Council Chambers 

City Hall - Hermantown Governmental Services Building 

Pre-agenda:  The Pre-agenda meeting is a work session between the City Council 
and City staff to review the upcoming City Council meeting and future meetings.  
The agenda is the same document as the upcoming City Council meeting, but does 
not follow the same format as the City Council meeting.  It is a time for the City 
Council and City staff to have discussions about the agenda items, and asking and 
answering questions.  Traditionally it is not a time for public comment on the 
agenda items, as the public can listen to the conversation and ask questions or 
provide input at the upcoming City Council meeting.   

City Council Meeting July 6, 2021 at 6:30 p.m. 
Council Chambers 

City Hall - Hermantown Governmental Services Building 

Invitation to participate: 
The Hermantown City Council welcomes your thoughts, input and opinions to this 
meeting. The agenda for this meeting contains a brief description of each item to 
be considered, and the City Council encourages your participation. If you wish to 
speak on an item contained in the agenda, you will be allowed to address the 
Council when a motion is on the floor. If you wish to speak on a matter that does 
not appear on the agenda, you may do so during the public comment period 
regularly scheduled and set for the beginning of the meeting.  

When addressing the City Council, please state your name and address for the 
record. Please address the City Council as a whole through the Mayor. Comments 
to individual Council Members or staff are not permitted. Speakers will be limited to 
three (3) minutes. 

Order of discussion 
1. Reading of the resolution title by Mayor
2. Motion/Second
3. Staff Explanation
4. Initial Discussion by City Council
5. Mayor invites public to speak to the motion (3 minute rule)
6. Follow up staff explanation and/or discussion by City Council
7. Call of the vote



This agenda has been prepared to provide information regarding an upcoming meeting of the Hermantown City Council. This document does not 
claim to be complete and is subject to change at any time. 

CITY OF HERMANTOWN 
AGENDA 

Pre-Agenda Meeting Tuesday, July 6, 2021 at 4:30 p.m. 
Council Chambers 

Hermantown Governmental Services Building 

City Council Meeting July 6, 2021 at 6:30 p.m. 
Council Chambers 

Hermantown Governmental Services Building 

1. CALL TO ORDER

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3. ROLL CALL

4. ANNOUNCEMENTS (Council Members may make announcements as needed.)

5. PUBLIC HEARING – (Only when necessary. The rule adopted three minutes per person if
necessary. Any action required after the public hearing will be taken immediately following the
closing of the public hearing.)

6. COMMUNICATIONS

A. 21-79 Residents
TO:  Eric Johnson, Comm. Dev. Dir. 
RE:  Petition to Stop Proposed Access Road for PUD by Zierden Construction 

B. 21-92 Janet & John Janson, 3743 Johnson Rd.
TO:  City Council 
RE:  Zierden Development 

C. 21-93 Residents from PZ Mtg (Zoom Chat)
TO:  City Council 
RE:  Zierden Development 

D. 21-94 St. Louis County Public Works Dept.
TO:  Residents/Property Owners 
RE:  Resurfacing on Morris Thomas Rd. 

E. 21-100 Jim Crace, Chief of Police
TO: Eric Johnson, Comm. Dev. Dir. 
RE:  Keene Creek Trail Subdivision – Road Access 

F. 21-101 St. Louis County
TO:  Jim Crace, Chief of Police 
RE:  Thank you 



G. 21-102 James & Bonnie Langdon, 3733 Johnson Rd.
TO:  Mayor & City Council 
RE:  Carlson Road Extension 

H. 21-103 Jake Perry, 3779 Johnson Rd.
TO:  Mayor & City Council 
RE:  Carlson Road Extension 

I. 21-104 Gerald Marceski, 3739 Johnson Rd.
TO:  Mayor & City Council 
RE:  Carlson Road Extension 

J. 21-105 Jason Christoff, 3760 Alexander Rd.
TO:  Mayor & City Council 
RE:  Carlson Road Extension 

K. 21-106 Bart Smith, 3761 Johnson Rd.
TO:  Mayor & City Council 
RE:  Carlson Road Extension 

7. PRESENTATIONS (Department Heads may give reports if necessary.)

A. Kevin Orme, Director of Finance & Administration (Pre-Agenda Only)
RE:   Capital Improvement Plan

B. Eric Johnson, Community Development Director (Pre-Agenda Only)
RE:   PUD Discussion

8. PUBLIC DISCUSSION (This is the time for individuals to address the Council about any item
not on the agenda. The time limit is three minutes per person.)

9. CONSENT AGENDA (All items on the Consent Agenda are items which are considered routine
by the City Council and will be approved by one motion via voice vote. There will be no
discussion of these items unless a Council Member or citizen so requests, in which event the item
will be removed from the Consent Agenda and considered at the end of the Consent Agenda.)

A. Minutes - Approval or correction of June 21, 2021 City Council Continuation Minutes

B. Accounts Payable – Approve general city warrants from June 16, 2021 through June 30,
2021 in the amount of $454,214.81

(motion, roll call) 

10. MOTIONS

11. ORDINANCES

12. RESOLUTIONS (Roll call will be taken only on items required by law and items requiring 4/5’s
votes, all others can be done by voice vote.)

A. 2021-76 Resolution Consenting To An Assignment Of The Special Use Permit Granted 
To David Kolquist And Amending Resolution No. 2005-95 



(motion, roll call) 

B. 2021-77 Resolution Authorizing And Directing The Mayor And City Clerk To Execute 
And Deliver Development Agreement With Shaine W. Stokke 

(motion, roll call) 

C. 2021-78 Resolution Approving Preliminary Planned Unit Development For The Keene 
Creek Trail Subdivision Development 

(motion, roll call) 

D. 2021-79 Resolution Approving Preliminary Plat Of Keene Creek Trail Subdivision And 
Imposing Conditions On Submittal Of The Final Plat 

(motion, roll call) 

E. 2021-80 Resolution Approving Pay Request Number 3 For Road Improvement District 
No. 537 (Lavaque Junction Road) To Ulland Brothers, Inc. In The Amount Of 
$275,049.98 

(motion, roll call) 

F. 2021-81 Resolution Approving Final Pay Request For Old Hwy 2 To Sinnott Contracting, 
LLC In The Amount Of $15,700.25  

(motion, roll call) 

Resolution Approving Change Order Number 1 For Keene Creek Park Trail G. 2021-82

(motion, roll call)

H. 2021-83 Resolution Approving Pay Request Number 12 For Sewer Improvement District 
No. 48 To Utility Systems Of America, Inc. In The Amount Of $278,948.17 

(motion, roll call) 

13. RECESS



DATE:  2021 
 
TO:   City Council Members 
 
FROM:  John Mulder, City Administrator 
 
RE:   Correspondence 
 
In your packet is a correspondence summary log.  
This briefly summarizes and assigns a log number 
for written correspondence received at City Hall.  
You are provided with the summary so that you may 
request a full copy of any correspondence article of 
interest to you.  Bonnie & I have copied only the 
correspondence that we believe to be of special 
interest. 
 
JM 



6/4/2021 21-79 Residents of 
Okerstrom, Johnson & 
N Morris Thomas 
Roads 

Eric Johnson, Comm. 
Dev. Dir. 

Petition to Stop 
Proposed Access 
Road for PUD by 
Zierden Construction 

6/4/2021 

      
6/11/2021 21-80 Mike Marshall, Chief 

HVFD 
City Council HVFD Budget 

Submittal for 2021 
6/26/2021 

      
6/11/2021 21-81 Amy Hadiaris, MN 

Pollution Control 
Agency 

Alyssa Boock, MNDOT MNDOT Truck Station, 
5506 Highway 194 

6/4/2021 

      
6/11/2021 21-82 Jacob Smokovitz, MN 

Pollution Control 
Agency 

Alyssa Boock,  MNDOT Truck Station, 
5506 Highway 194 

6/9/2021 

      
6/16/2021 21-83 Eric Johnson, Comm. 

Dev. Dir. 
Planning Commission SUP, Ben Tessier, 

543X Arrowhead Rd. 
6/15/2021 

      
6/16/2021 21-84 Eric Johnson, Comm. 

Dev. Dir. 
Planning Commission Preliminary PUD, Jay 

Zierden, Okerstrom & 
Morris Thomas Rds. 

6/15/2021 

      
6/16/2021 21-85 Eric Johnson, Comm. 

Dev. Dir. 
Planning Commission PreliminaryPlat, Jay 

Zierden, Okerstrom & 
Morris Thomas Rds. 

6/15/2021 

      
6/16/2021 21-86 Eric Johnson, Comm. 

Dev. Dir. 
Planning Commission ARDC PUD Study 6/15/2021 

      
6/16/2021 21-87 Eric Johnson, Comm. 

Dev. Dir. 
Park Board HYSA Shed Proposal 

at Stebner Park 
6/7/2021 

      
6/16/2021 21-88 Eric Johnson, Comm. 

Dev. Dir. 
Park Board Park Repair Update 6/15/2021 

      
6/16/2021 21-89 Eric Johnson, Comm. 

Dev. Dir. 
Park Board Park Dedication Funds 6/4/2021 

      
6/17/2021 21-90 Jodi Nash, MN Power City of Hermantown 5/26/2021 Damage 

Claim #20213471 
6/16/2021 

      
6/21/2021 21-91 League of Minnesota 

Cities 
City of Hermantown Membership Dues 6/11/2021 

      



6/21/2021 21-92 Janet & John Janson, 
3743 Johnson Rd. 

City Council Zierden Development  6/14/2021 

      
6/21/2021 21-93 Residents City Council Zierden Development 6/15/2021 

      
6/21/2021 21-94 Steve Krasaway, St. 

Louis County Public 
Works Dept. 

City of Hermantown Resurfacing on Morris 
Thomas Rd. 

6/15/2021 

      
6/21/2021 21-95 Mary Robison, MN 

Dept. of Natural 
Resources 

City of Hermantown Potential Temp. 
Suspension of State 
Contract Performance 

6/17/2021 

      
6/21/2021 21-96 Corey Larson, 

Northern EMS 
Specialists 

Mayor Wayne Boucher 
& Councilor John 
Geissler 

Hermantown Fire Dept. 
and the Future 

6/17/2021 

      
6/24/2021 21-97 Kathy Nelson, 3677 

Patriot Dr. 
Mayor Wayne Boucher Morris Thomas Road 

Upgrades 
6/22/2021 

      
6/24/2021 21-98 MN Power Real 

Estate Services 
HEDA 495-0092-00160 - Line 

Survey Work 
6/23/2021 

      
6/29/2021 21-99 Brennen Duffield, 

B&A Property 
Maintenance 

City of Hermantown Walmart Pollinator 
Gardens 

6/29/2021 

      
6/29/2021 21-100 Jim Crace, Police 

Chief 
Eric Johnson, Comm. 
Dev. Dir. 

Keene Creek Trail 
Subdivision - Road 
Access 

6/28/2021 

      
6/29/2021 21-101 Kevin Gray & Amy 

Westbrook, St. Louis 
County 

Jim Crace, Police Chief COVID Testing Site 6/21/2021 

      
6/29/2021 21-102 James & Bonnie 

Langdon, 3733 
Johnson Rd. 

Wayne Boucher, Mayor Carlson Road 
Extension 

6/29/2021 

      
6/30/2021 21-103 Jake Perry, 37779 

Johnson Rd. 
Wayne Boucher, Mayor 
& City Council 

Carlson Road 
Extension 

6/29/2021 

      
6/30/2021 21-104 Gerald Marceski, 

3739 Johnson Rd. 
Wayne Boucher, Mayor Carlson Road 

Extension 
6/29/2021 

      



6/30/2021 21-105 Jason Christoff, 3760 
Alexander Rd. 

Wayne Boucher, Mayor 
& City Council 

Carlson Road 
Extension 

6/30/2021 

      
7/2/2021 21-106 Lisa & Bart Smith, 

3761 Johnson Rd. 
Wayne Boucher, Mayor 
& City Council 

Carlson Road 
Extension 

6/30/2021 

      
 























SairT Louis County
Administration . 100 North Fifth Avenue West, Room 202 . Duluth, MN 55802

Phone: (218) 726-2448 . Fax: (218) 726-2469 . www.stlouiscountymn.gov

Kevin Z. Gray
County Administrator

Jrne2l,202l

City of Hermantown
Attn: Chief Jim Crace
Via electronic mail

Dear Chief Crace,

We're reaching out to express our sincerest appreciation for allowing St. Louis County Public Health
to utilize the Hermantown Police Department to host a COVID testing site.

Testing has been a key public health intervention in responding to the pandemic, and protecting
Public Safety was critical to maintaining community infrastructure. We could not have reached
public safety partners without your generous suppofi.

The partnerships that have been formed in response to the pandemic truly reinforce that we are all
stronger when we work together. We are grateful for all you've done (and continue to do) in support
of the COVID-l9 pandemic response.

Appreciatively,

fi-- fiil-I
Kevin Gray
County Administrator

Amy Westbrook
Public Health Division Director

"An Equal Opportunity Employef'

21-101

























21-105













City Council Agenda Report Presentation   
July 6, 2021 Agenda Item: 7-A 

TO: Mayor & City Council 

FROM: Kevin Orme, Director of 
Finance & Administration 

DATE: June 23, 2021 Meeting Date:  7/6/21 

SUBJECT: Capital Improvement Plan Agenda Item: 7-A Presentation 

REQUESTED ACTION 
No formal action – but looking for some direction from the Council 

BACKGROUND 
Attached is the 2022-2026 preliminary Capital Improvement Plan. We request your input on the 2022 
requests. Please keep in mind the final decision on the 2022 budget is several months away.  

SOURCE OF FUNDS (if applicable) 
N/A 

ATTACHMENTS 
Capital Improvement Plan 2022-2026 



Capital  Improvement Plan

City of Hermantown, Minnesota

PROJECTS BY FUNDING SOURCE

2022 2026thru

TotalSource Project # Priority 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026

Assessment

ST-22-003 165,750165,750Lighning Dr and Thunder Chief and Getchell 1

ST-23-001 331,500331,500Old Midway 2

ST-23-002 429,000429,000Hermantown Rd - Midway to Ugstad 2

ST-23-003 204,750204,750Hermantown Rd - Hwy 2 Midway 2

ST-24-001 331,500331,500Thompson Rd 2

ST-24-002 87,75087,750Westwood Rd 2

ST-24-004 156,000156,000Lindahl Rd 1

ST-25-001 156,000156,000Birch Valley Rd 2

ST-25-002 195,000195,000Getchell Road 2

ST-26-001 480,000480,000Getchell Rd Steb-Morris Thomas 2

2,537,250165,750 965,250 156,000 195,000 1,055,250Assessment Total

Bonds General Fund

Chip Sealing 333,500153,500 180,000Chip Seal Projects 1

ST-22-001 655,459655,459Lindgren and Richard Ave 2

ST-22-003 1,512,2661,512,266Lighning Dr and Thunder Chief and Getchell 1

ST-23-001 449,834449,834Old Midway 2

ST-23-002 1,152,6491,152,649Hermantown Rd - Midway to Ugstad 2

ST-23-003 633,524633,524Hermantown Rd - Hwy 2 Midway 2

ST-24-001 194,236194,236Thompson Rd 2

ST-24-002 134,642134,642Westwood Rd 2

ST-24-004 94,00094,000Lindahl Rd 1

ST-25-001 288,785288,785Birch Valley Rd 2

ST-25-002 1,585,2091,585,209Getchell Road 2

ST-26-001 834,310834,310Getchell Rd Steb-Morris Thomas 2

7,868,4142,321,225 2,236,007 94,000 1,585,209 1,631,973Bonds General Fund Total

General Fund

CH-22-004 50,00025,000 25,000Server 2

PD-23-001 137,000137,000ARMER Radio Replacement 1

PD-24-001 130,000130,000Squad/Body Worn Cameras 1

PD-24-002 20,00020,000Video Server 2

PD-Squads 575,000115,000 115,000 115,000 115,000 115,000Squads 1

PW&U-21-002 304,85060,970 60,970 60,970 60,970 60,970Motor Grader LEASE 1

PW&U-22-001 310,000150,000 160,000Tandem Plow Truck 1

PW&U-22-003 37,50037,5001 Ton Truck 1

PW&U-22-007 45,00045,000Seal Coat/Stripe Fichtner Fields Parking Lots 1

PW&U-23-001 45,00045,0001 Ton Dirt Service Truck 1

PW&U-23-003 26,25026,250Steamer Tralier 1

PW&U-23-004 58,11858,118Hotmix/Pothole Trailer 1

PW&U-23-006 37,50037,5001 Ton Ext Cab Truck 1

PW&U-24-001 48,75048,750Tracked Skidsteer 2

Friday, June 11, 2021Page 1Produced Using the Plan-It Capital Planning Software



TotalSource Project # Priority 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026

PW&U-24-002 80,00080,000Replacement of existing 12' Mower 2

PW&U-24-004 62,50062,500Purchase of a water truck 1

PW&U-25-001 275,000275,000Tandem Plow Truck 1

PW&U-25-002 175,000175,000Add New 624 loader to Fleet 1

PW&U-26-001 100,000100,000Rubber Tire Loader 1

2,517,468388,470 580,470 562,220 625,970 360,338General Fund Total

HEDA

CD-23-001 125,000125,000Hermantown Marketplace Sign 2

125,000125,000HEDA Total

Park Dedication Fund

PK-19-001 700,000700,000Fichtner Fields Restructure 2

700,000700,000Park Dedication Fund Total

Sales Tax

PW&U-22-002 505,425505,425Repairs and Recoat of Hwy 53 Water Tower 1

PW&U-22-005 650,000325,000 325,000Water Meter Radio Conversion to AMI 1

ST-22-001 200,000200,000Lindgren and Richard Ave 2

1,355,4251,030,425 325,000Sales Tax Total

Sewer Fund

PW&U-22-003 17,50017,5001 Ton Truck 1

PW&U-23-001 22,50022,5001 Ton Dirt Service Truck 1

PW&U-23-006 17,50017,5001 Ton Ext Cab Truck 1

PW&U-24-001 24,37524,375Tracked Skidsteer 2

PW&U-25-002 50,00050,000Add New 624 loader to Fleet 1

ST-26-001 250,000250,000Getchell Rd Steb-Morris Thomas 2

SW-17-1 160,00040,000 40,000 40,000 40,000Lift Stations 2

541,87557,500 80,000 64,375 90,000 250,000Sewer Fund Total

State Aid - MSA

Chip Sealing 455,50095,500 180,000 180,000Chip Seal Projects 1

ST-22-002 3,780,0003,780,000Ugstad Super Project 2

ST-24-003 1,250,0001,250,000Stebner- Morris Thomas to Maple Grove 1

5,485,5003,875,500 180,000 1,250,000 180,000State Aid - MSA Total

Storm Water

PW&U-23-003 26,25026,250Steamer Tralier 1

PW&U-24-001 24,37524,375Tracked Skidsteer 2

PW&U-24-004 62,50062,500Purchase of a water truck 1

ST-22-001 285,153285,153Lindgren and Richard Ave 2

ST-22-003 186,446186,446Lighning Dr and Thunder Chief and Getchell 1

ST-23-004 100,000100,000Hermantown Road Bridge 2

ST-25-002 197,801197,801Getchell Road 2

ST-26-001 75,00075,000Getchell Rd Steb-Morris Thomas 2

Friday, June 11, 2021Page 2Produced Using the Plan-It Capital Planning Software



TotalSource Project # Priority 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026

957,525471,599 100,000 86,875 197,801 101,250Storm Water Total

Water Fund

PW&U-22-003 17,50017,5001 Ton Truck 1

PW&U-23-001 22,50022,5001 Ton Dirt Service Truck 1

PW&U-23-006 17,50017,5001 Ton Ext Cab Truck 1

PW&U-25-002 50,00050,000Add New 624 loader to Fleet 1

PW&U-26-001 70,00070,000Rubber Tire Loader 1

ST-26-001 250,000250,000Getchell Rd Steb-Morris Thomas 2

427,50017,500 40,000 50,000 320,000Water Fund Total

22,515,9578,327,969 4,631,727 2,213,470 2,923,980 4,418,811GRAND TOTAL

Friday, June 11, 2021Page 3Produced Using the Plan-It Capital Planning Software



Capital  Improvement Plan

City of Hermantown, Minnesota

PROJECTS & FUNDING SOURCES BY DEPARTMENT

2022 2026thru

         Total2022 2023 2024 2025 2026Department Project # Priority

City Hall

CH-22-004 50,00025,000 25,000Server 2

General Fund 25,000 25,000 50,000

50,00025,000 25,000City Hall Total

Community Development

CD-23-001 125,000125,000Hermantown Marketplace Sign 2

HEDA 125,000 125,000

PK-19-001 700,000700,000Fichtner Fields Restructure 2

Park Dedication Fund 700,000 700,000

825,000125,000 700,000Community Development Total

Police

PD-23-001 137,000137,000ARMER Radio Replacement 1

General Fund 137,000 137,000

PD-24-001 130,000130,000Squad/Body Worn Cameras 1

General Fund 130,000 130,000

PD-24-002 20,00020,000Video Server 2

General Fund 20,000 20,000

PD-Squads 575,000115,000 115,000 115,000 115,000 115,000Squads 1

General Fund 115,000 115,000 115,000 115,000 115,000 575,000

862,000115,000 252,000 265,000 115,000 115,000Police Total

Public Works

PW&U-21-002 304,85060,970 60,970 60,970 60,970 60,970Motor Grader LEASE 1

General Fund 60,970 60,970 60,970 60,970 60,970 304,850

PW&U-22-001 310,000150,000 160,000Tandem Plow Truck 1

General Fund 150,000 160,000 310,000

PW&U-22-002 505,425505,425Repairs and Recoat of Hwy 53 Water Tower 1

Sales Tax 505,425 505,425

PW&U-22-003 72,50072,5001 Ton Truck 1

General Fund 37,500 37,500

Sewer Fund 17,500 17,500

Water Fund 17,500 17,500

PW&U-22-005 650,000325,000 325,000Water Meter Radio Conversion to AMI 1

Sales Tax 325,000 325,000 650,000

PW&U-22-007 45,00045,000Seal Coat/Stripe Fichtner Fields Parking Lots 1

General Fund 45,000 45,000

PW&U-23-001 90,00090,0001 Ton Dirt Service Truck 1

General Fund 45,000 45,000

Sewer Fund 22,500 22,500

Water Fund 22,500 22,500

Friday, June 11, 2021Page 1Produced Using the Plan-It Capital Planning Software



         Total2022 2023 2024 2025 2026Department Project # Priority

PW&U-23-003 52,50052,500Steamer Tralier 1

General Fund 26,250 26,250

Storm Water 26,250 26,250

PW&U-23-004 58,11858,118Hotmix/Pothole Trailer 1

General Fund 58,118 58,118

PW&U-23-006 72,50072,5001 Ton Ext Cab Truck 1

General Fund 37,500 37,500

Sewer Fund 17,500 17,500

Water Fund 17,500 17,500

PW&U-24-001 97,50097,500Tracked Skidsteer 2

General Fund 48,750 48,750

Sewer Fund 24,375 24,375

Storm Water 24,375 24,375

PW&U-24-002 80,00080,000Replacement of existing 12' Mower 2

General Fund 80,000 80,000

PW&U-24-004 125,000125,000Purchase of a water truck 1

General Fund 62,500 62,500

Storm Water 62,500 62,500

PW&U-25-001 275,000275,000Tandem Plow Truck 1

General Fund 275,000 275,000

PW&U-25-002 275,000275,000Add New 624 loader to Fleet 1

General Fund 175,000 175,000

Sewer Fund 50,000 50,000

Water Fund 50,000 50,000

PW&U-26-001 170,000170,000Rubber Tire Loader 1

General Fund 100,000 100,000

Water Fund 70,000 70,000

SW-17-1 160,00040,000 40,000 40,000 40,000Lift Stations 2

Sewer Fund 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 160,000

3,343,3931,153,895 748,470 448,470 650,970 341,588Public Works Total

Streets

Chip Sealing 789,000249,000 180,000 180,000 180,000Chip Seal Projects 1

Bonds General Fund 153,500 180,000 333,500

State Aid - MSA 95,500 180,000 180,000 455,500

ST-22-001 1,140,6121,140,612Lindgren and Richard Ave 2

Bonds General Fund 655,459 655,459

Sales Tax 200,000 200,000

Storm Water 285,153 285,153

ST-22-002 3,780,0003,780,000Ugstad Super Project 2

State Aid - MSA 3,780,000 3,780,000

ST-22-003 1,864,4621,864,462Lighning Dr and Thunder Chief and Getchell 1

Assessment 165,750 165,750

Bonds General Fund 1,512,266 1,512,266

Storm Water 186,446 186,446

ST-23-001 781,334781,334Old Midway 2

Assessment 331,500 331,500

Bonds General Fund 449,834 449,834

ST-23-002 1,581,6491,581,649Hermantown Rd - Midway to Ugstad 2

Assessment 429,000 429,000

Bonds General Fund 1,152,649 1,152,649

ST-23-003 838,274838,274Hermantown Rd - Hwy 2 Midway 2

Assessment 204,750 204,750

Bonds General Fund 633,524 633,524

ST-23-004 100,000100,000Hermantown Road Bridge 2

Storm Water 100,000 100,000

Friday, June 11, 2021Page 2Produced Using the Plan-It Capital Planning Software



         Total2022 2023 2024 2025 2026Department Project # Priority

ST-24-001 525,736525,736Thompson Rd 2

Assessment 331,500 331,500

Bonds General Fund 194,236 194,236

ST-24-002 222,392222,392Westwood Rd 2

Assessment 87,750 87,750

Bonds General Fund 134,642 134,642

ST-24-003 1,250,0001,250,000Stebner- Morris Thomas to Maple Grove 1

State Aid - MSA 1,250,000 1,250,000

ST-24-004 250,000250,000Lindahl Rd 1

Assessment 156,000 156,000

Bonds General Fund 94,000 94,000

ST-25-001 444,785444,785Birch Valley Rd 2

Assessment 156,000 156,000

Bonds General Fund 288,785 288,785

ST-25-002 1,978,0101,978,010Getchell Road 2

Assessment 195,000 195,000

Bonds General Fund 1,585,209 1,585,209

Storm Water 197,801 197,801

ST-26-001 1,889,3101,889,310Getchell Rd Steb-Morris Thomas 2

Assessment 480,000 480,000

Bonds General Fund 834,310 834,310

Sewer Fund 250,000 250,000

Storm Water 75,000 75,000

Water Fund 250,000 250,000

17,435,5647,034,074 3,481,257 1,500,000 2,158,010 3,262,223Streets Total

GRAND TOTAL 22,515,9578,327,969 4,631,727 2,213,470 2,923,980 4,418,811

Friday, June 11, 2021Page 3Produced Using the Plan-It Capital Planning Software



City Council Agenda Report                                                                                          Presentation                                               
July 6, 2021                                                                                                                      Agenda Item: 7-B 
 

Working together to serve and build our community. 

TO: Mayor & City Council 
 

 
FROM:  Eric Johnson, Community 

Development Director 

DATE: June 30, 2021 Meeting Date:  7/6/21 
 

SUBJECT: ARDC Presentation – PUD 
Study   

Agenda Item: 7-B Presentation 

 
REQUESTED ACTION 
Provide comment to the ARDC based on their presentation for the PUD Study associated 
with the PUD Moratorium. 

 
DESCRIPTION OF REQUEST: 
The PUD study was presented to the City Council at the June 21, 2021 pre agenda meeting.  
Questions regarding how and when density would be established during the process were raised 
in order to achieve moderate density for proposed projects. 

 
The ARDC has updated the study to include an executive summary as well as added language 
pertaining to the establishment of density in the recommendations section of the report. 

 
The density bonus is dependent on-site specific review as to how the proposed project relates to 
its surroundings (proximity of residences, topography, wetlands, access) and the amount and 
quality of amenities and mitigating factors provided. The density will be set at the pre-
application meeting between City staff and the applicant.  Once the density is established, it 
cannot increase. 

 
Process: 

1. Utilize PUD Study to revise existing PUD Ordinance 
2. Bring revised Ordinance to July 20 Planning and Zoning meeting for review 
3. Bring revised Ordinance to City Council for 1st reading on August 2, 2021 
4. Bring revised Ordinance to City Council for 2nd reading on August 16, 2021 

ATTACHMENTS: 
July 6, 2021 Hermantown PUD Report  

 
 



 

   

Residential Planned Unit 
Development Report  
COUNCIL REVIEW 07-06-21 

CITY OF HERMANTOWN, MINNESOTA 

June 2021 



 
 

  

This page is intentionally left blank. 



 
 

Contents 
Introduction ......................................................................................................................................... 1 

Planning Context ................................................................................................................................ 4 

Recommendations ............................................................................................................................. 7 

Appendix ............................................................................................................................................ 14 

 

 

 

Hermantown Planning Commission 
 

Joe Peterson (Chair) 
Corey Kolquist 

Valerie Ouellette 
Sam Clark 

Shannon Sweeney Jorgenson 
Beth Wentzlaff 

Buckley Simmons 
John Geissler (City Council Liaison) 

 

This report was prepared by ARDC Planning, a division of Arrowhead Regional 
Development Commission (ARDC), a regional planning and development agency 

serving the counties of Aitkin, Carlton, Cook, Itasca, Koochiching, Lake and St. Louis in 
Northeast Minnesota. ARDC Planning serves as a regional and community planning 
consultant working to further northeast Minnesota as a great place to live, work, play, 

and learn. Learn more at www.ardcplanning.org 

Prepared by Justin Otsea and Josh Bergstad 

 

  

http://www.ardcplanning.org/


  

This page is intentionally left blank. 



 
Residential PUD Report  Page 1  

Executive Summary 
This report is prepared for the City of Hermantown, Minnesota to provide 
recommendations to amend the Planned Unit Development Ordinance to address issues 
present by PUDs in the R-3 zoning district. 

The City Council passed a six-month partial moratorium on PUDs on December 2020. 
City staff conducted a survey of preselected stakeholders to understand the range of 
views on the use of PUD and provided those findings to ARDC Planning. ARDC Planning 
conducted a best practice review of literature and peer communities, evaluated 
Hermantown’s PUD ordinance and Comprehensive Plan (as it relates to use of PUD). 
ARDC Planning met with the Planning and Zoning Commission in the development of this 
report. 

The ordinance and literature review found a wide variation amongst use and regulations 
in PUD ordinances. Every ordinance reviewed had a focus on “encouraging a variety of 
housing and neighborhoods” and “efficient services and utilities”. Allowing uses not 
allowed in the underlying zoning district is allowed in eight of the ten reviewed cities. In 
six of the ten cities the use allowance was specifically to allow for any type of housing. 

There are six areas of focus identified for improving the residential PUD standards.  

• Rewrite and combine purpose and public benefit statements to focus on flexibility 
and site-based design, conservation of natural features and resources, efficiency 
in streets and utilities, improved housing and neighborhood options, and housing 
affordability. 

• Establish a density bonus with a goal of achieving a moderate suburban density in 
the R-3 zone. The density bonus is dependent on-site specific review and the 
amount and quality of amenities and mitigating factors provided. The density will 
be set at the pre-application meeting. 

• City can alter, improve, or create anew any provisions of the Hermantown Zoning 
Regulations or Subdivision Regulations as they apply to the proposed PUD. 
Alterations are evaluated site-by-site. Maximum height increase is 25 percent. 

• All PUDs over 4 units/acre shall provide additional amenities that correlate with the 
size, density, land use type, and help integrate the PUD into the community. A list 
of possible amenities is provided. 

• PUD will be reviewed for their impact upon existing public facilities including streets 
and roads, city water and sanitary sewer utilities, stormwater utility, police and fire 
services, parks and recreation facilities, and the Hermantown School District. 

• Amend the application process including requiring a preliminary and final PUD 
process for projects over 4 units per acre or five acres in size and encouraging the 
applicant to hold a neighborhood meeting. 



 
Residential PUD Report  Page 2  

Introduction  
On December 21, 2020, the Hermantown City Council passed a six-month partial 
moratorium on applications for planned unit development (PUD) in the R-3 zone and 
directed city staff and the Planning and Zoning Commission to study the issues presented 
by PUDs in the R-3 zone district and provide their report and recommendations to the 
City Council. 

Shortly after the moratorium passed, the City accepted a proposal from ARDC Planning 
to review of the City of Hermantown’s use of PUD to help the City decide the parameters 
on how and when to use PUD in residential settings to help achieve community 
development goals. 

City staff conducted a survey of preselected stakeholders to understand the range of 
views on the use of PUD and provided those findings to ARDC Planning. 

ARDC Planning conducted a best practice review of literature and peer communities, 
evaluated Hermantown’s PUD ordinance and Comprehensive Plan (as it relates to use 
of PUD). ARDC Planning met with the Planning and Zoning Commission five times in the 
first half of 2021 to review and discuss issue. 

The following report outlines the process utilized for the study, provides recommendations 
and model language for adjustments to the ordinance along with underlying research and 
conceptual information supporting the changes recommended. 

A summarized timeline of the meeting process with the Planning Commission has been 
listed below: 

• March 16, 2021: Introduction to PUD’s overview of ordinance review matrices and 
comprehensive plan analysis. 
 

• April 6th, 2021: Work session to further discuss PUD needs for community and 
areas of concern/opportunity from Commission members. 
 

• April 20th, 2021:  Focused discussion on issues and opportunities for PUD’s 
identified during previous discussion. 
 

• May 18th, 2021: Outline planning concepts and garner feedback on identified topic 
areas/questions. 
 

• June 15th, 2021: Review final report and recommendations and garner feedback 
prior to finalizing report. The Planning and Zoning Commission voted to 
recommend the report to the City Council. 
 

• June 21st, 2021: Present final report and recommendations to City Council. 



 
Residential PUD Report  Page 3  

What is a Planned Unit Development (PUD)? 

A PUD is both a type of development and a regulatory process. Individual definitions can 
vary greatly depending on the community or jurisdiction and its goals. The purpose of a 
PUD is generally to allow greater flexibility in the configuration of buildings and/or uses 
on a site than is allowed in standard zoning ordinances. A major goal of PUDs is often to 
encourage unified plans that provide a more complete and integrated package (hopefully 
including special amenities) over piecemeal development. A typical PUD would include a 
cluster of small lots in conjunction with a common usable open space with some 
recreational amenities and a protected natural area functioning as permanent open 
space. This arrangement can benefit both sides: A developer gets extra flexibility in 
configuring lots and buildings and perhaps a density bonus and/or reduced infrastructure 
cost, while the city/county gets permanent open space and/or other desired amenities. 

The most common PUD applications occur in suburban cities and rural county areas. 
Flexibility is the key principle for applications in both types of areas. The protection of 
critical areas is a common theme of many city PUDs. The protection of larger tracts of 
open space is a common theme for rural PUDs. Flexibility in clustering small lots in rural 
areas, however, is more challenging in Washington State under Growth Management Act 
provisions. Planned unit developments can range in size from large master planned 
communities to 1–2-acre projects containing a handful of lots. (MRSC.org)  



 
Residential PUD Report  Page 4  

Planning Context 
The following section outlines the planning process undertaken by ARDC with support of 
City of Hermantown Staff and Planning Commission to further understanding on 
Residential Planned Unit Development needs for the community: 

Survey 

City staff conducted a survey in early 2021 of 56 community development stakeholders 
about housing issues and use of PUD in the city.  The survey received 45 responses for 
an 80 percent response rate. The survey went out to City Council members, Planning and 
Zoning Commission members, City staff, local realtors and developers and Hermantown 
residents. 37.5 percent of the survey group was comprised of Hermantown residents not 
counting Councilors, P&Z members, or City staff. City staff led a review of the responses 
with the Planning and Zoning Commission. The responses were used to inform a 
discussion with ARDC Planning.  The responses show that nearly all respondents were 
familiar with the concept of PUD. Most respondents were concerned about a lack of 
variety of housing options and costs. A majority were also open to a variety new types of 
housing in the R-3 to address a housing shortage if the new developments were evaluated 
and regulated to mitigate negative impacts. The survey results are included the appendix 
of this report. 

Ordinance Review 

ARDC Planning reviewed Hermantown’s PUD ordinance and compared it to ordinances 
from ten other Minnesota cities and a model PUD ordinance developed for Minnesota 
cities on behalf of the Minnesota Environmental Quality Board and Minnesota Pollution 
Control Agency. 

The communities reviewed were Cambridge, Duluth, East Grand Forks, Golden Valley, 
Grand Rapids, Hopkins, Mankato, Oakdale, Sartell, and Sauk Rapids. These 
communities were chosen for a variety of factors including being a similar size, type of 
community, and proximity. 

ARDC Planning compiled two matrices. One matrix reviewed the purpose statements of 
each ordinance to help determine the scope of use of PUD in other communities. The 
second matrix reviewed the regulatory approach of each ordinance to help address 
common approaches and best practices for Hermantown model. 

Key observations from the two review matrices include: 

1. Every city reviewed had a PUD ordinance. 
2. The purpose statement for every PUD ordinance included some version of 

“encouraging a variety of housing and neighborhoods” and “efficient services and 
utilities”. Other purposes varied. 



 
Residential PUD Report  Page 5  

3. The content of the ordinances varied greatly with differing degrees of variations 
allowed, specificity of standards, and process. 

4. The use of PUD must be consistent with the Comprehensive Plan. 
5. Allowing uses not allowed in the underlying zoning district is allowed in eight of the 

ten reviewed cities. 
6. In six of the ten cities the use allowance was specifically to allow for any type of 

housing. 
 
Comprehensive Plan Review 

The Hermantown PUD ordinance currently states that a PUD must be consistent with 
Comprehensive Plan.  This consistency requirement is also present in all the other 
community’s ordinances and literature addressing use of PUD. ARDC Planning reviewed 
the City’s Comprehensive Plan to determine how to use PUD to achieve the plan’s goals. 

The Hermantown Comprehensive Plan was adopted in 2001 with a vision to guide 
development in the city for 20 years. The plan correctly envisioned a community that 
would grow to over 10,000 residents as people continue to be attracted to Hermantown. 
The plan acknowledges that growth will create tensions with existing development and 
offers guidance on how to balance the opportunities and challenges that come with 
growth and protect the qualities that make Hermantown an attractive place to live and do 
business. 

The plan does not fully recognize the rise of two challenges facing Hermantown and other 
communities: increasing housing and infrastructure and services costs. New housing and 
neighborhood types, including multi-family housing, are included in the Comprehensive 
Plan as an important part of the city’s housing supply in the Hermantown of 2020. 

Planned Unit Development is a tool that the City can use to achieve the vision and goals 
of the Comprehensive Plan by thoughtfully integrating new and different housing types 
into the city. 

The Comprehensive Plan does not, for the most part, address zoning districts and uses 
within individual districts. The Comprehensive Plan addresses general land use concepts. 
The locations of the land use concepts are illustrated in map form (see appendix). 

Concept Area 1 is designated for suburban development and phased residential 
development. It overlaps with most of the area within the urban services boundary and 
the R-3 zoning district. Based on ARDC Planning’s reading of the Comprehensive Plan it 
is our conclusion that multi-family development can be integrated anywhere within 
Concept Area 1 if it follows the guidelines set in the Comprehensive Plan. 

The Comprehensive Plan is intended to provide a decision-making guide for City Councils 
and Planning Commissions in the process of reviewing and approving development in the 
community. Elements of the vision, concepts, goals and policies, and growth 
management program provide on how to integrate different types of housing throughout 
the community. Focus is on achieving a moderate suburban density, preserving critical 



 
Residential PUD Report  Page 6  

natural features and established neighborhoods, and maintaining adequate public 
facilities. A list of relevant items from Comprehensive Plan is included in the appendix. 

Best Practices Review 

ARDC Planning collected and reviewed 15 published materials on use of PUD and other 
concepts that were discussed during the project. Sources include the American Planning 
Association, State of Minnesota, State of Washington, Southeast Wisconsin Regional 
Planning Commission, University of Montana, and Center for Land Use Education. These 
materials were used to provide information to the Planning and Zoning Commission for 
discussion and to inform this report’s recommendations. 

 

 

 

 

  



 
Residential PUD Report  Page 7  

Recommendations 
There were six areas of focus identified with city staff and the Planning and Zoning 
Commission for improving the residential PUD standards in the City of Hermantown. The 
areas include purpose/public benefit statements, density bonus, adjustments to 
standards, amenities, adequate public facilities, and process. Each of the areas of focus 
along with summarized recommendation for improvements have been identified below, 
followed by model ordinance language: 

Purpose Statement and Public Benefit Statement 

• Rewrite and combine Sections 1100 and 1105 to focus on the following goals: 
o Flexibility and site-based design 
o Conservation of natural features and resources 
o Efficiency in streets and utilities 
o Improved housing and neighborhood options 
o Housing affordability 

Density Bonus 

• Establish a density bonus. 
o No or double density in S-1, R2 and areas not served by public utilities. 
o Moderate density in R3 zone. 
o No or double density in Hermantown Marketplace and R3a (only density 

mentioned is 35 per acre for MFH in HM). 
• Establish that bonus density amount is dependent on-site specific review and the 

amount and quality of amenities and mitigating factors provided. 
• Site specific bonus density will be agreed upon during pre-application meeting 

process with applicant and once established, cannot increase. 

Adjustments 

• Establish Maximum Building height and provide additional height opportunity if 
further setbacks can be met. 

• Require Concept landscape/screening plan (if over 4 units/acre). 
o Landscape plan guidance is currently not developed for the City of 

Hermantown. This could be an area of further exploration moving forward. 
• Provide flexibility on setbacks and lot sizes but evaluate on a site-by-site basis. 

Amenities 
• Establish relation of amenities to size, density, scale of PUD. 

o PUD’s over 4 units/acre required to provide development-based amenity. 
• Establish list of acceptable/preferred amenities. 
• Establish that bonus density is dependent on-site specific review and the amount 

and quality of amenities and mitigating factors provided. 



 
Residential PUD Report  Page 8  

Adequate Public Facilities 

• Establish APF statement. 
• Establish what will be reviewed and how. 

o PUD’s over 4 units/acre and/or 5 acres in size are required to provide a 
traffic memo/study. 

o PUD’s to be submitted to School District, police and fire and City/County 
engineer for review of capacity/availability. 

Process 

• Encourage neighborhood meeting and set standards (notice, timing, city 
involvement). 

• Residential PUD’s 4 units/acre or less or less than 5 acres in size may utilize a 
combined Preliminary and Final PUD process. 

• PUD’s over 4 units/acre and/or 5 acres in size required to make separate 
Preliminary and Final PUD submissions. 

• Adjust submittal requirements between Preliminary and Final. 
o Preliminary PUD submission to include site plan, concept utility plan, 

concept grading/stormwater plan, concept building elevations, concept 
landscape/screening plan (if over 4 units/acre). 

To provide further guidance for amending the existing PUD ordinance, the following 
pages include recommended ordinance text adapted from the resources compiled 
through the literary review and adapted for the City of Hermantown for adoption in their 
ordinance to help reach the goals identified during the planning process.  If an existing 
location in the ordinance is related, it has been cited, otherwise a new subdivision in the 
code is recommend addressing the item at hand with a 11.XX. The original source has 
also been included in italic text. 

Adapted from Sartell, MN 

Section 1100 - Purpose 

The Planned Unit Development (PUD) process provides for a joint planning/design effort 
by developers and City officials rather than the City establishing maximum limits within 
which developers may perform. Benefits resulting from this process include an 
opportunity for site based design, conservation of natural features and resources, efficient 
design and use of transportation systems and utilities, improved housing and 
neighborhood options, and housing affordability and provide for the modification of certain 
regulations when it can be demonstrated that such modification would result in 
development which: would not have been provided if no regulations were modified; which 
remains compatible with surrounding development; and, which conforms to the goals and 
policies of the Comprehensive Plan. 

Section 1105 – Public Benefit 



 
Residential PUD Report  Page 9  

Section 11XX – Density Bonus 

• Allowable Density Bonus: 
• S-1 and R-2 zoning district – Double density bonus (2 per 5 acres) and (4 per five 

acres) 
• R3 – PUDs in an R3 (or residential) zone shall not exceed a moderate suburban 

density. 
• Hermantown Marketplace – 50 units per acre for multi-family housing (35 units is 

max density) 
• Commercial and Industrial Zones – Not applicable 

Adapted from Sartell, MN 

All density bonuses listed are maximum allowed. The City may award a lower density 
bonus or no density bonus. An applicant desiring higher densities than allowed in the 
underlying district shall demonstrate that the higher number will not have an undue or 
adverse impact upon existing public facilities and is appropriate for that site. In 
determining the reasonableness of the authorized units per acre, the site-based design, 
conservation of natural features and resources, efficient design and use of transportation 
systems and utilities, improved housing and neighborhood options, and housing 
affordability and amenities beyond Ordinance requirements may be considered. 
Allowable maximum density and required amenity targets should be established during 
the pre-application meetings with the applicant, and once established, cannot increase. 

Adjustments 

Adapted from Golden Valley 

Section 11.XX The City Council shall have the authority in approving any PUD to alter, 
improve, or create anew any provisions of the Hermantown Zoning Regulations or 
Subdivision Regulations as they apply to the proposed PUD. 

• Setbacks. 
a. The City may allow adjustments in setbacks. Requiring greater or allowing 

lesser setbacks may be based on uses on and off the site, natural site 
features, amenities and preservation, topography, density, building heights 
and other plan features. The rationale and justification for these setbacks 
shall be described in a narrative. 

b. Principal building.  Maximum building height of underlying zoning district 
shall be applied to all PUD’s.  An additional 25% of height may be allowed 
if providing additional setbacks and study of relationship to adjacent 
structures.  No principal building shall be closer than its height to the rear or 
side lot line when such line abuts on a Residential Zoning District. 

 

Amenities 



 
Residential PUD Report  Page 10  

Adapted from Golden Valley 

Section 11XX Public Amenities. All applications for new PUDs over 4 units/acre shall 
provide additional amenities that correlate with the size, density, land use type, and help 
integrate the PUD into the community. Amenities options include but are not limited to: 

PUD Amenity Options 

Amenity Standards 

Public open space 

Contiguous ground level outdoor open space that is provided 
beyond the amount of open space required in the underlying zoning 
district requirements. The space shall preserve the natural 
landscape while providing the opportunity for members of the public 
to interact with the natural habitat using walkways, benches, or other 
mechanisms. 

Community 
garden 

Permanent and viable growing space and/or facilities such as a 
greenhouse or a garden, which provides fencing, watering systems, 
soil, secured storage spaces for tools, solar access, and pedestrian 
access as applicable. The facility shall be designed to be 
architecturally compatible with the development to minimize the 
visibility of mechanical equipment. 

Public recreation 
area 

An active, safe, and secure outdoor recreation area open and visible 
to the public that includes equipment or natural features suitable for 
recreational use. 

Public plaza 
Plazas shall be open to the public during daylight hours and provide 
opportunities for the public to interact with the space using outdoor 
furniture, art, or other mechanisms. 

Enhanced bicycle 
and pedestrian 
facilities 

Amenities and facilities that increase the convenience and 
encourage the use of public walkways and bikeways beyond what 
is otherwise required in the underlying zoning district. 

Innovative 
stormwater 
management 

The design must provide capacity for infiltrating stormwater beyond 
what is required by the City and the design must serve as a visual 
amenity to the property and be reflective of innovative techniques. 

Enhanced 
landscaping 

A landscaping plan prepared by a licensed landscape architect that 
provides exceptional design with a variety of pollinators and native 
trees, shrubs, and plant types that provide seasonal interest. 



 
Residential PUD Report  Page 11  

Preservation of 
natural systems 

Preservation or restoration and protection of natural systems like 
wetlands, shorelands, waterways, wooded areas, and agricultural 
lands that beyond what is required by the City and other relevant 
agencies. 

 

Section 11XX – Adequate Public Facilities 

An Applicant shall demonstrate that the PUD will not have an undue or adverse impact 
upon existing public facilities including streets and roads, city water and sanitary sewer 
utilities, stormwater utility, police and fire services, parks and recreation facilities, and the 
Hermantown School District. 

• Using a standard and format acceptable to the City Engineer and Community 
Development Director the Applicant shall provide a report on the estimated impact 
on City water, sanitary sewer, and stormwater utilities. 

• PUD’s greater than 4 units per acre and/or five acres or more in size shall provide 
a traffic memo or traffic study. The scope of the analysis shall be determined by 
the Community Development Director and City Engineer. 

• The City Engineer, in consultation with County or State Engineers if applicable, 
shall review the submitted materials and make a positive, negative, or conditional 
determination on the adequacy of public facilities. The City Engineer shall 
consider: 

o The estimated impact to the water, sewer, stormwater, streets or roads. 
o The design capacity of existing water, sewer, stormwater, streets or roads. 
o Planned (or Programmed) improvements to public facilities. 
o The cumulative impact of other approved development in the city. 

• In making an adequacy determination the City Engineer and Community 
Development Director may direct the Applicant to alter the PUD allow for a positive 
determination through reduction of the density or intensity of the development, 
phasing of the development and/or through Applicant’s provision of facilities or 
design changes to address the reason for a negative determination as allowed by 
Minnesota State law. 

• The Applicant shall provide information on the impact to the City’s parks and 
recreation system using a standard acceptable to the Community Development 
Director. The Community Development Direct shall review the submitted materials 
and make a positive, negative, or conditional determination on the adequacy of the 
City’s parks and recreation system to accommodate the PUD. The amount and 
quantities of recreational amenities provided by the PUD and Park Dedication fees 
shall be considered in the determination. 

• In making an adequacy determination the Community Development Director may 
direct the Applicant to alter the PUD allow for a positive determination through 
reduction of the density or intensity of the development, phasing of the 



 
Residential PUD Report  Page 12  

development and/or through Applicant’s provision of facilities or design changes 
to address the reason for a negative determination as allowed by Minnesota State 
law. 

Information on the size, type, location, expected population, and other relevant factors as 
determined by the Community Development Director shall be provided to the 
Hermantown Police and Fire Departments during the Preliminary PUD planning process 
and be given a chance to submit written or oral comments or to meet with the City and 
Applicant. 

Section 1115 – Application Procedure 

Adopted from Golden Valley 

1115.02 Neighborhood Meeting. At an appropriate point during development of a 
preliminary PUD plan, combined PUD, or major PUD amendment application process, 
the applicant is encouraged to hold a neighborhood meeting. All property owners within 
1000 feet of the PUD shall be given notice of the meeting. The purpose of the meeting is 
to inform the neighborhood of the proposal, discuss the concepts and basis for the plan 
being developed, and to obtain information and suggestions from the neighborhood. 

Adopted from Sartell 

1115.03 Preliminary PUD Plan. An application for a Preliminary PUD shall be filed with 
the City on forms provided by the City. All formal applications for a Preliminary PUD shall 
include at least the following information: 

• Site plan showing applicant’s land and uses in adjoining property and physical 
features. 

• A description of the proposed density, types of uses, and general location of uses. 
• Concept utility plan. 
• Concept grading and stormwater plan. 
• Concept building elevations. 
• Concept landscape/screening plan (if over 4 units/acre). 
• Narrative stating how the proposed development complies with the goals and 

policies of the Comprehensive Plan and PUD ordinance. 
• General description of provided amenities. 
• Other criteria as requested by Community Development Director 

1115.04 Final PUD Plan. An application for a Final PUD shall be filed with the City on 
forms provided by the City. All formal applications for a Final PUD shall include at least 
the following information: 

• The Final Development Plan must include all of the information provided in the 
Preliminary Plan except it must include any changes required by the City in its 
approval of the Preliminary Development Plan. 



 
Residential PUD Report  Page 13  

• A detailed Site plan, suitable for recording, prepared by a qualified and licensed 
civil engineer illustrating the proposed use(s) of land; proposed densities; 
buildings, including square footage, height and other dimensions, distances 
between buildings and the front, side and rear lot lines, and other buildings located 
on the property and on property adjacent to the property; street and walkway 
locations; curb cuts and driveways; parking areas and loading areas; open spaces; 
the locations of easements and utilities (existing and proposed); landscaping 
(showing size, types and locations); lighting; grading; drainage; project phasing; 
anticipated variances from setbacks or other regulations of the underlying zone; 
tabulation of density, land use intensity, lot coverage and acreage; percentages of 
land devoted to buildings, parking, and open space; and any other information 
which may be helpful to understanding and evaluating the proposal. 

• Drainage plan indicating catch basins and underground improvements. 
• Detailed description and calculation of areas devoted to amenities and open 

space. 

1115.XX Combined PUD. 

• At the discretion of the Community Development Director, residential PUDs of 4 
units/acre or less and/or less than five acres in size may combine the Preliminary 
and Final PUD requirements and process into one. 

• PUDs over 4 units/acre and/or 5 acres in size are required to make separate 
Preliminary and Final PUD submissions. 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 



 
Residential PUD Report  Page 14  

Appendix 
• Moratorium 
• Survey 
• Review Matrices 
• Comprehensive Plan Elements 
• Planning Concepts and Definitions 

 
  



Onllnallce No. 2020-08 

Tho City Council of the City of Hermantown Does Ordain: 

AN ORDINANCE DECLARING A TEMPORARY MORAT01UUM ON 
CERTAIN PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENTS IN AN R-3 ZONING DISTRICT W1TBlN THE 

CITY OF HERMANTOWN 

WHEREAS, lho City's Z.onillg Code allows planned unit dcsvelopmellt$ ("PUDs"} in R·3 
Residential Zone Districts ("R-3 Zone"); and 

WHBREAS, some uses allowed in a PUD; such 8$ apartment buildings and COlllJllercial uses, aie 
not allowed in an R~3 Z.one; and · · 

, 

WHEREAS, proposed PUDs titat include uses not allowed in a R-3 Zone have ffi:oived strong 
opposition from residems; an<! 

WHEREAS, th~ Planning Commission has discussed the issue& presented by PUD& proposed for 
R-3 Zones with U!IOS not allowed in an R-3 Zone and have recommeaded that the issues presented by auch 
propose4 PUDs be studied further; and · 

WHEREAS, the City Council has duly i:onsidered the recommendation af the Planning 
Commission and de.sires tp conduct a study tegarding PUDs within R-3 Zones and; that until such stu!IY is 
ccmpleted, prohibit certain PUDs within R-3 .zones . 

• 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of lhe City of Hermantown, 

Mino.e80tll, 1hat the following regulations be adopted as an Qi:dillance of the fltY..<>f ~wn: .. ... ... . . . .... . . 

1. No petBOII, firm, entity, or OO'l)Oration shall propose a PUD withfu a R-3 Zone District 
that includes more than three (3) units per acre with a maximum of four ( 4} dwolling units per building 
until the wlier of (i) June 21, 2021 or (ii) the effective date of ordinance provisions regarding PUD& in 
R-3 .zone Districts.' · · · 

2. ThiB Ordinance is adopted pursuant to the provisions of Minne$01a Statutes Secti011 
462.355, Subdivision 4. 

3. The purpose and inrat of this Ordinance is set forth in the above 'Whereas clauses. 

4. Thii Ordinance shall be ef(ective immediately upon a:doption. 

5. This Ordinance shall be published once in the official newspaper of the City. of 
Hermlllltown. 

· 6. City Stafi' and the P!anniDg aild Zoning CommiS.!lion are hereby directed to study the 
iss~ pre111mted by PUDs in an R-3 zoiie district and provide their report and recommendations to the 
City Council as soon as pos'sible. 

Dated the 21st day ofDeumber, 2020. 

Mayor 



.. -
ATI'BST: 

~(;, ~ 
City Clerk '(/: 

Adopted; December 21, 2020 

Publi5hed: I;? -~ I• o\-0.;2. 6 

Filed: 12,. 3 1-..i,o~c:) 

Effective Date: /~-:?> 1-.l.o~o 



PUD SURVEY RESULTS  

To Note: 45 total respondents 

 

1.) I am a … 

 Hermantown Resident/Homeowner    33 (73.3%) 
 Hermantown Business Owner    14 (31.1%) 
 Person who does business/works in Hermantown 21 (46.7%) 
 Other        2 (4.4%) 

 

2.)  Are you familiar with Planned Unit Developments? 

 93.3% = 42 responses 

 

3.) Do any of the following cause concern for you? 

 Lack of a variety of housing options within Hermantown   25 (55.6%) 
 Overcrowding in the Hermantown school system   12 (26.7%) 
 Increased traffic due to development     11 (24.4%) 
 Need for work force/affordable housing     19 (42.4%) 
 Development costs of new construction     28 (62.2%) 
 Consumption of land area associated with large lot development 13 (28.9%) 
 None of the above       2 (4.4%) 
 Other          1 each (2.2% each) 

o Clearly defined expectations of developers up front so that they do not spend thousands on a project 
just to be turned down because of neighborhood opposition 

o The lack of pedestrian friendly infrastructure and increased traffic in many of the R3 zoned areas. 
Example: The section of Lavaque Rd from Maple Grove to 53 and other highly trafficked routes 

o I do not like putting group homes and other businesses in residential areas. 
o The unsustainable cost of homeownership 
o Residential zoned land turning commercial in nature, lack of planning for future developments 



o Property tax increases 

4.) The average home price for new construction/home sales has risen to $445,000 in Hermantown. Do you view this as 
a problem? 

66.7% = 30 responses 

COMMENTS: 

 This price range is unaffordable for many people 
 We need a greater diversity of housing types, and lot sizes. We need to be able to create housing that our 

teachers, police officers, professionals such as office assistants and accountants can afford 
 We do need a mix of affordable housing as well. 
 Please allow market demand to set pricing 
 The cost of building material is what it is. No one can do anything about that. 
 We need to ensure that the workforce of our area has housing they can afford. If our city is to sustainably grow, 

that means providing workforce and affordable housing options. As someone who owns a home well above the 
average, I still believe our income level has an opportunity to build and purchase homes while providing much 
more affordable options to the workforce of our community. 

 The recent rise in costs makes PUD's that much more important. 
 There should be dedicated areas in higher congestion areas where approved higher density housing is 

permitted. Businesses should not be allowed in residential areas. 
 Hermantown is moving from Middle Class to Elite status 
 Every growing community in America needs to acknowledge the challenges we face when it comes to housing 

costs. 
 Increased density could help bring costs down.  There are many reasons why new home construction costs are 

rising.  Many of them are supply/ demand issues that are market driven and therefore beyond control.  The low 
hanging fruit to bring costs down is increased density to fully utilize land and infrastructure costs. 

 That does not bode well for attracting young families 
 LGA 
 I expect this is not a Hermantown specific issue. 
 Lot size and Home size? 

 



5.) The cost of residential construction has increased 24% since 2015. Do you view this as a problem? 

75.6% = 34 responses 

COMMENTS: 

 Labor costs are high. But taxes are really high! 
 We should determine the underlying factors causing increased construction costs. Is it related to wetlands, state 

regulation, lack of competition, supply costs, etc. By determining the underlying factors contributing to the costs 
of construction, our community can work to consider what we can directly control to reduce costs, while also 
considering opportunities for influence on the factors out of our direct control.  

 Someway somehow we have to get the costs down to make new construction a viable option for more people 
 Young Families cannot afford Hermantown 
 Homeownership strengthens communities, adding semi-detached housing options is one way to bridge the gap 

between building and renting. 
 Again, not a Hermantown specific issue 
 Sounds like the national average, is it not? 

 
6.) In your opinion, what are the top two (2) things driving the cost of housing? 

 Real estate values have been historically undervalued, so it is not surprising to see an increase – 2 (4.4%) 
 Nearby developments are causing costs to increase – 4 (8.9%) 
 Increase in building material costs – 37 (82.2%) 
 Available housing does not meet the needs of current population – 22 (48.9%) 
 Competition – there are not enough residential homes/units available to meet growing demand – 25 (55.6%) 
 Other 

o Infrastructure costs are required to be paid by developers up front with their own money 
o Lot sizes and the cost of infrastructure to serve large lots 
o St. Louis County (and Hermantown) taxes are too high 
o Land expenses in Hermantown are way too high 
o Taxes are high, permitting can be high and utility hookups are HIGH 
o Modern monetary theory 
o Contractors make more money on expensive homes, so build those instead of affordable homes 
o Utility installation costs 



o Low interest rates 

COMMENTS: 

 None 
 We do not need to apologize for having quality housing inventory 
 Hook-up fees are higher than most expect 
 Due to a lack of new construction and developments, the existing housing stock is skyrocketing in value. This 

is causing our community to stagnate in growth, which in turn causes property taxes and increasing costs to 
fall on existing residents. By encouraging a growing community, we can spread out the costs and improve 
our quality of life. 

 Most metro's have seen a flight to the suburbs over the years and Hermantown has positioned itself well to 
provide for this growth opportunity. 

 Try to entice contractors to build affordable housing instead of expensive homes. 
 It really is simple supply and demand economics in play. Both for housing inventory and building materials. 
 Be mindful of our seniors needs & contributions 
 Rural vs Urban issue – Unquantified Question 

 

7.) Would you be open to new types of housing within the R-3 zoning district as a way to address the housing shortage? 

 

68.9% = 31 “Yes” responses; 20% = 9 “Maybe” responses 

3 “No” responses (6.7%); 2 “I do not believe …” responses (4.4%) 

COMMENTS: 

 Tiny house like Duluth is starting. 
 Allow limited 4-8 plex in certain areas like Maple Grove close to the Market Square. 
 There are good alternatives to our housing issues, exp for 55+ residents. This is what we are lacking in 

Hermantown. Townhomes and Quads to open up housing 
 Hermantown can be a community that provides housing for all ranges of individuals and families. We will 

continue to have opportunities for high-income families to live a high quality of life, while still ensuring 



average income earners and the current workforce of our area have a home to live, work, play, and more. 
Our community will thrive with a diverse range of incomes, backgrounds, and industry backgrounds. 

 With a focus on the existing infrastructure and ensuring we provide a pedestrian friendly, interconnected 
and easily navigated community, I think specific projects with relation to location and density could be 
considered. 

 Any growing community in America will need to allow new types of housing options to continue growing. 
 R3 only. Not s1/rural 
 What documentation is there to support the claim that there is a housing shortage in Hermantown? 
 Large developments are currently "unlimited" in R3 which is the majority of the city. Apartment buildings 

especially should be keep closer to the 53 corridor or the Hermantown Marketplace which was created to 
allow for and attract these types of projects. 

 Size, scope, and location. 
8.) 

 

COMMENTS: 

 All the above 
 All of these options need to be considered. The development at the corner of Lavaque and Maple Grove 

SHOULD have been approved as it was in its 1st rendition. Hermantown has to grow residentially and it can 
only grow West from Stebner. This is not a "rural" community any longer. It is a suburb of Duluth, like it or 
not. Growth is a good thing that can be dealt with by the City staff that is in-place at this time. The growth 
will help the tax base of Hermantown and St. Louis County! 

 If the foot print of the home is small a smaller lot should be accepted. 
 We need to have a plan for the schools! Too many large developments would push us over capacity. 
 No apartments period. Again limit to develop area close to “walkable” business growth. 
 Looking at a development of 3 twin homes closer together, is much nicer than a small apartment, just not as 

affordable per economy of scale, but nicer by far. 



 Triplexes and above should be reviewed based on location and current infrastructure support or 
constructucted in closer proximity to the commercially zoned areas to accommodate traffic both vehicle and 
pedestrian. 

 I am in favor of all types of housing with proper restrictions. For example, I would recommend a saturation 
point on apartment units. Too many apartments is tough on a community. We all know that home ownership 
strengthens communities. Not enough apartments can also be tough on a community. Everything in 
moderation. 

 I’d be open to triplexes/fourplexes/apartments in certain areas, but not as a general rule. 
 In what density? – Unquantified Question 

 
9.) 

 

46.7% = 21 “not concerned” responses; 31.1% = 14 “county roads” responses 

15.6% = 7 “city roads” responses; 3 “not in favor of any” responses = 6.7% 



10.) 

 

48.9% = 22 responses; 26.7% = 12 responses; 24.4% = 11 responses 

11.) 

 

37.8% = 17 responses; 31.1% = 14 responses; 20% = 9 responses; 11.1% = 5 responses 

 

 



12.) If apartments are allowed in the R-3 zoning district through the PUD, what are the criteria you feel comfortable 
utilizing? (You may select multiple answers.) 

 Height restrictions – 26 (57.8%) 
 Minimum lot size – 24 (53.3%) 
 Maximum allowed units – 27 (60%) 
 Specific location within the R-3 zoning district – 24 (53.3%) 
 Specific road access requirements – 19 (42.2%) 
 I am not in favor of apartments in the R-3 zoning district 8 (17.8%) 
 Other 

o School impact but more robust than in past. Fire and rescue assessment too 
o Individualized Restrictions to meet the individual situation. 

COMMENTS: 

 I would like to see flag shape lots utilized for more housing options. 
 the question on lot size for PUDS is not a good one. The size of the underlying parcel needs to reflect the use 

that will be made. So, a couple of duplexes are ok on a 2 acre parcel but not an apartment. so the density 
might be the better answer than the underlying lot size 

 None 
 They are doable but must be managed. 
 Clear guidelines are needed to build the community wisely. 
 I would like to see our community develop a comprehensive development plan that structures our zoning in 

a way that can encourage multi-family housing projects in several locations throughout the city with 
walkability and services in mind. That way we can encourage neighborhood structures to our community 
that allows those with single-family homes, while also having neighborhoods with mixed commercial/multi-
family housing developments. For instance, in the Market Place zoning district, it would be great to see 
apartment complexes developed with commercial opportunities on the main floor. This would provide easy 
access to commercial businesses for those without a vehicle, but also provide the density and traffic 
required for some businesses to thrive. 

 Keep them in higher density areas 
 Large multi-family structures that do not allow for home ownership should be restricted. 
 Apartments in an R3 zoning district should require re-zoning, not a PUD 
 High density, transportation, infrastructure, and urban sprawl issues 

 



13.) 

 

46.7% = 21 responses; 31.1% = 14 responses; 13.3% = 6 responses 

3 “I disagree” responses = 6.7%; 1 “strongly disagree” response = 2.2% 

14.) What are the reasons for your ranking in the previous question? (You may select multiple answers.) 

 I believe it will lower my property value – 4 (8.9%) 
 I believe it will raise my property value – 3 (6.7%) 
 It would make good use of existing infrastructure – 32 (71.1%) 
 It would add necessary infrastructure – 21 (46.7%) 
 It can be used to preserve the natural features of our area by clustering/grouping homes – 25 (55.6%) 
 It will help lead to school overcrowding – 9 (20%) 
 It will cause a negative increase in traffic – 10 (22.2%) 
 It will change the character of my neighborhood negatively – 9 (20%) 
 It will change the character of my neighborhood positively – 7 (15.6%) 
 It will cause too many trees to be lost – 6 (13.3%) 
 It will cause more stormwater issues, such as runoff and flooding – 5 (11.1%) 
 Fire and emergency response concerns – 10 (22.2%) 
 Police response concerns – 8 (17.8%) 
 I believe it will raise my property taxes – 6 (13.3%) 
 I believe it will lower my property taxes – 9 (20%) 
 Other 

o It will allow teachers, cops and other folks who cannot afford a $445k home to live in Hermantown. 
o It will open up a greater variety of housing options yet still maintain a rural element to our community. 

Housing diversification is desired. 
o Sharing wisely will cost less for all. 



COMMENTS: 

 Hello my name is (name removed) and I have filled out this survey a couple week’s ago but would like add 
some thoughts that I did not in the last survey. Would the city consider allowing multiple family on the new 
flag shaped lots that have been created in Hermantown as in duplex, triplex or four Plex. I believe this would 
add more options for transitional housing. Without having to live in the big complexes. My family and I 
currently own rental houses throughout Hermantown and in Duluth. Most of our tenants are young 
professionals either medical or IT workers not planning to stay more than a couple years they have very little 
options for housing in Hermantown. Thank you for your time. 

 We need to acknowledge the need for a paid fire department soon with all expansions. This will be a very big 
new expense to the city that is not accounted for yet in many assessments of impact. 

 Overall I don't strictly oppose new and various levels of development. My main concerns are the community 
feel, traffic and the current lack of pedestrian safety in some of the areas in which these PUD's have been 
proposed. I think the focus should be on creating the infrastructure and ensuring the main arteries of 
Hermantown such as Stebner, Lavaque, Hains Rd all have appropriate sidewalks and speed limits (lower to 
35). Connecting Hermantown through trails and bike paths and allowing the community to grow and move 
safely rather than more suburban sprawl with chokepoints. 

 My views on allowing different types of housing is not based on how it would effect me personally. I strongly 
feel that it would be better for the community as a whole. It will open up more options for home ownership 
and potentially curb the unsustainable increase in housing prices. 

 Answers are for current R3 only. Keep s1 rural 
 The two questions are not relatable in several ways. 



 

:+ ~- -~ ~-_l HERMANTOWN Cambridge Duluth 
----

East Grand 

Minimum N, except 5 
Size 

I 
Flexible Land 
Use 

Comp Plan 
Reference 

acres in 51 and 
Rl dist ricts 

All permitted 
and conditional 
uses listed in the 
underlying 
specific district 
are allowed in a 
PUD, except any 
type of housing 
may be allowed 
and 
neighborhood 
supporting 
commercial 

allowed 
The P UD shall be 
consistent with 
the Comp Plan 

N 

Land uses 
generally 
associated 
with land use 
category in 
Comp Plan 

Land uses 
generally 
associated 
with land use 
category in 
Comp Plan 

(Residential-Planned and 

Mixed-U~ ned) 

4 acres 2 acres 

Any type of 
housing, some 

additional 
commercial 

To encourage 
a variety of 
housing in 
established 
neighborhoods 
while 
maintaining 
character and 
vitality 

Any type of 
housing 

No 

Forks 

N 

Exclusively 
used for 
housing, all 
housing types 
allowed 
regardless of 
underlying 
district 

Consistent 
with land use 
plan 

Golden Valley Grand Ra~ Hopkins ____ Mankat_o ___ Model L Ordinance 

2 acres, 2 acres N 1-5 acres, 10 acres, 
sma lle r w/ district smal ler by city 
waiver dependent approval based 

on specified 
standards 

Unspecified 
flexible uses 

Achieve 
development 
consistent with 
the Comp Plan 

l 

Only those 
uses allowed in 
underlying 

Zoning shall be 
required to be 
in accordance 
with the city 
Comp Plan 

Mixed 
residential 
density and 
type and 
compatible 
mixed uses 

Only those 
uses generally 
considered 
associated 
with the 
general land 
use category 
shown for the 
area on the 
official 
comprehensiv 
e land use plan 

Any type of 
housing 
allowed 

No 

Uses not 
otherwise 
allowed in the 
zoning district 
are prohibited 
within a PUD 
except as 
provided in 
this Article and 
listed in the 
development 
agreement. 

Goals laid out 
in purpose 
statement are 
specifically 
drawn from 
Comp Plan 
goals 

Oakdale L Sartell ___ S_•"' ,.,;a, I 
5 acres, N N 
sma ller by city 
approval based 
on specified 
standards 
Any type of Any type of 
housing in any housing in 
PUD residential 

Shall be 
consistent with 
the City of 
Oakdale Comp 
Plan 

1 

PUD 

Remains 
compatible 
with 
surrounding 

development; 
and, which 
conforms to 
the goals and 
policies of the 
Comp Plan 

Any use 
considered 

Consistent 
with the Comp 
Plan 

I 
Flexible I Y, unspecified 
Dimensional I 

Y, unspecified 
except max 

resident ia l lot 
cove rage of 
25%, non

residential 
50% 

y y Y, unspecified Y, r.eac and Y, except no 

setback 
variances 
adjacent to 
exterior 
property lines 

Y, unspecified Y, Unspecified Y, non
standard lot 

N, except .that_ Y, unspecified 
bui ldings shall 

Y, SFH PUD in 
R-1 districts 
are specified 
(6600 sf min, 
55 width, 
standard 

and 
Performance 

Standards 

I Density 
Bonuses 

_J 

L 

Y, unspecified Housing: In 
rural districts, 
4 units per 
acre, Other 

Y,20% 
decrease in lot 
area, 25% 
decrease in 

width, but 

N/A Does not say 

side setbacks 
equal to height 
when abutt ing 
Single Family 
District, at 
least 15 ft all 
setbacks 

Y, awarded on 
a points scale 
for affordable 
housing or 

I or public 
~ ets 

Y, up to 25% N, density N 
transfer with 
clustering 

sizes, lot lines, 
density 

be set back 
from adjacent 
property equal 
to its height, 
maxof45' L 

Y, unspecified Y, up to 10% Y, < 15% 
overall density, automatic, automatic, 
< 40% SFH may additional with with additional 
use reduced open space by city 

setbacks, 

Y, unspecified 

~ reas up to and ~ roval ___ _ 



 

residential does not other public a min of 3,500 site/building 
+15% specifically cap amenities sf design 

# of units 
(multi-family) 

Common I Y, unspecified I Y, < 15% Y, < 30% Y, < 20% Y, but not Y, but not Unspecified Unspecified Y, but not Y, but not Y, not Y, unspecified Y, unspecified 

Open Space requ ired requ ired, gets requ ired requi red required, 

4 of required unspecified 
amenity_points 

Clustering y # of units Vo Y, but requires I Y y y y y y Y, unspecified Y, unspecified Y, unspecified Y, unspecified .1 
units per acre a 20% overa ll 

density 

v, ,.,;aeo,;~ ""'"' +..,.;,, +. +- ~ cypes~+ decrease and 

~ .au,+ 

upto 50%1ot 

_J_ 
Y, but limit~ 

area decrease 

~ allowed ;, Y, resident ia l y 

underlying and and other retail, office, non-residential PUD-

district or t hat commercial, commercia l residential business in residential 

I 

residential and 
provide 66% min district uses districts mixed use 

services to residentia l (school, 

Io .. ;,, l j primary uses church, etc.) 

of PUD 

Y, Unspecified Unspecified Unspecified Y, underlying N Y, not N N N Y, unspecified Y, unspecified N N 
Standards district or requ ired, 

alternate awarded 1 
amenity point 

Conservation I Y, unspecified N y Unspecified N Y, not Unspecified Unspecified N Y, unspecified Y, unspecified N N 

/Sustainabili requi red, 

ty Standards l_;;rded 
enity points 

Rezone N y y I Y N N I N N I N N y N, listed as a Overlay 
CUP in each District 

district 

Community N - + Y, 350' I Y, 350' N i Y, 500' L I N N N X N N 
Meeting 

Other Street w idth Street w idth Traffic Private street HOA required Private street 
by city by city management standards and traffic 

engineer engineer highlighted sta ndards 

landscaping I Y, unspecified I If requ ired by Y,15% Y, 20% N Y, not N Y, Unspecified Y, per Y, unspecified Y, unspecified I N 
underlying decrease over decrease requ ired, ordinance 

district base awarded 
amenity_ri_oints 



Purpose Matrix       
       
   Page 1 of 2 

Purpose HERMANTOWN Cambridge Duluth East 
Grand 
Forks 

Golden 
Valley 

Grand 
Rapids 

Hopkins Mankato Model 
Ordinance 

Oakdale Sartell Sauk 
Rapids 

Preservation and 
enhancement of 
nature 

X X X  X X X X X X X  

Variety of housing 
and 
neighborhoods 

X X X X X X X X X X X X 

Recreational 
Amenities 

X  X      X  X X 

Non-motorized 
travel facilities 

X  X     X X    

Improved design, 
landscape, 
architectural 

X    X     X   

Elimination of 
blight and 
incompatible uses 

X       X     

Improved 
business and 
commerce, 
economy, tax 
base 

X     X  X     

Efficient services 
and utilities 

X X X X X X X X X X X X 

Green 
infrastructure 

X            

Preservation and 
enhancement of 
historical or 
cultural resources 

X X     X X     

Mixed use 
development 

X X   X  X   X X X 

Clustering/density 
transfer 

 X    X X  X    



Purpose Matrix 

Page 2 of 2 
Common open 
space 

X X X X X 

Reduced traffic 
conflicts through 
design 

X X 

Reduce 
greenhouse gas 
emissions 

X 

Enhance local 
labor supply, 
proximity to jobs 

X 

Use local 
renewable energy 
resources 

X 

Sustainable 
design 

X X X 

Linkages to mass 
transit 

X 

Creativity and 
flexibility in 
design 

X X 





Vision Statement 
A. “Residential land use will continue to be the dominant land use surrounded by

abundant open areas and public spaces for passive and active recreation. The
number of residents will increase to over 10,000 people for the first time ever, but
the new developments will have blended with the character of the community and
located in areas suitable for the land use.” – page 5

B. “This area (east of Ugstad Road) is considered suburban because population
densities have remained moderate due to lot requirements and public open space
standards.” – page 5 

C. “There is a mix of housing types including multi-family for seniors and young
people. Neighborhood characteristics have been preserved through strict
enforcement of development standards where new single and multi-family homes
were developed.” – page 5

D. “Traffic and public safety considerations are built into all new developments. The
development has not overloaded local streets or isolated properties from rapid
emergency response.” – page 6

E. “The Hermantown schools, city hall, public safety building, existing and new park
areas along Maple Grove Road are the core or center of Hermantown. This area
is surrounded by residential development for both young and old.” – page 7

F. “Future Hermantown’s Growth Management program has successfully guided and
meshed development with existing neighborhoods.” – page 8

G. A safe, secure, clean and vibrant City has continued into the future because of
quality families and people, which are attracted to the community because of its
numerous educational, social, and civic amenities.

Comprehensive Plan Concepts and Plan Goals and Policies 
“Comprehensive plan goals and policies are intended to provide a decision making guide 
for future City Councils and Planning Commissions in the process of reviewing and 
approving development in the community.” – page 9 

H. “Maintain the rural and suburban character of Hermantown.” – page 9
I. “Manage residential development to preserve critical natural features and existing,

established neighborhoods.” – page 9
J. “Phase residential development consistent with necessary and available public

infrastructure.” – page 9
K. “Reduce the community’s reliance on the automobile and connect neighborhoods

with public and private activity centers through a system of on and off road bicycle
trails and pedestrian paths that would not be accessible to motorized traffic.” –
page 10

L. “Plan a community traffic circulation system to serve the evolving land use pattern
and provide necessary right-of-way for new roadways to serve development and
enhance the community traffic circulation system for people, goods and services
entering and leaving the city.” – page 10

M. Consider the environmental and fiscal impacts of major new residential,
commercial, or light industrial development. Identify and evaluate the short and
long term impacts on the physical environment and infrastructure of Hermantown,
including fire, police and emergency medical services.” – page 10



Growth Management Program 
N. “The growth impacts that threaten the quality of life in Hermantown are:

i. Traffic moving through the city during morning and evening hours;
ii. Local traffic from multiple family and subdivision development;
iii. The loss of open space and wildlife habitat;
iv. Extension of utilities to serve existing development and creating

opportunities for new development;
v. The addition of new senior and assisted living housing developments;
vi. Requests for rezoning to allow new development;
vii. Request for special use permits to establish new uses in single family zone

districts such as group homes, professional offices, tri-plexes and four-
plexes, etc. – page 17-18

O. “Proposed re-zonings of property outside the (urban services) boundary that
increase development density will generally not be considered.” – page 19

P. “The phased development growth management limits development of new
subdivision plats having more than 15 lots to the trunk sewer project Phase I or II
areas. Any proposed subdivisions outside this area must contain 15 or less lots to
be considered by the City. This standard is intended to preserve the S-1 and R-1
zones. The expense of extending city water and paving roads is greater per lor for
more rural development.” – page 21

Q. “No proposed plat will be considered without a detailed traffic impact study of the
project to determine if local roadways are adequate to handle all traffic. If a project
requires upgrading of an existing roadway that provides legal access to the
proposed developed property, the developer will be required to pay for such
improvements.” – page 21-21 (comment: state law changes may complicate this.)

R. “All proposed developments will provide a detailed report on the impact of the
project on the City’s public safety goals, fire and police departments and water
supply system. Any identified deficiencies must be eliminated before the project is
approved and construction commences.” – page 22

S. All proposed residential subdivisions or multiple family uses will provide a detailed
analysis of the project’s impact on the City’s park and recreation systems.” – page
22 



Concepts 
The following concepts were discussed in relation to use of PUD. 

Conservation subdivisions, sometimes called cluster developments, maintain a 
significant portion of a development site in common open space by minimizing individual 
lot sizes, while maintaining the overall density of development specified by a local master 
plan or zoning ordinance. Conservation subdivisions should be designed around the area 
proposed to be preserved in open space; that is, the areas for open space preservation 
should be set aside before the streets and lots are laid out. 

 

Missing Middle Housing- Opticos Website 
Opticos Design founder Daniel Parolek inspired a new movement for housing choice in 
2010 when he coined the term  “Missing Middle Housing,” a transformative concept that 
highlights a time-proven and beloved way to provide more housing and more housing 
choices in sustainable, walkable places. 

These building types, such as duplexes, fourplexes, cottage courts, and courtyard 
buildings, provide diverse housing options and support locally-serving retail and public 
transportation options. We call them “Missing” because they have typically been illegal to 
build since the mid-1940s and “Middle” because they sit in the middle of a spectrum 
between detached single-family homes and mid-rise to high-rise apartment buildings, in 
terms of form and scale, as well as number of units and often, affordability. In the diagram 
below, the Missing Middle types are shown, providing many housing options in between 
the single-family homes and higher intensity apartment buildings, both shown in white. 

Figure 1: Source APA Michigan 

https://opticosdesign.com/blog/economics-form-scale-matter-missing-middle-housing-conversation/


More information on this concept can be found: https://missingmiddlehousing.com/ 

Underlying zoning district 
When considering a PUD, the underlying zoning district needs to be considered as a part 
of the process. While the specific conditions and requirements can change, the overall 
intent and purpose of the district should remain.  How the underlying zoning impacts the 
development is determined by a number of factors, most notably whether a PUD is 
allowed by right, is its own district, or as an overlay zone.  Specific to this study, we are 
only focused on PUDs in the R-3 district, which has an intent of providing multi-family 
development. Most notably, that any proposed PUD would need to have allowed or 
complimentary uses to the existing underlying zoning.  For example, a large scale 
industrial/commercial facility would not be allowed to fit within the R-3 zoning in 
Hermantown, and thus could not be included in a PUD overlay of the R-3 district. 

New Urbanism and Traditional Neighborhood Design-Congress for New Urbanism 
New Urbanism is a planning and development approach based on the principles of how 
cities and towns had been built for the last several centuries: walkable blocks and streets, 
housing and shopping in close proximity, and accessible public spaces. In other words: 
New Urbanism focuses on human-scaled urban design. 

These design and development principles can be applied to new development, urban infill 
and revitalization, and preservation. They can be applied to all scales of development in 
the full range of places including rural Main Streets, booming suburban areas, urban 
neighborhoods, dense city centers, and even entire regions.  They are developed to offer 
alternatives to the sprawling, single-use, low-density patterns typical of post-WWII 
development, which have been shown to inflict negative economic, health, and 
environmental impacts on communities. 

More information can be found at https://www.cnu.org/ 

https://missingmiddlehousing.com/
https://www.cnu.org/


CITY OF HERMANTOWN 
CITY COUNCIL CONTINUATION MEETING 
June 21, 2021 
6:30 p.m. 
 

MEETING CONDUCTED IN PERSON & VIA ZOOM 
 
Pledge of Allegiance 
 
ROLL CALL:  Councilors Geissler, Hauschild, Nelson, Peterson, Mayor Boucher 
 
CITY STAFF: John Mulder, City Administrator; Bonnie Engseth, City Clerk; Eric Johnson, 

Community Development Director; Joe Wicklund, Communications Director; Steve 
Overom, City Attorney; David Bolf, City Engineer 

 
ABSENT:  
 
VISITORS: 3 
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
PUBLIC HEARING  
 
COMMUNICATIONS 
 
Communications 21-77 through and including 21-82 were read and placed on file. 
 
Communication 21-78 from MN Dept. of Transportation to John Mulder, City Administrator regarding 2020 
Local Road Improvement Program Project Selection 
 
PRESENTATIONS 
 
PUBLIC DISCUSSION 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Motion made by Councilor Hauschild, seconded by Councilor Peterson to approve the Consent Agenda 
which includes the following items: 
 
 A. Approve June 7, 2021 City Council Minutes & June 14, 2021 Work Session Meeting 
                          Minutes 
  
 B. Approve general city warrants from June 1, 2021 through June 15, 2021 in 
      the amount of $883,286.86 
  
Roll Call: Councilors Geissler, Hauschild, Nelson, Peterson, Mayor Boucher, aye. Motion carried.  
 
MOTIONS 
 
Motion made by Councilor Geissler, seconded by Councilor Nelson to approve the following On Sale 
Intoxicating Liquor Licenses: AAD Shrine, 5152 Miller Trunk Hwy, On Sale/Sunday/Dance; Beacon Sports 
Bar, 5044 Hermantown Road, On Sale/Sunday/Dance;  Chalet Lounge, 4833 Miller Trunk Hwy, On 
Sale/Sunday; Foster’s Sports Bar & Grill, 4767 W. Arrowhead Rd, On Sale/Sunday; Maya Mexican 
Restaurant, 4702 Miller Trunk Hwy, On Sale/Sunday; McKenzie’s Bar & Grill, 5094 Miller Trunk Hwy, On  



City Council Continuation Meeting 
June 21, 2021 
Page | 2 
 
Sale/Sunday; Outback Steakhouse, 4255 Haines Rd, On Sale/Sunday and Skyline Lounge, 4894 Miller 
Trunk Hwy, On Sale/Sunday; The Social House, 4897 Miller Trunk Hwy; Valentini’s, 4960 Miller Trunk 
Hwy contingent upon meeting all City Requirements. Roll Call: Councilors Geissler, Hauschild, Nelson, 
Peterson, Mayor Boucher, aye. Motion carried. 

 
Motion made by Councilor Peterson, seconded by Councilor Hauschild to approve the following Off Sale 
Intoxicating Liquor Licenses: Sam’s West #6320, 4743 Maple Grove Rd and Adolph Store, 3706 Midway 
Road contingent upon meeting all City Requirements. Roll Call: Councilors Geissler, Hauschild, Nelson, 
Peterson, Mayor Boucher, aye. Motion carried. 
 
Motion made by Councilor Nelson, seconded by Councilor Geissler to approve the following Off Sale 3.2 
Malt Liquor Licenses: Holiday Stationstores, 4795 Miller Trunk Hwy, Off Sale; Kwik Trip #220, 4978 
Miller Trunk Highway, Off Sale; Kwik Trip #216, 4805 Miller Trunk Hwy, Off Sale; Kwik Trip #572, 4145 
Haines Road; Walmart #1757, 4740 Loberg Ave, Off Sale; I Mart Stores, 4221 Haines Rd contingent upon 
meeting all City requirements. Roll Call: Councilors Geissler, Hauschild, Nelson, Peterson, Mayor Boucher, 
aye. Motion carried. 
 
Motion made by Councilor Peterson, seconded by Councilor Hauschild to approve the following On Sale 
Wine/Strong Beer Liquor Licenses: China Star Restaurant, 4227 Haines Rd, Wine/Beer; Do North Pizzeria, 
5116 Miller Trunk Hwy, Wine/Beer; Sammy’s Pizza, 4310 Menard Dr, Wine/Beer; The King of Creams, 
4140 Richard Ave; Yellow Bike Coffee, 5094 Miller Trunk Hwy, Wine/Beer contingent upon meeting all 
City requirements. Roll Call: Councilors Geissler, Hauschild, Nelson, Peterson, Mayor Boucher, aye. Motion 
carried. 
 
Motion made by Councilor Hauschild, seconded by Councilor Peterson to appoint Gerald Wallace, Mary 
Ferguson, Bill Berg, Adhi Devireddy, Thea Stauffenecker, Steve Poggio & Councilor Gloria Nelson to the 
Broadband Task Force. Roll Call: Councilors Geissler, Hauschild, Nelson, Peterson, Mayor Boucher, aye. 
 
ORDINANCES 
 
RESOLUTIONS 
 
2021-69 Resolution Approving Change Order Number 1 For Old Hwy 2 
 
Motion made by Councilor Geissler, seconded by Councilor Hauschild to adopt Resolution 2021-69, 
Resolution Approving Change Order Number 1 For Old Hwy 2. Councilors Geissler, Hauschild, Nelson, 
Peterson, Mayor Boucher, aye. Motion carried. 
 
2021-70 Resolution Approving A Special Use Permit For The Grading And Filling Within A 

Shoreland Overlay Zoning District 
 
Motion made by Councilor Peterson, seconded by Councilor Geissler to adopt Resolution 2021-70, 
Resolution Approving A Special Use Permit For The Grading And Filling Within A Shoreland Overlay 
Zoning District. Councilors Geissler, Hauschild, Nelson, Peterson, Mayor Boucher, aye. Motion carried. 
 
2021-71 Resolution Authorizing And Directing The Mayor And City Clerk To Execute And Deliver 

A Settlement Agreement Between The City Of Hermantown And Stauber Properties 
Partnership (“Stauber Properties”) 

 
Motion made by Councilor Peterson, seconded by Councilor Geissler to adopt Resolution 2021-71, 
Resolution Authorizing And Directing The Mayor And City Clerk To Execute And Deliver A Settlement  



City Council Continuation Meeting 
June 21, 2021 
Page | 3 
 
Agreement Between The City Of Hermantown And Stauber Properties Partnership (“Stauber Properties”). 
Councilors Geissler, Hauschild, Nelson, Peterson, Mayor Boucher, aye. Motion carried. 
 
2021-72 Resolution Authorizing And Directing The Mayor And City Clerk To Execute And Deliver 

A Settlement Agreement Between The City Of Hermantown And Northwood Properties 
Incorporated A/K/A Northwoods Properties Incorporated (“Northwoods”)  

 
Motion made by Councilor Nelson, seconded by Councilor Geissler to adopt Resolution 2021-72, Resolution 
Authorizing And Directing The Mayor And City Clerk To Execute And Deliver A Settlement Agreement 
Between The City Of Hermantown And Northwood Properties Incorporated A/K/A Northwoods Properties 
Incorporated (“Northwoods”). Councilors Geissler, Nelson, Mayor Boucher, aye. Councilors Hauschild, 
Peterson, nay. Motion carried. 
 
2021-73 Resolution Adopting Performance Measures  
 
Motion made by Councilor Peterson, seconded by Councilor Geissler to adopt Resolution 2021-73, 
Resolution Adopting Performance Measures. Councilors Geissler, Hauschild, Nelson, Peterson, Mayor 
Boucher, aye. Motion carried. 
 
2021-74 Resolution Approving The Removal Of The Gates At Stebner Park  
 
Motion made by Councilor Peterson, seconded by Councilor Nelson to adopt Resolution 2021-74, 
Resolution Approving The Removal Of The Gates At Stebner Park. Councilors Geissler, Hauschild, Nelson, 
Peterson, Mayor Boucher, aye. Motion carried. 
 
2021-75 Resolution Receiving Updated Preliminary Engineering Report And Calling For Public 

Hearing For Road Improvement District No. 538 (Richard Avenue And Lindgren Road)  
 
Motion made by Councilor Hauschild, seconded by Councilor Nelson to adopt Resolution 2021-75, 
Resolution Receiving Updated Preliminary Engineering Report And Calling For Public Hearing For Road 
Improvement District No. 538 (Richard Avenue And Lindgren Road). Councilors Geissler, Hauschild, 
Nelson, Peterson, Mayor Boucher, aye. Motion carried. 
 
Motion made by Councilor Peterson, seconded by Councilor Geissler to close the regular meeting of the 
Hermantown City Council at 6:55 p.m. and go into a closed session pursuant to the following statute and 
stated reason: MN Statutes Section 13D.05 subd 3(a) to discuss the City Administrator’s performance 
evaluation. Motion carried. 
 
Motion made by Councilor Nelson, seconded by Councilor Peterson to re-convene into open session at 7:20 
p.m. Motion carried. 
 
Motion made by Councilor Hauschild, seconded by Councilor Peterson to recess the meeting at 7:25 p.m. 
Motion carried. 
 
       ________________________________ 
         Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________ 
      Clerk 



PAYROLL CHECKS 

Electronic Checks - #70659 - 70707 82,451.45

Electronic Checks - #70646 - 70652 3,163.90

LIABILITY CHECKS 

Electronic Checks - #70653 - 70658 $64,571.04

Electronic Checks - #70643 - 70645 $612.60

Check - #67538 - 67543 $68,472.00

Checks - #67546 - 67547 $1,159.10

Check - #67589 $928.88

PAYROLL EXPENSE TOTAL $221,358.97

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

Checks - #67544-67545 $2,243.05

Checks - #67548-67588 $206,297.77

Electronic Payments -#99863-99866 $24,315.02

CITY OF HERMANTOWN

CHECKS #67538-#67589
06/16/2021-06/30/2021



ACCOUNTS PAYABLE TOTAL $232,855.84

TOTAL $454,214.81



CITY OF HERMANTOWN, MN 06/16/2021-06/30/2021
Check # is between 67538 and 67589 or Check # is between -99866 and -99863

6/29/2021 Page 1

Fund Account Department Vendor Name Description Amount Check #

101 421100 Police Administration EMPOWER RETIREMENT MARSOLEK SICK TIME TO HCSP      23,217.60  -99866
101 217450 Employee Flexplan FURTHER ELECTRONIC PAYMENTS Claim Reimbursement - Electron         122.90  -99865
101 217450 Employee Flexplan FURTHER ELECTRONIC PAYMENTS CLAIM REIMB- ELECTRONIC PYMT         226.80  -99864
101 217450 Employee Flexplan FURTHER ELECTRONIC PAYMENTS Claim Reimb- Electronic Pymt         747.72  -99863
101 134000 Retiree Insurance/Telephone Reimb. MN LIFE Inactives (Life Ins July)           4.05   67544
101 134000 Retiree Insurance/Telephone Reimb. NORTHEAST SERVICE COOPERATIVE Inactives (Health Ins July)         850.30   67545
101 421100 Police Administration NORTHEAST SERVICE COOPERATIVE Inactives (Health Ins July)       1,388.70   67545
101 419901 City Hall  & Police Building Maintenance A G O'BRIEN PLUMBING & HEATING INC Sprinkler Inspection FD/PD         195.89   67548
101 419901 City Hall  & Police Building Maintenance A G O'BRIEN PLUMBING & HEATING INC Sprinkler System Inspection         344.96   67548
101 452100 Parks A G O'BRIEN PLUMBING & HEATING INC Test the RPZ (Soccer Fields)         193.00   67548
101 419901 City Hall  & Police Building Maintenance A G O'BRIEN PLUMBING & HEATING INC Water Heater (PD)      15,686.00   67548
240 432510 Trunk Sewer Construction ANDERSON, GOLDSCHMIDT & ROBERTS Easemt Acq Serv(Trunk Sewer)         200.00   67549
101 419100 Community Development ARROWHEAD ABSTRACT & TITLE CO. O-308722 O & E Golden Oaks          75.00   67550
101 419100 Community Development ARROWHEAD ABSTRACT & TITLE CO. O-308715 O & E Tessier          75.00   67550
602 494500 Sewer Maintenance ASDCO CONSTRUCTION SUPPLY Manhole Seal Water Proofing       1,549.40   67551
101 419901 City Hall  & Police Building Maintenance BLUE TARP FINANCIAL Gorilla Grip          18.99   67552
475 431150 Street Improvements BRAUN INTERTEC CORPORATION MnDotSoilTest/ProjMgntLavJct         962.50   67553
602 494500 Sewer Maintenance BRAUN INTERTEC CORPORATION Sanitary Sewer Inspections       1,963.75   67553
101 421100 Police Administration BRAY & REED LTD. Prosecution Services May       4,500.00   67554
101 431100 Street Department CINTAS CORPORATION Uniforms          10.80   67555
101 431100 Street Department CINTAS CORPORATION Uniforms          10.80   67555
101 431100 Street Department CINTAS CORPORATION Uniforms          26.41   67555
101 431901 City Garage CINTAS CORPORATION Supplies          11.25   67555
101 431100 Street Department CINTAS CORPORATION Uniforms          26.41   67555
101 431901 City Garage CINTAS CORPORATION Mats at PW          20.58   67555
101 431901 City Garage CINTAS CORPORATION Supplies          29.75   67555
101 419901 City Hall  & Police Building Maintenance CINTAS CORPORATION Mats at FD/PD          30.72   67555
101 419901 City Hall  & Police Building Maintenance CINTAS CORPORATION Mats at CH           8.88   67555
101 431901 City Garage CINTAS CORPORATION Mats at PW           2.10   67555
601 494400 Water Administration and General CITIES DIGITAL INC LaserficheCloudupgradeLindsay         225.66   67556
602 494900 Sewer Administration and General CITIES DIGITAL INC LaserficheCloudupgradeLindsay         225.67   67556
101 419100 Community Development CW TECHNOLOGY GROUP INC SetupNewMeraki (replace MR16)          20.14   67557
601 494400 Water Administration and General CW TECHNOLOGY GROUP INC SetupNewMeraki (replace MR16)          20.14   67557
101 421100 Police Administration CW TECHNOLOGY GROUP INC SetupNewMeraki (replace MR16)         127.53   67557
101 415300 Administration & Finance CW TECHNOLOGY GROUP INC SetupNewMeraki (replace MR16)          40.28   67557
101 413100 Mayor CW TECHNOLOGY GROUP INC SetupNewMeraki (replace MR16)           6.71   67557
602 494900 Sewer Administration and General CW TECHNOLOGY GROUP INC SetupNewMeraki (replace MR16)          20.14   67557
101 431100 Street Department CW TECHNOLOGY GROUP INC SetupNewMeraki (replace MR16)          26.85   67557



CITY OF HERMANTOWN, MN 06/16/2021-06/30/2021
Check # is between 67538 and 67589 or Check # is between -99866 and -99863

6/29/2021 Page 2

Fund Account Department Vendor Name Description Amount Check #

101 424100 Building Inspection CW TECHNOLOGY GROUP INC SetupNewMeraki (replace MR16)           6.71   67557
101 419901 City Hall  & Police Building Maintenance DALCO Cone Bowl         265.00   67558
101 419901 City Hall  & Police Building Maintenance DOORCO, INC. Door Repair         225.00   67559
101 421100 Police Administration DSC COMMUNICATIONS Radio Repair         236.40   67560
101 452100 Parks DULUTH READY MIX INC ConcreteBattingCagesFichtner         490.00   67561
101 421100 Police Administration DVS RENEWAL Balance 109NTN 2014 Dodge Tabs           5.00   67562
323 471000 Debt Service EHLERS & ASSOCIATES INC 2021 Continuing Disclosure Rpt         380.00   67563
318 471000 Debt Service EHLERS & ASSOCIATES INC 2021 Continuing Disclosure Rpt         380.00   67563
325 471000 Debt Service EHLERS & ASSOCIATES INC 2021 Continuing Disclosure Rpt         380.00   67563
321 471000 Debt Service EHLERS & ASSOCIATES INC 2021 Continuing Disclosure Rpt         380.00   67563
320 471000 Debt Service EHLERS & ASSOCIATES INC 2021 Continuing Disclosure Rpt         380.00   67563
324 471000 Debt Service EHLERS & ASSOCIATES INC 2021 Continuing Disclosure Rpt         380.00   67563
315 471000 Debt Service EHLERS & ASSOCIATES INC 2021 Continuing Disclosure Rpt         380.00   67563
327 471000 Debt Service EHLERS & ASSOCIATES INC 2021 Continuing Disclosure Rpt         380.00   67563
326 471000 Debt Service EHLERS & ASSOCIATES INC 2021 Continuing Disclosure Rpt         380.00   67563
322 471000 Debt Service EHLERS & ASSOCIATES INC 2021 Continuing Disclosure Rpt         380.00   67563
101 419901 City Hall  & Police Building Maintenance ESC SYSTEMS SOUND AND LIFE SAFETY City Hall Repairs         494.50   67564
602 494500 Sewer Maintenance ESS BROTHERS & SONS INC Manhole Castings       4,388.00   67565
240 432510 Trunk Sewer Construction EVERGREEN REAL ESTATE INC Easemt Acqu Serv Trunk Sewer         175.00   67566
240 432510 Trunk Sewer Construction F I SALTER REAL ESTATE, INC. Easemt Acqu Serv Trunk Sewer         900.00   67567
101 419901 City Hall  & Police Building Maintenance GOODIN COMPANY INC Gauge for Boiler          29.38   67568
101 419100 Community Development HERMANTOWN STAR LLC PH PZ ran 6/3/21          49.50   67569
101 411300 Ordinance, Public Notice and Proceedings HERMANTOWN STAR LLC Financial Report         577.50   67569
101 415300 Administration & Finance MCFOA MCMC Application (Engseth)          40.00   67570
275 452200 Community Building MEDIACOM EWC - Line for Elevator         184.27   67571
101 419901 City Hall  & Police Building Maintenance MENARD INC Batteries           6.54   67572
101 421100 Police Administration MENARD INC Range Supplies          99.50   67572
101 421100 Police Administration MENARD INC Range Supplies         518.47   67572
601 494300 Water Distribution MENARD INC Ziploc Bags for H20 Supplies           4.98   67572
101 452100 Parks MENARD INC Ratchet Straps/Cable Ties          24.82   67572
101 452100 Parks MENARD INC 2-Cycle Oil          19.72   67572
601 494300 Water Distribution MN DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH WaterSuppSysOper/Bjonskaas          23.00   67573
601 494300 Water Distribution MN DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH WaterSuppSysOper/Durovec          23.00   67573
275 452200 Community Building MN ENERGY RESOURCES CORP Natural Gas EWC       4,222.62   67574
101 431901 City Garage MN ENERGY RESOURCES CORP Natural Gas Lightning Dr          36.59   67574
601 494400 Water Administration and General MN ENERGY RESOURCES CORP Natural Gas Lightning Dr          41.81   67574
101 419901 City Hall  & Police Building Maintenance MN ENERGY RESOURCES CORP Natural Gas CH/PD         313.18   67574
602 494900 Sewer Administration and General MN ENERGY RESOURCES CORP Natural Gas Lightning Dr          26.14   67574



CITY OF HERMANTOWN, MN 06/16/2021-06/30/2021
Check # is between 67538 and 67589 or Check # is between -99866 and -99863

6/29/2021 Page 3

Fund Account Department Vendor Name Description Amount Check #

101 452200 Community Building MN ENERGY RESOURCES CORP Natural Gas old CH          92.38   67574
101 431901 City Garage MN ENERGY RESOURCES CORP Natural Gas Comm Bldg          38.99   67574
101 431901 City Garage MN ENERGY RESOURCES CORP Natural Gas old CH          10.26   67574
101 422901 Firehall #1  Maple Grove Road MN ENERGY RESOURCES CORP Natural Gas FH#1         382.77   67574
605 431160 Street Lighting MN POWER 3060281959 St Lghts Roundabout          16.31   67575
605 431160 Street Lighting MN POWER 6175310000 Street Lights         620.75   67575
602 494900 Sewer Administration and General MN POWER 4995600000 Electricity PW          88.93   67575
601 494400 Water Administration and General MN POWER 4995600000 Electricity PW         133.40   67575
602 494900 Sewer Administration and General MN POWER 0973881171 Sewer         514.84   67575
101 422902 Firehall #2  Morris Thomas Road MN POWER 4995600000 Electricity FH#2          84.64   67575
101 419901 City Hall  & Police Building Maintenance MN POWER 4995600000 Electricity CH       2,396.21   67575
101 422903 Firehall #3  Midway Road MN POWER 4995600000 Electricity FH#3          64.80   67575
101 422901 Firehall #1  Maple Grove Road MN POWER 4995600000 Electricity FH#1       1,532.00   67575
101 431901 City Garage MN POWER 4995600000 Electricity PW         222.33   67575
101 452100 Parks MN POWER 0606881181 Parks         399.61   67575
101 431901 City Garage MN POWER 4995600000 Electricity Maple G          18.33   67575
605 431160 Street Lighting MN POWER 0234310000 Overhead St Lights         414.60   67575
605 431160 Street Lighting MN POWER 1424100000 Street Lights         224.09   67575
605 431160 Street Lighting MN POWER 0733871171 Traffic Lights         633.53   67575
605 431160 Street Lighting MN POWER 0247020000 Street Lights         338.87   67575
605 431160 Street Lighting MN POWER 0041881181 Street Lights         410.86   67575
101 452200 Community Building MN POWER 0606881181 Comm Bldg         434.72   67575
601 494400 Water Administration and General MN POWER 3623400000 Electricity Water         529.51   67575
101 431100 Street Department MONARCH PAVING COMPANY Cold Mix/Pothole Mix       1,695.57   67576
101 421100 Police Administration NORTH COUNTRY CHEVROLET 2021 Chev Tahoe #360214      39,037.88   67577
101 421100 Police Administration NORTH COUNTRY CHEVROLET 2021 Chev Tahoe #361418      35,037.88   67577
101 431100 Street Department NORTHERN STATES SUPPLY INC Cable Ties/Safety Glasses          54.26   67578
101 431100 Street Department NORTHERN STATES SUPPLY INC Dark Safety Glasses          66.96   67578
101 419100 Community Development NORTHLAND CONSULTING ENGINEERS L.L.P. PO2324 Zierden/Weets Dev         390.00   67579
101 419100 Community Development NORTHLAND CONSULTING ENGINEERS L.L.P. PO2320 Accurate Auto          65.00   67579
475 431150 Street Improvements NORTHLAND CONSULTING ENGINEERS L.L.P. Old Hwy 2 Reclamation       1,755.00   67579
475 431150 Street Improvements NORTHLAND CONSULTING ENGINEERS L.L.P. PO2333-RichLindUpdateEng Rpt         910.00   67579
240 432510 Trunk Sewer Construction NORTHLAND CONSULTING ENGINEERS L.L.P. Herm Trunk Sewer Spur Sec 24       8,710.00   67579
601 494400 Water Administration and General NORTHLAND CONSULTING ENGINEERS L.L.P. Morris Thomas Rd - Utility Rel         485.00   67579
602 494900 Sewer Administration and General NORTHLAND CONSULTING ENGINEERS L.L.P. Sanitary Sewer Planning         580.00   67579
412 419100 Community Development NORTHLAND CONSULTING ENGINEERS L.L.P. Keene Creek Trail       4,380.00   67579
402 431150 Street Improvements NORTHLAND CONSULTING ENGINEERS L.L.P. Ugstad Rd SP 202-101-014         910.00   67579
101 214500 Escrow Deposits Payable NORTHLAND CONSULTING ENGINEERS L.L.P. PO2311 Jenny Farms         130.00   67579



CITY OF HERMANTOWN, MN 06/16/2021-06/30/2021
Check # is between 67538 and 67589 or Check # is between -99866 and -99863

6/29/2021 Page 4

Fund Account Department Vendor Name Description Amount Check #

101 431130 City Engineer NORTHLAND CONSULTING ENGINEERS L.L.P. Pre-Agenda, Four Square         390.00   67579
475 431150 Street Improvements NORTHLAND CONSULTING ENGINEERS L.L.P. Lav Jct Rd Reconstruction      34,305.00   67579
101 419100 Community Development NORTHLAND CONSULTING ENGINEERS L.L.P. PO2334 Pillars          65.00   67579
101 431130 City Engineer NORTHLAND CONSULTING ENGINEERS L.L.P. PO2313 MSA D1 Fed Proj         260.00   67579
601 494400 Water Administration and General PITNEY BOWES INC EZ Seal/Ink/InkPad          85.63   67580
602 494900 Sewer Administration and General PITNEY BOWES INC EZ Seal/Ink/InkPad          85.62   67580
101 415300 Administration & Finance PITNEY BOWES INC EZ Seal/Ink/InkPad         171.25   67580
101 415300 Administration & Finance SAM'S CLUB DIRECT CH Supplies         154.01   67581
101 421100 Police Administration SAM'S CLUB DIRECT PD Supplies          74.32   67581
101 419901 City Hall  & Police Building Maintenance SAM'S CLUB DIRECT Membership dues          40.00   67581
101 415300 Administration & Finance SAM'S CLUB DIRECT Membership dues          45.00   67581
101 431100 Street Department SAM'S CLUB DIRECT PW Supplies          62.92   67581
601 494300 Water Distribution SATHERS, LLC Class 5       4,441.50   67582
601 494300 Water Distribution SATHERS, LLC Class 5      11,259.00   67582
101 421100 Police Administration ST LOUIS COUNTY AUDITOR 2021 Everbridge billing       2,565.20   67583
101 419100 Community Development ST LOUIS COUNTY RECORDERS OFFICE KTJ 360 Dev Agmt Amendment          46.00   67584
101 419100 Community Development ST LOUIS COUNTY RECORDERS OFFICE Doblar SUP          46.00   67584
101 419901 City Hall  & Police Building Maintenance STACK BROS MECHANICAL Cooling Valve         712.00   67585
101 419901 City Hall  & Police Building Maintenance STACK BROS MECHANICAL Control Valve       1,210.00   67585
101 421100 Police Administration TROY'S BP AMOCO INC Vehicle Repair Squad 20         666.12   67586
101 431100 Street Department UNITED RENTALS (NORTH AMERICA) INC H20 Truck Rental - Chloride       1,510.00   67587
101 431100 Street Department VIKING INDUSTRIAL CENTER Safety Vests/Gloves/Hats         410.98   67588

Totals: 136 records printed     232,855.84 



City Council Agenda Report                                                                                      Resolution 2021-76                             
July 6, 2021                                                                                                                  Agenda Item: 12-A 
 

Working together to serve and build our community. 

TO: Mayor & City Council 
 

 
FROM:  Eric Johnson, Community 

Development Director 

 
DATE: June 24, 2021 Meeting Date:  7/6/21 

 
SUBJECT: Golden Oaks – Assignment of 

and Amendment to SUP 
Agenda Item: 12-A Resolution 2021-76 

 
REQUESTED ACTION 
Approve the documents associated with the assignment of and the amendment to the 2005 Special 
Use Permit (SUP) for Golden Oaks. 

 
DESCRIPTION OF REQUEST 
In 2005, the City approved a Special Use Permit (SUP) for David Kolquist to construct a 30 bed 
assisted living facility in a R-3, Residential zoning district.  A condition of the SUP was that the 
permit was not assignable except with the written consent of the City of Hermantown.   
 
This facility (Golden Oaks) was sold in the spring of 2021.  The new owner plans to continue 
operation of the assisted living facility and is requesting that the SUP be assigned to him as the 
new owner.  The City Attorney has prepared documents relating to this proposed assignment. 
 
During the City Attorney’s research, it was discovered that the SUP was granted to a larger land 
parcel.  In 2005, the Golden Oaks parcel was part of the 4073 Reinke Road property.  Once the 
Golden Oaks facility was constructed, the original parcel was subdivided into two parcels –  
395-0010-05875 (4073 Reinke Road, with its existing home) and 395-0010-05870 (Golden 
Oaks).  However, the SUP still pertained to both parcels. 
 
As part of this action, the City Attorney has drafted a Partial Release of property 395-0010-
05875 (4073 Reinke Road) from the SUP.  This release would ‘clear the title’ for this parcel 
which will be a benefit to future land transactions associated with this parcel.  The SUP will still 
be in place for parcel 395-0010-05870 (Golden Oaks). 
 
Lastly, the City Attorney has drafted an Amendment to the SUP which deletes Section 2 (non-
assignable permit) and amends the property description for which the SUP applies to. 

 
SOURCE OF FUNDS (if applicable) 

 
ATTACHMENTS 
SUP – Partial Release 
Amendment to SUP 
Consent to Assignment of SUP 
 



Resolution No. 2021-76 
 

RESOLUTION CONSENTING TO AN ASSIGNMENT  
OF THE SPECIAL USE PERMIT GRANTED TO DAVID KOLQUIST  

AND AMENDING RESOLUTION NO. 2005-95 
 

  
 WHEREAS, the City of Hermantown (“City”), Resolution No. 2005-95, granted a Special Use 
Permit (“SUP”) to David Kolquist (“Developer”) for the development of a 30-bed assisted living facility 
now known as the Golden Oaks Assisted Living facility (“Project”) in Hermantown, Minnesota and legally 
described on Exhibit A attached hereto; and  
 

WHEREAS, the SUP is dated August 16, 2005 and was recorded on October 17, 2005 as Document 
No. 806718.0 with the Registrar of Titles of St. Louis County, Minnesota; and  

 
WHEREAS, Reinke Road Property LLC (“Purchaser”) has proposed to purchase the Project; and 
 
WHEREAS, Section 2 of the SUP states that the SUP is not assignable, except with the written 

consent of the City of Hermantown; and  
 
 WHEREAS, Purchaser has requested the City to consent the assignment of the SUP; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City staff have reviewed this request and recommends that the City Council 
approve the request of Purchaser to consent to the assignment and also have recommended that the 
requirement in the SUP for consents by City to future assignments of the SUP be deleted; and  
 

WHEREAS, a parcel of property included on Exhibit A to the SUP and legally described on Exhibit 
B attached hereto (“Wunner Parcel”) is not utilized in the Project; and  

 
WHEREAS, City administrative staff have recommended that the Wunner parcel be deleted from 

the legal description of the property covered by the SUP and the development agreement related to the 
Project; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council has considered this matter and believes it is in the best interest of the 
City to consent to the assignment of the SUP by Developer. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Hermantown, 
Minnesota as follows: 
 

1. The SUP is hereby amended by removing the requirements of Section 2. 
 
2. City consents to the assignment of the Special Use Permit to Purchaser. 
 
3. The City approves the amendment of the SUP to eliminate the need for consents to 

subsequent assignments of the SUP.   
 
4. The Wunner Parcel is hereby removed from the property covered by the SUP and the 

development agreement related to the Project. 
 



5. The Mayor and City Clerk are authorized and directed to execute whatever documents are 
needed to effectuate the assignment of the Special Use Permit, amendment of the SUP and release of the 
Wunner Parcel from the SUP and development agreement related to the SUP.  
 
 
 Councilor ____ introduced the foregoing resolution and moved its adoption. 
 
 
 The motion for the adoption of such resolution was seconded by Councilor ____ and, upon a vote 
being taken thereon, the following voted in favor thereof: 
 
Councilors  
 
and the following voted in opposition thereto: 
 
None 
 
 WHEREUPON, such resolution was declared duly passed and adopted July 6, 2021. 
 
  



EXHIBIT A 
 
Parcel A 
 
North 170.00 feet of that part of the North 30 acres of the East ¾ of the E1/2 of the NW1/4, Section 22, 
Township 50 North of Range 15 West of the Fourth Principal Meridian described as follows: 
 
Commencing at the NE corner of said NW1/4, Section 22, thence South 00 degrees 27 minutes 33 seconds 
East (assumed bearing), along the East line of said NW1/4, a distance of 675.01 feet to the point of 
beginning of the parcel of land to be described: thence South 89 degrees 47 minutes 34 seconds West, along 
a line 675.00 feet distant and parallel with the North line of said NW1/4, a distance of 498.40 feet to the 
East line of the W1/2 of W1/2 of E1/2 of E1/2 of NW1/4; thence South 00 degrees 25 minutes 31 seconds 
East, along said East line, a distance of 636.03 feet to the South line of said North 30 acres of the East 3/4 
of the E1/2 of the NW1/4, thence North 89 degrees 47 minutes 34 seconds East, along said South line, a 
distance of 498.78 feet to the East line of said NW1/4; thence North 00 degrees 27 minutes 33 seconds 
West, along said East line, a distance of 636.03 feet to the point of beginning. 
 
Certificate of Title No. 331824.0 
 
Parcel B 
 
That part of the North 30 acres of the East 3/4 of the E1/2 of the NW1/4, Section 22, Township 50 North 
of Range 15 West of the Fourth Principal Meridian described as follows: 
 
Commencing at the NE corner of said NW1/4, Section 22, thence South 00 degrees 27 minutes 33 seconds 
East (assumed bearing), along the East line of said NW1/4, a distance of 675.01 feet to the point of 
beginning of the parcel of land to be described: thence South 89 degrees 47 minutes 34 seconds West, along 
a line 675.00 feet distant and parallel with the North line of said NW1/4, a distance of 498.40 feet to the 
East line of the W1/2 of W1/2 of E1/2 of E1/2 of NW1/4; thence South 00 degrees 25 minutes 31 seconds 
East, along said East line, a distance of 636.03 feet to the South line of said North 30 acres of the East 3/4 
of the E1/2 of the NW1/4, thence North 89 degrees 47 minutes 34 seconds East, along said South line, a 
distance of 498.78 feet to the East line of said NW1/4; thence North 00 degrees 27 minutes 33 seconds 
West, along said East line, a distance of 636.03 feet to the point of beginning EXCEPT the North 170.00 
feet thereof. 
 
Certificate of Title No. 337649.0 
 
Except: The North 170 feet thereof. 
  



EXHIBIT B 
Wunner Parcel 

 
 
North 170.00 feet of that part of the North 30 acres of the East ¾ of the E1/2 of the NW1/4, Section 22, 
Township 50 North of Range 15 West of the Fourth Principal Meridian described as follows: 
 
Commencing at the NE corner of said NW1/4, Section 22, thence South 00 degrees 27 minutes 33 seconds 
East (assumed bearing), along the East line of said NW1/4, a distance of 675.01 feet to the point of 
beginning of the parcel of land to be described: thence South 89 degrees 47 minutes 34 seconds West, along 
a line 675.00 feet distant and parallel with the North line of said NW1/4, a distance of 498.40 feet to the 
East line of the W1/2 of W1/2 of E1/2 of E1/2 of NW1/4; thence South 00 degrees 25 minutes 31 seconds 
East, along said East line, a distance of 636.03 feet to the South line of said North 30 acres of the East 3/4 
of the E1/2 of the NW1/4, thence North 89 degrees 47 minutes 34 seconds East, along said South line, a 
distance of 498.78 feet to the East line of said NW1/4; thence North 00 degrees 27 minutes 33 seconds 
West, along said East line, a distance of 636.03 feet to the point of beginning. 
 
Certificate of Title No. 331824.0 
 
 



 Page 1 of 3 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(Top 3 inches reserved for recording data) 

PARTIAL RELEASE 
 
 DATE: _______________, 2021 
 
The City of Hermantown hereby releases that certain real property in St. Louis County, Minnesota, legally described on 
Exhibit A attached hereto, from all of the terms and conditions of the Special Use Permit dated August 16, 2005 and 
recorded on October 17, 2005 as Document No. 806718.0 with the Registrar of Titles of St. Louis County, Minnesota 
and all of the terms and conditions of the Development Agreement dated May 12, 2003 and recorded on July 2, 2003 as 
Document No. 753207 with the Registrar of Titles of St. Louis County, Minnesota.  
 
Check here if all or part of the described real property is Registered (Torrens)   
 
GRANTOR:  
 
City of Hermantown 
 
 
 
 
     By:                    
            Its:  Mayor 
 
 
 
And By:                   
                Its:  City Clerk 
 
 
 

  
 



Page 2 of 3 PARTIAL RELEASE 

State of Minnesota, County of St. Louis  
 
 
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ____ day of ____________, 2021, by 
_____________________ and ____________________, the Mayor and City Clerk, respectively, of the City of 
Hermantown on behalf of the City of Hermantown. 
 
 

(Stamp)   
                      
(signature of notarial officer) 
 
Title (and Rank):                       
 
My commission expires:                      
    (month/day/year) 

 
 
THIS INSTRUMENT WAS DRAFTED BY: 
Steven C. Overom 
Overom Law 
11 E. Superior Street 
Suite 543 
Duluth, MN 55802 

  

 
  



Page 3 of 3 PARTIAL RELEASE 

 
EXHIBIT A 

Legal Description 
 
 
North 170.00 feet of that part of the North 30 acres of the East ¾ of the E1/2 of the NW1/4, Section 22, Township 50 
North of Range 15 West of the Fourth Principal Meridian described as follows: 
 
Commencing at the NE corner of said NW1/4, Section 22, thence South 00 degrees 27 minutes 33 seconds East 
(assumed bearing), along the East line of said NW1/4, a distance of 675.01 feet to the point of beginning of the parcel of 
land to be described: thence South 89 degrees 47 minutes 34 seconds West, along a line 675.00 feet distant and parallel 
with the North line of said NW1/4, a distance of 498.40 feet to the East line of the W1/2 of W1/2 of E1/2 of E1/2 of NW1/4; 
thence South 00 degrees 25 minutes 31 seconds East, along said East line, a distance of 636.03 feet to the South line 
of said North 30 acres of the East 3/4 of the E1/2 of the NW1/4, thence North 89 degrees 47 minutes 34 seconds East, 
along said South line, a distance of 498.78 feet to the East line of said NW1/4; thence North 00 degrees 27 minutes 33 
seconds West, along said East line, a distance of 636.03 feet to the point of beginning. 
 
Certificate of Title No. 331824.0 
 



 Page 1 of 3 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(Top 3 inches reserved for recording data) 

AMENDMENT TO SPECIAL USE PERMIT  
 
 DATE: _______________, 2021 
 
            The City of Hermantown hereby amends that certain Special Use Permit (“SUP”) dated August 16, 2005 and 
recorded on October 17, 2005 as Document No. 806718.0 with the Registrar of Titles of St. Louis County, Minnesota as 
follows: 
 

1. Section 2 of the SUP is hereby deleted. 
 
2. The property covered by the SUP is hereby amended to be the property legally described on Exhibit A 

attached hereto. 
 
3. Except as amended by this Amendment to Special Use Permit, the remaining terms and conditions of 

the SUP remain in full force and effect.  
 
Check here if all or part of the described real property is Registered (Torrens)   
  



Page 2 of 3 AMENDMENT TO SPECIAL USE PERMIT 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City of Hermantown has caused this Amendment to Special Use Permit to be 

executed by its duly authorized representatives as of the day and year first above written. 
 
City of Hermantown 
 
 
 
 
     By:                    
            Its:  Mayor 
 
 
 
And By:                   
                Its:  City Clerk 
 
 
 

  
 

 
State of Minnesota, County of St. Louis  
 
 
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ____ day of ____________, 2021, by 
_____________________ and ____________________, the Mayor and City Clerk, respectively, of the City of 
Hermantown on behalf of the City of Hermantown. 
 
 

(Stamp)   
                      
(signature of notarial officer) 
 
Title (and Rank):                       
 
My commission expires:                      
    (month/day/year) 

 
 
THIS INSTRUMENT WAS DRAFTED BY: 
Steven C. Overom 
Overom Law 
11 E. Superior Street 
Suite 543 
Duluth, MN 55802 

  

 
  



Page 3 of 3 AMENDMENT TO SPECIAL USE PERMIT 

 
EXHIBIT A 

Legal Description 
 
 
That part of the North 30 acres of the East 3/4 of the E1/2 of the NW1/4, Section 22, Township 50 North of Range 15 
West of the Fourth Principal Meridian described as follows: 
 
Commencing at the NE corner of said NW1/4, Section 22, thence South 00 degrees 27 minutes 33 seconds East 
(assumed bearing), along the East line of said NW1/4, a distance of 675.01 feet to the point of beginning of the parcel of 
land to be described: thence South 89 degrees 47 minutes 34 seconds West, along a line 675.00 feet distant and parallel 
with the North line of said NW1/4, a distance of 498.40 feet to the East line of the W1/2 of W1/2 of E1/2 of E1/2 of NW1/4; 
thence South 00 degrees 25 minutes 31 seconds East, along said East line, a distance of 636.03 feet to the South line 
of said North 30 acres of the East 3/4 of the E1/2 of the NW1/4, thence North 89 degrees 47 minutes 34 seconds East, 
along said South line, a distance of 498.78 feet to the East line of said NW1/4; thence North 00 degrees 27 minutes 33 
seconds West, along said East line, a distance of 636.03 feet to the point of beginning EXCEPT the North 170.00 feet 
thereof. 
 
Certificate of Title No. 337649.0 
 



 Page 1 of 3 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(Top 3 inches reserved for recording data) 

CONSENT TO ASSIGNMENT OF SPECIAL USE PERMIT 
 
 DATE: _______________, 2021 
             

The City of Hermantown, the issuer of that certain Special Use Permit (“SUP”) dated August 16, 2005 and 
recorded on October 17, 2005 as Document No. 806718.0 with the Registrar of Titles of St. Louis County, Minnesota of 
the property described in Exhibit A attached hereto, hereby consents to the assignment of such SUP to Reinke Road 
Property LLC.  

 
 
Check here if all or part of the described real property is Registered (Torrens)   
  



Page 2 of 3 CONSENT TO ASSIGNMENT OF SPECIAL USE PERMIT 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, The City of Hermantown  has caused this Consent to Assignment of Special Use 

Permit to be executed on its behalf  as of the day and year first above written. 
 
City of Hermantown 
 
 
 
 
     By:                    
            Its:  Mayor 
 
 
 
And By:                   
                Its:  City Clerk 
 
 
 

  
 

 
State of Minnesota, County of St. Louis  
 
 
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ____ day of ____________, 2021, by 
_____________________ and ____________________, the Mayor and City Clerk, respectively, of the City of 
Hermantown on behalf of the City of Hermantown. 
 
 

(Stamp)   
                      
(signature of notarial officer) 
 
Title (and Rank):                       
 
My commission expires:                      
    (month/day/year) 

 
 
THIS INSTRUMENT WAS DRAFTED BY: 
Steven C. Overom 
Overom Law 
11 E. Superior Street 
Suite 543 
Duluth, MN 55802 

  

 
  



Page 3 of 3 CONSENT TO ASSIGNMENT OF SPECIAL USE PERMIT 

 
EXHIBIT A 

Legal Description 
 
Parcel A 
 
North 170.00 feet of that part of the North 30 acres of the East ¾ of the E1/2 of the NW1/4, Section 22, Township 50 
North of Range 15 West of the Fourth Principal Meridian described as follows: 
 
Commencing at the NE corner of said NW1/4, Section 22, thence South 00 degrees 27 minutes 33 seconds East 
(assumed bearing), along the East line of said NW1/4, a distance of 675.01 feet to the point of beginning of the parcel of 
land to be described: thence South 89 degrees 47 minutes 34 seconds West, along a line 675.00 feet distant and parallel 
with the North line of said NW1/4, a distance of 498.40 feet to the East line of the W1/2 of W1/2 of E1/2 of E1/2 of NW1/4; 
thence South 00 degrees 25 minutes 31 seconds East, along said East line, a distance of 636.03 feet to the South line 
of said North 30 acres of the East 3/4 of the E1/2 of the NW1/4, thence North 89 degrees 47 minutes 34 seconds East, 
along said South line, a distance of 498.78 feet to the East line of said NW1/4; thence North 00 degrees 27 minutes 33 
seconds West, along said East line, a distance of 636.03 feet to the point of beginning. 
 
Certificate of Title No. 331824.0 
 
Parcel B 
 
That part of the North 30 acres of the East 3/4 of the E1/2 of the NW1/4, Section 22, Township 50 North of Range 15 
West of the Fourth Principal Meridian described as follows: 
 
Commencing at the NE corner of said NW1/4, Section 22, thence South 00 degrees 27 minutes 33 seconds East 
(assumed bearing), along the East line of said NW1/4, a distance of 675.01 feet to the point of beginning of the parcel of 
land to be described: thence South 89 degrees 47 minutes 34 seconds West, along a line 675.00 feet distant and parallel 
with the North line of said NW1/4, a distance of 498.40 feet to the East line of the W1/2 of W1/2 of E1/2 of E1/2 of NW1/4; 
thence South 00 degrees 25 minutes 31 seconds East, along said East line, a distance of 636.03 feet to the South line 
of said North 30 acres of the East 3/4 of the E1/2 of the NW1/4, thence North 89 degrees 47 minutes 34 seconds East, 
along said South line, a distance of 498.78 feet to the East line of said NW1/4; thence North 00 degrees 27 minutes 33 
seconds West, along said East line, a distance of 636.03 feet to the point of beginning EXCEPT the North 170.00 feet 
thereof. 
 
Certificate of Title No. 337649.0 
 
Except: The North 170 feet thereof. 
 



City Council Agenda Report                                                                                      Resolution 2021-77                            
July 6, 2021                                                                                                                  Agenda Item: 12-B 
 

Working together to serve and build our community. 

TO: Mayor & City Council 
 

 
FROM:  Eric Johnson, Community 

Development Director 

 
DATE: June 22, 2021 Meeting Date:  7/6/21 

 
SUBJECT: Development Agreement – Jenny 

Farms 
Agenda Item: 12-B Resolution 2021-77 

 
REQUESTED ACTION 
Approve execution of the Development Agreement between Shaine W. Stokke and City of 
Hermantown for the Jenny Farms development. 

 
DESCRIPTION OF REQUEST 
Requested is approval of the Development Agreement between Shaine W. Stokke (Developer) and 
the City of Hermantown (City) for the completion of public and private improvements associated 
with the Jenny Farms plat approved by the City Council on June 1, 2020.  The agreement is 
substantially in the form of the attached Development Agreement document. 
 
The project will be started in the summer of 2021 and commence throughout the 2021/2022 
building season. The Development Agreement includes an irrevocable letter of credit in the 
amount of 125% of the construction cost of the stormwater improvements that will be completed 
in association with the project. 
 

 
SOURCE OF FUNDS (if applicable) 

 
ATTACHMENTS 
Development Agreement 
 



Resolution No. 2021-77 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING 
THE MAYOR AND CITY CLERK TO EXECUTE AND DELIVER 

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT WITH SHAINE W. STOKKE 
   
 WHEREAS, Shaine W. Stokke (“Developer”) owns property located within the City of 
Hermantown; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Developer has requested the City to approve the Final Plat Permit for the (“Project”); 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Hermantown desires to enter into a Development Agreement with 
Developer for the Project; and 
 
 WHEREAS, a Development Agreement, substantially in the form of, has been prepared and is 
attached hereto; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council has considered this matter and believes it is in the best interest of the 
City to approve the Development Agreement and to authorize and direct the Mayor and City Clerk to enter 
into such Agreement on behalf of the City of Hermantown. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Hermantown, 
Minnesota as follows: 
 
 1. The Development Agreement attached hereto is hereby approved. 
 
 2. The Mayor and City Clerk are hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver such 

Agreement on behalf of the City of Hermantown. 
 
 Councilor _____ introduced the foregoing resolution and moved its adoption. 
 
 The motion for the adoption of such resolution was seconded by Councilor _____ and, upon a vote 
being taken thereon, the following voted in favor thereof: 
 
  Councilors 
 
and the following voted in opposition thereto: 
 
   
 
 WHEREUPON, such resolution was declared duly passed and adopted July 6, 2021. 
 
  



ACCEPTANCE OF RESOLUTION 
 

 Shaine W. Stokke (“Developer”) hereby acknowledges and accepts the conditions specified on the 
foregoing Resolution and covenants and agrees to comply with each and every such condition. 
 
 Applicant acknowledges that the failure to comply with all of the modifications and conditions shall 
constitute a violation of the Hermantown Zoning Ordinance and that the City of Hermantown may, in such 
event, exercise and enforce its rights against the undersigned by instituting any appropriate action or 
proceeding to prevent, restrain, correct or abate the violation or exercise the City’s rights with respect to any 
security provided by Applicant to secure its performance under the Development Agreement. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREAS, Shaine W. Stokke has executed this acceptance the _____ day of 
_______________, 2021. 
 
 DEVELOPER: 
 
 Shaine W. Stokke 
 
 
 By _____________________________________ 
       Its ___________________________________ 
       
 
STATE OF MINNESOTA   ) 
    )ss. 
COUNTY OF ST. LOUIS  ) 
 
 The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this _____ day of _______________, 2021, 
by Shaine W. Stokke. 
 
 
 ________________________________________ 
 Notary Public 
 



DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

BY AND BETWEEN 

SHAINE W. STOKKE 
("DEVELOPER'') 

AND 

CITY OF HERMANTOWN 

("CITY'') 

DatedasofChe __ dayof ______ , 2021 

11118 DOCUMl!NTW l,J!, D!IAl'raD BY: 

s-c.o-
~l.,rwl'UC 
11 &SI ~ Sl, Suite S43 
-. t.'lfmlaota $5802 
(118)~ 



DEVEWPMENT AGREEMENT 

nus AGREEMENT, made on or as of the __ day of 2021, by 
1111d between City of Hermantown, (hereinafter referred to as the "City") and Shaine W. Stokke 
(hereinafter referred to as the ''Developer"), is in re.9pOllSe to the following situation: 

A. The Developer bas reque6ted the City to approve the plat of Jenny Farms ("Plat'') 
which is platted over the p.top,erty located in St. wuis C.Ounty, Minnesota legally descn"bed as 
follows: 

See Exhibtt A attached hereto ("Property") 

B. The City will not approve the Plat until the Developer installs pe:nrument wetland 
matkers, and coDStructa StormWffla: Improvements and a Roadway (as such tenns are defined 
herein) and which are collectively !dared to as ''Infrasl!uc1ure lmprovema:its"). 

NOW, THEREFORE,. in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual obligations of the 
parties hereto, each of them does hereby covenant and agree with the other as follows: 

1. To pay all cost!! incurred by the City in comiection wi1h the initial rmew and 
consideration of the Plat, prior to the cc.ecution of the Plat and thereafter in C0.1111cction with the 
determination of whelher the conditions to the approval of the Plat or the construciion of the 
Infrastructure [mp:rovements have been completed in aooordance with the Plans and SpecificaliOllS, 
including, without lirniWion, fees incurred by the City Engineer fur inspecting the construction of 
Jnfrast:ructun, Improvcn:i.ents, within ten (10) days of being invoiced by1he City for such costs. 

2. Developer acknowledgea that it :is a requira:nent of the City that the Developer bear 
all costs of construction of the Infrastructure Improvements and that the Infrastructure 
Improvements must be constructed in aooordance wi1h Plans and Specifications approved by the 
City Engineer and City Public Works Director. 

3. Befure the Plat will be exe<:Ulcd by the City the Developer must: 

3.1 Comply with the provisions of Section 8 hereof (Infrutructurc Plans and 
Specificatio.ns approved). 

3.2 Developer shall provide a security deposit equal to 125% of the cost of 
oonstnu:tion of1hc Roadway as detennined by the City Engineer llDleu construction is 
completed before the Plat Is exeeated. No builcfins pemuts shall be granted for any 
Property within the Plat until the Plat is approved and filed. The security is to be in effect 
until the Roadway bas been constructed and the City Engineer and City Public Works 
Director executes a Certificate of C.Ompletion with respect to the Roadway attesting that it 
has been constructed in accordance with the Plans and Specifications. For the purposes of 
this Agreement, Roadway means the road as defined in Section 8.3. 

l 



3.3 Developer shall provide a security deposit equal to 125% of oost of 
oonstruc:tion of the Stonnwater Improvements upon the execution of this Development 
Agreement of oons1ruction. This security is in addition 1o any security required by Section 
3.2 hereof. No building pmnits shall be granted fur any portion of the Property Ulltil an 
MS4 Certificate of Compliance is issued. The Storm.water lmprovmien1s are defined as 
the entire system utilized to colleet, oonvey and treat stoimwater. The security is to be in 
effect until all of the Stonnwater Improvements have been COllllU'Ucted and the City 
Ensmeer and City Public Works Director executes a Cerlificme of Completion with 
respe« to the Stormwater Improvements attesting that they have been p.to~ly 
constructed. 

3.4 Pa.y City a park dedication fee of $1,100.00 per lot in the Plat (total of 
$9,900.00). 

3.5 Provide the City with title evidence in fonn and substance ~le to 
the City and the City Attomey examines or causes the title of the land underlying the Plat 
to be examined and the Developer completes all actions required to be taken by the City 
Attorney and City Engineer. 

3.6 Cause the Plat dedication on the final Plat to be in furm and substance 
acuptable to the City Attorney and City Engineer. 

3. 7 Provide the City with the final Plat that has duly and properly ex.eeuted by 
all parties with an interest in the Property, as determined by the City Attorney and the 
signatures of such parties are duly and properly notarized. 

3.8 Provide the City with the copies of the final Plat as is required under the 
Hennantown subdivision platting regulations. 

3.9 City to provide written approval of the final Plat by the Community 
Development Director, City Attomey and City Engineer as being in compliance with the 
Hermantown subdivision platting. 

3.10 Provide City with evidence that corrections to any deficiency noted by the 
County Surveyor on the Preliminmy Plat have been made on the Final Plat. 

3.11 Pay the City's out-of-pocket oosts and expenses, including attomeys' fees 
and engineering fe~, incumd prior to the Plat being signed by the City. 

3.12 Comply wi1h 1he provisions of Section 20 hereof (Declaration of Wetland 
Restrictions). 

3.13 A Final PUD Order oonsistent with City Resolution No. 2020-80 is prepared 
by City admillistrative staff and approved by Developer, exelUed by the Mayor and City 
Clc:tk and recorded in the app1op.1iate land title recording office. 

2 



4. AH notices, certificates or other C-OllllUUllications hereunder shall be sufficiently 
given and shall be dee.med gival when mailed sent by U.S. Certified Mail to the following name 
and address: 

lfto Developer: 

If to City: 

With a copy to: 

Shaine W. Stokke 
3708 Midway Road 
Hamaotown, MN S5810 

City of Hermantown 
5105 Maple Grove Road 
Heanantown, MN 55811 
Attn: John Mulder 

S1eVcn C. Overom 
Overom Law, PLLC 
11 B. Superior Street 
SuiteS43 
Dulufb, MN 55802 

S. The City Engineer shall. after consulting wi1h the designated 1ep1e,entatives of 
Developer, be the final wthority in the event of any qucslions, ambiguities or disagreements 
regarding the inteipmatiOll. of the Plans and Spewications or whefb.s the constzuction of the 
Infrastructure Improvements have been oomplded in acoordan<:e with the Plans and Specilications. 

6. Developer acknowledges and agtCe8 that pun,uant to Section 3SO of the 
Hemiantown City Code, no road or street within the city beoomCj) a City street until it is aooepted 
and opened by the City Council by a resolution to lb.at effect and that the City has not accepted or 
opened the roads within the Plat. Developer fur1h« acknowledges and agrees that the City bas no 
obligation and will not assume resJ)OllSl"bility to grade, construct, improve, repair, replace, 
snowplow or in any way maintain or construct the Roadway bas been a...:»pted and opened pU1'8uant 
to Section 350 of the Henuanto'W!l City Code. Di::veloper further acknowledges and agrees that the 
City Couiwil will not consider any resolution accepting and opening the Roadway until Developer 
makes a written request of the City to ae<:ept and open the Roadway. Such request may not be made 
by Developer until (i) one year after the construction of the Roadway is determined to be fully 
oompieted in acoordance with the Plana and Specificatioos and (ii) only if Developer has maintained 
and repaired the Roadway in good condition and repair unless Developer {x) provides a written one 
yrs wammty with respect to the oonstru.aion of the Roadway that is in finm end substance 
acceptable to the City, City Enginett and the City Attorney and (y) Developer provides security for 
such warranty in an amount, form and substaooe aooeptable to the City, City Engineer and City 
Attmney. In the event Developer proceeds as provided in subparts (x) and (y) of this paragraph the 
City Council will oon.sids a resolution accepting and opening the Roadway at its fim regular 
meeting after Devi,Joper makes a written request of the City to acoept and open the Roadway and 
the items required by subparts (x) and (y) of !his paragraph are provided to the City. Likewise, 
Developer acknowledges and agrees 1hat 1he City hes no obligation to repair or replace any other 
Infrastructure Improvements until such fnftastructure Improvements have been detemlined to be 

3 



fully collStructecl in e.ccordanco with the Plans and Specificatiom by the City Engineer and City 
Public Works Director. 

7. Developer agrees that it will not make any changes to the Plans and Specifications 
without the prior written approval of the City Bngioea: and City Public Works Director. 

8. Developer shall present detailed plans and specifications for the ~ 
Improvements to the City Engineer and City Public Works Director and obtain approval of such 
plans and specffications by the City Engineer, City Public Wo.rks Director. Whenever 1he words 
"Plllll8 and Specifications" are used herein it shall metlll the plans and speciticatiO.llS that are 
approved by the City Engineer and City Public Works Director. All construction work shall be 
oompll:ted strictly in aooordanoe widl the approved Plans and Specifications. The Plans and 
Specifications shall include the requimnent that the final road elevation be marked prior to any 
building peimit being issued for any oon.struction on any lot within the Plat. For the purposes of this 
Dovclopment Agreement,~ Improvements means the following: 

8.1. The Storm.water Improvements within 1he Plat and servicing dlC Plat. 

8.2. Permanem wetland marbrs marking dle wetlands on all residential lots 
witbin the Project. 

8.3. A 24 foot wide asphalt roadway (''Roadway") with 2 foot wide shoulders 
per the requiremEIDls of the City of Hermantown. This Roadway will provide acteiS fur nine 
lots ftom Maple Grove Road Road. 

9. Before the commencement of any work on any Infraslructu:re Improvements, 
Developer, Developer's C-Ontractor and Developer's Engineer shall meet with the City Engineer and 
City Public Works Director to determine guidelines to insure that work is subject to appropriate 
testing and :inspeciion befure any portion of the work is covered or further work is done. Doveloper 
and Developer's Contractor may be limited, as a result of this discussion, as to work that may be 
done outside of regular working hours unl~$ prior lllTIIDgements are made for inspection and testing 
to be done at such times and appropriate payment amingcmeats are made. 

10. Developer acknowledges that the City Engineer may req~ independent tt#ing of 
the work done on the lnfiasttucture Improvements prior to its determining that the work has been 
completed in acooroa:nce with dle Plan.s and Specifications. Developer further understands and 
adalowledges that Developel' .shall be responsible for paying the costs incurred in connection with 
any such testing. 

11. The City Engineer will execute mid deliver the Certificate of Substantial 
C-Omplelion fur the Roadway in the fonn attached hereto 8$ Exhibit B to the City only upon 
subslaDtial completio.D. of the Roadway and the security is provided pursuant to Section 3.2 and 
continued until the City Engineer ex:ecutes and delivers a Certificate of Final C-Ompletion in the 
furm attached hereto as Exlnmt c. 

4 



12. Developer acknowledges and agrees that no zoning penuits and no building permits 
will be issued for any cons1ruction within the Plat until lhe City Engineer execute., the Certificate of 
Substantial Completion for the Roadway in form of the one attached hereto as ExJnpit B and the 
security required by SectiOll 3.2, Section 3.3 and Section 11 has been provided to City. 

13. Notwiths1anding anything to 1he contnuy contained herein Developer agreei that all 
of the In1i:astt:uctur hnprovements will be fully oompieted in ~ with the Plans and 
Specifications no later than June 30, 2022. 

14. Any security provided by Developer to City pursuant to Section 3.2 hereof shall be 
released upon final (:(llllJ)letion of the lnfrastructuR: Improvements and a Certificate of Final 
C-Ompletion is issued by the City E~eer for such work and the record drawings fur die Roadway 
on paper and electronically in auto-cad format and PDF foxmat are provided to the City pursuant to 
Section 16 bcrco£ The City will D:ot release any security provided to it pumiant to Section 3.2 or 
Section 3.3 until the required record drawings and copies of the Plat required by Section 16 and 
GPS data points required by Section 17 have bee:n provided to the City. Any security provided by 
Developer to City pursuant to Section 3.3 hereof shall be released upon the issuance of a MS4 
Certificate of Compliance and all worlc on lhe Stonuwata Improvements is complete and a 
Certificate of Final Completion for 1he Stormwater Improvements has been executed. 

15. Developer a~ that the City may exercise its rights under any security provided to 
it hereunder if Developer shall. fail to perfmm. any obligation required to be performed by Developer 
hmunder and such failure 5hall continue for a period of ten (10) days after written nolioe of such 
failure has been given by City to the Developer. 

16. Developer will provide record drawings for the rnfrastructure Tmprovements 
constructed by it pursuant to this Agreement on paper and eledronically in auto-cad format and 
PDF funnat before Jlme 30, 2022. Developer will also provide City with an electronic copy of 
the recorded Plat. 

17. Developer will provide the GPS data points for the wetland boundaries on all lots 
within the Plat and for the permanent wetland markers required to be installed by Developer 
pursuant to Section 8.2 hereof. Developer, on its behalf aDd on behalf of its successors and assigns, 
further grants City ~s to the Property and any lot on the Property for pU!poses of checking the 
wetland boundaries and permanent wetland m.arl<:cra. 

18. Upon the issuance of a Certificate of Pinal Completion by the City Engineer for the 
Roadway, the City shall. become the owner of 1he Roadway covered by such Certifiaite of Final 
Completion. 

19. All individual dwelling units within the Plat shall be have their own private well and 
septic system. The City will not issue a Certificate of Occupancy for any dwelling until the 
requirements of this Section 19 have been satisfied with respect to such dwelling. 

20. Developer will execute and deliver to City for recording with the real estate 
records the Dedication of Wetland Restrictions in the form of the o.ne attached hereto as Exlu'bit 

s 



20. Neither Developer nor its sucussors or assigns shall modify or diBIUrb the wetland areas or 
Stormwater Improvements within the Plat without the prior written approval of the City. The 
owner of each lot within the Plat shall be responsible for the preservation and maintenan.c::e of the 
wetland areas located on suc;h owner's lot. Developer, for itself and its heirs and assigns, grants 
City access to the Property and every lot on the Plat for the purpose of detmnioiog compliance 
with this provision. 

21. City is hem>y granted access across the Property and all individual lots within the 
Plat at any time to repair, maintain and restore the Stormwater Improvements and wetland areas 
on any of the Prop.,'1'ty and to check 1he location of the wetl1111d boundaries and permanent 
wetland marlcers on the Property and an.y lot on the Plat. 

22. In the event that the City is required to repair, re81ore or modify the wetl1111d areas, 
permanent wetland mad:ers or Stormwater Improvements as a result of actions by the Developer 
or its successors or assigns, then the City may assess the costs of such repairs, restoration or 
modifications against the Property or any part of the Property pursuant to Chapter 429 of the 
Minnesota Statutes or the City may declare that the portion of the Property upon which such 
wetland or Stonnwater Improvements are located to be a hazardous property within the meaning 
Mmnesota Statues §463.tS, it being agreed to and acknowledged by Diweloper that a failure to 
adequately maintain or unremedied damage to a wetland or Stonnwater Improvements 
oonstitutes a hazard to public safety or health. 

23. The Developer further agrees that nothing in this Agreement oonstitutes any 
approval of any other licenses or permits or approvals required to be obtained under applicable 
law, rule, regulation or ordinance before any construction can Ulke place on the Plopcrty. 
Ex811lJ)les of permits and approvals that are not approved by this Agreement are building 
permits, well and septic permits. 

24. During construction, Developer agrees; 

24.1 Erosion control measures shall be utilized and remain in place throughout 
the construction period, and shall not be removed until vegetation is established on the 
site; and 

24.2 Not conduct any on-site burning or burial of brush or other site debris on 
the Pioperty. 

24.3 Construction activity shall oomply with all City noise ordinances. There 
shall be no construction activity between the hours of 10:00 pJU. and 7:00 a.m.; and 

24.4 The. site shall be kept free of dust and debris that could blow onto 
neighboring p:1ope,.ties; and 

24.S Public streets shall be maintained free of dirt and shall be cleaned as 
necessary; and 

6 



24.6 The City shall be contacted a minimum of72 hours prior ro any work in a 
public street. Any required construction or excavation pmmibl for coDStruction shall be 
obtained before work commences. Work in a public street shall take place only upon the 
determination by the Public Works Superintendent that appropriate safety measures have 
been taken to ensure motorist and pedestrian safety; and 

24.7 The Community Development Director may impose additional conditions 
if it becomes necessary in order to mitigate the impact of constniction on surrounding 
pmp«tias. 

2$. Developer acknowledges and will advise 1111y persons buying a lot ftom 
Doveloper that if such person desires ro C:OllStruct a residential building on a lot within the Plat 
thst a bedroom fee of One Hundred Fifty and No/100 Dollars (SlS0.00) per bedroom will be 
required to be paid with the building pennit for such residential building. 

[SIGNATURES APPEAR ON NEXT PAGEi 

7 



SIGNATURE PAGE 
TO DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN THE CITY OF HERMANTOWN 
AND SHAINE W. STOKKE 

lN WITNESS WHEREOF, City has caused this Agreement to be duly executed in its name 
and behalf as of the dare first above written. 

STATEOFMINNESOTA ) 
)ss. 

COUN1Y OF ST. LOUIS ) 

City of Hermantown 

By _ ___ ____ ___ _ 

Its Mayor 

Andby _ ____ _____ _ 

Its City Clerk 

The furegoins instrument was acknowledged before me this_ day of ____ _ 
2021, by and . 1he Mayor mid City Clerk, 
respectively, of the City of Hermantown on behalf of the City ofHennantown. 

Notary Public 

8 



SIGNATURE PAGE 
TO DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN THE Cl'IY OF HERMANTOWN 
AND SHAINE W. STOKKE 

IN WITNESS 'WHEREOF, Developer has caused this Agreement to be duly exocuted in it& 
name and behalf on or as of the date first above Mitten. 

SHAINE W. STOKKE 

STATE OF MINNESOTA ) 
)ss. 

COUNTYOF .Stl OU ,S ) 
The foregoing instrument w-aa acknowledged befure me this ~ day of c:,i 4 at 

2021, by Shame W. Stokke. 

Notary Public 

9 



EXHlBITA 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF THE LAND 

Parcell -395-0010-05020 

East SO rods ofSo.ithweat ~ of Southeast 14 e,c, S acze&at Southwest corner Section 18, Towmhip SO, Range 
15. 

Paroel 2-395.0010.()4990 

East 50 rods ofNo.rthwest !4 of Southeast I' Section 18, Township SO, Range 15. 

This is Abstract property. 

10 



EXHIBITB 
CERTIFICATE OF SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION OF ROADWAY 

Date oflssmmce: _ ______ . 20_ 

This Certificate of Substantial Completion is made with merence to the following &c18: 

Shaine W. Stokke, (hereinafter the ,"Developer") ei:i=ed imo a Development Agreement 
(hereinafter referred to as "Development Agreeml!Ot") with the City of Hermantown, a 81allltllry city 
ll!lder the laws of the State of Minnesota, (bmioafter the "City''), with respect to a development to be 
oon.structed by Developer in the City. 

The uadersigned hereby certifi.~ that tbe followmg faC1s 8lld reprc 91 111aliODB are l!Ue and 
00!1'0Ct: 

I. The cons1ruction oftlu, Roadway as defined in the Development Agreanem has been 
fully completed. in acx:oroance with 1he Plans and SpecificatiOIIS. The date of substantial 
oompletion is hei:eby established as of ______ _ 

2. All capitali:zed lfflnS when used herein shall have the meaning given thrm in the 
Development Agreement. 

Name of Developer's Coll1ractor 

By _ __________ ~ 
lte _______ ___ ~ 

The undersigned, lhfl City Engineer, based on the foregoing C,ettjfjcate 8lld such other testins 
and inspections as it deem.e4 ~ hereby certifies that the co.ustruc1ion of the Roadway defined in 
the Development AgretlmeDt other than the blacktopping of the Roadway has been substmJtially 
completed in aooordance with the Plans IIOd Specification a:nd the toms of the Deve1opm11I1t Agreemem. 

Datl!d _______ _ 

Nor1hland CouultiDg Engineers. L.L.P. 

By _ ______ ____ _ 

Its------------

11 



EXHIBITC 
CERTIFICATE OF FINAL COMPLETION 

Date of Issuance: ___ ____ , 2022 

This C-enificate of Final Completion is made with reference to the fbllowing facts: 

Shaine W. Stokke, (hereinafter the ''Developer") entered into a Development Agn:ement 
(hereinafter refmed to as "Development Agreement'') with ~ City of Heimantown, a statutoey city 
under the laws of the Slate of Minnesota, (hereinafter the "City"), with respect io a developmcmt to be 
cons1rUCted by Developer in 1he City. 

The underaigne,d parties hereby certify that the followi.ug tact& md 1qm:scntations are true and 
CO!l'ffl! 

I . The construction of the Infutstnicb.Jre lmprovemmts defined in tbe Development 
Agre,cment has been oompleted strictly in accordance with tbe Infnistructure Plans and Specifications 
and 1he terms of the Development A8teement. The date of final completion is heteby established as of 

2. All capitalized tams when used herein shall have the muning given them in the 
Development Agre,emem. 

3. That the followilli have been Slltisfied: 

3.1. ConstlUction of the Intms1Ncture Improvements have beezl fully completoo in 
accordance with the hmastruc1Ure Plans and Specifications. 

3.2. The Stormwattr Improvement& have been completed in =rdance with 1he 
MS4 Certili.cate ofComplim:e. 

3.3. The provisions ofSection.3.11 of this Agreement with respect lO theJMl)'lll.llllt of 
fees have been satisfied. 

3.4. Developer is not in dcmult under this Agreement. 

3.S. All wetland work has been comp1C1ed in aooordance with any permits or 
approvals for such work. 

3.6. Developer has provided record draw.inp for the l'nfrastructure Improvements 
co.n.structcd by it pm:suam to this Agteement on. paper and electronically in auto-cad format 
and PDF format before June 30, 2022. Developer has also provided City wilh an electronic 
copy of the recoroed Plat. 

3.7. Developer bas provided the GPS deta points for the we11and boundaries on all 
lots within 1he Plat and for the permanent wetland llWkers .n:qllircd to be ins1alled by Developer 
pumumt to Section 8.3 hereof. 

12 



SHAlNE W. STOKKE 

By ____ ________ _ 
Its, _ __________ _ 

Developer's Enalneer: 

By _ _ _____ ____ _ 
Its ___ ______ __ _ 

The undersigned, lhe City Engineer, based on the foregoing Certificate and such olher te6ting 
and wspectiOII& aa it deemed necessary hereby certifies that the c.ons1Nction of 1he Inhstructure 
fmln'ovemems defined in the Development Agn:ement have been completed stric1ly in llCCOidm:e with 
lb, Plans and Specmcation. 

Dated: _________ _ 

Northland CoosuJtlni En&fneers, LLP 

By_, - ---------Its _ _ _________ _ 

13 



EXBIBITlO 

DECLARATION OF WETLAND RESTRICTIONS 

Shaine W. Stokke, ("Developer") hereby certifies and declare& that Lot , Block 
_ _ __ Jenny Farms ("Property") is subject to the l'll!ltrictions oontain&d within that certain 
Development Agreement belween Developer and the City of Henn.imtown dated 
- -------'- '' 2021 and re<:ordcd lhe __ day of , 20_ as 
Document No. with the of St. Louis County, Minnesota. Such 
rmrictio.ns include, but are not limited to, the following: 

l. The permlltlent wetland markers installed on the Property may not be .removed or 
distlubed in any manner. The wetland areas on the Property may not be di6tllrbed in any manner. 

2. The City may enter upon the Property to repair, maintain and correct any distut'bances to 
the wetllll!d are!IS on the Property. 

3. If the owner of the Property mils to maintain the wetland areas or modifies OE disturbs the 
wetland areas, then the City may tl.SSe$S 1he oost of repairing o.r restoring the wetland areas against 
!he Property pursuant to 1he provisiOJlll of Chapter 429 of the Miml.esota Slllrutes or it may declare 
such mi.lure or such modification or distuti:,ance to be a hazard to public safety or health and proceed 
to take actions which are permissible under Minne110ta Statutes §463.lS, et. seq., to enjoin or abate 
the hazard and collect the costs thereof as provided for in such SUdUtea 

4. This Declaration shall ND. with the land and be binding on Developer and its successors 
and assi8118, 

[SIGNATURE APPEARS ON NEXT PAGEi 

14 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Developer has C8USed this Agreemem to be duly executed in its name and 
behalf on or as of the date 1ir8t above written. 

Shalne Stokke 

STATEOFMINNESOTA ) 
)ea. 

COUNTYOF ) 

The fo:rcgoing instrument was acknowledged befo~ me this _ day of ____ --' 
2021, by Shairle W. Stokke. 

Notary Public 

15 



City Council Agenda Report                                                                                      Resolution 2021-78                             
July 6, 2021                                                                                                                  Agenda Item: 12-C 
 

Working together to serve and build our community. 

TO: Mayor & City Council 
 

 
FROM:  Eric Johnson, Community 

Development Director 

 
DATE: June 22, 2020 Meeting Date:  7/6/21 

 
SUBJECT: Preliminary PUD – Keene Creek 

Trail Subdivision 
Agenda Item: 12-C Resolution 2021-78 

 
REQUESTED ACTION 
Approve a Preliminary Planned Unit Development (PUD) with Jay Zierden/Zierden Builders for the 
Keene Creek Trail Subdivision 

 
DESCRIPTION OF REQUEST 
Applicant is requesting approval of a Preliminary Planned Unit Development (PUD) for 
construction of a 21 lot single family home and 8 twinhome lot (8 units total) for a total of 29 
lots located in the NE intersection of Okerstrom Road and Morris Thomas Road.  The property is 
located in an R-3 zoning district. 
 
SITE INFORMATION: 
Parcel Size:   36.5 acres 
Legal Access:   Morris Thomas Road and Carlson Road (Future) 
Wetlands:   Yes, delineation approved in 2020 
Existing Zoning:  R-3, Residential 
Airport Overlay:  None 
Shoreland Overlay:  Natural Environment 
Comprehensive Plan: Suburban 
 
Development Details 
The applicant is proposing to construct 21 single family home lots and 8 twinhome lots (8 units 
total) for a total of 29 lots on an existing 33 acre lot.  In addition, the applicant has requested the 
City enter into an agreement to swap the 2.5 acre Outlot A of the Valleyview Division Plat for 
the 12.6 acre outlot proposed as part of this plat.  The proposed project will consist of 21 single 
family lots ranging in size from 16,400 square feet to 58,890 square feet.  In addition, the 
applicant is proposing 8 twinhome lots ranging from 11,743 square feet to 20,605 square feet in 
size for the purpose of building 4 twinhomes, for a total of 8 units total. 
 
A public hearing for the PUD was held on Tuesday, June 15, 2021.  There were approximately 
30 people in attendance.  Public concern was expressed over the proposed Carlson Road 
connection and how this future road could affect traffic and safety along Johnson and Portland 
Roads.  In addition, a petition signed by 44 residents of Johnson and Portland Roads to stop the 
Carlson Road connection was submitted to the City and included in the Planning and Zoning 
Commission packet.  The project as proposed with the Carlson Road connection was 
recommended for approval 4-3 with Councilor Geissler casting the deciding vote for. 



City Council Agenda Report                                                                                      Resolution 2021-78                             
July 6, 2021                                                                                                                  Agenda Item: 12-C 
 

Working together to serve and build our community. 

PUD Process: 

The City’s zoning regulations governing PUD’s require that each PUD obtain preliminary and 
final approval. At the City’s discretion, the preliminary and final PUD approvals may be 
processed concurrently. However, the applicant is pursuing preliminary and final approval under 
separate applications. 
 
The PUD review and approval process include a public hearing by the Planning Commission and 
a recommendation to the City Council. A PUD order will be issued by the City setting project 
specific development standards. Following completion of the development contract the applicant 
will be granted final Zoning approval and can begin construction, pending approval of the 
associated building permits.   
 
Per Section 1105 of the Planned Unit Development section of the Zoning Ordinance, it requires 
that a PUD must provide public benefits to the surrounding neighborhood and to the city above 
and beyond what can be reasonably achieved by application of the zoning provisions applicable 
to the underlying zoning district. The nature and scale of public benefit shall be determined by 
the City and include, but not be limited to:  
 

1.1 Preservation and enhancement of natural systems and resources, topography, 
vegetation, and other natural features. – This project proposes a 12.6 acre outlot 
which consists of wetlands, Keene Creek and a future city trail.   

 
1.2 Provision of a variety of housing and community types. – The project proposes 
 single family  lots of varying sizes along with twinhome lots to the community. 
 
1.3 Provision of recreational amenities including trails and parks. – The Project  
 proposes green space associated with the proposed outlot as part of the   
 development.  The Project has an interior sidewalk which connects to Morris  
 Thomas Road and Carlson Road.  In the future, the City is planning construction  
 of the Munger Trail Spur trail segment which will connect  the existing trail  
 segments south of Morris Thomas Road, running to Keene Creek Park and  
 the northern segment at Hermantown Road which connects to Stebner Park and the 
 Hermantown Marketplace. 
 

Zoning Analysis: 

The property is zoned R-3, Residential.  The applicant has applied for a Planned Unit Development 
(PUD) for the property.  A PUD is a permitted use in an R-3 zone district. Section 11 of the zoning 
ordinance explains that: ‘A PUD is intended to encourage a more efficient and creative use of land 
and development, more efficient and effective use of streets, utilities and public services; 
protection of natural resources; and more efficient and effective provision of recreational, public 
and open space than can be achieved through conventional development procedures. 
 
The purpose of the PUD request is to allow for the creation of 8 twinhome lots and for 17 of the 
proposed 21 single family lots to be less than ½ acre (21,780 square feet) in size. 



City Council Agenda Report                                                                                      Resolution 2021-78                             
July 6, 2021                                                                                                                  Agenda Item: 12-C 
 

Working together to serve and build our community. 

 
Setbacks 
City Code allows a PUD to have standards that meet the City’s goals for each proposed 
development.  These standards include building height, density, roadway widths and setbacks.  
The proposed project is for 21 lot single family home and 8 twinhome lot (8 units total)  for a 
total of 29 lots.  The single family lots meet the underlying front and rear yard setback 
requirements of the R-3 zoning district.  The applicant is proposing a minimum 10’ foot side 
yard setback, 20’ aggregate total as opposed to the 25’ aggregate total associated with the R-3 
district.  The PUD allows for the setting of site specific setbacks. 
 
The twinhome lots propose a 50’ front yard setback, a 40’ rear yard setback and a minimum 10’ 
foot side yard setback (20’ aggregate total).  The twinhomes are located within the interior of the 
site and do not abut any existing single family homes. 
 
Plat 
The applicant is proposing to divide the property into 29 lots.  A preliminary plat has been 
provided as part of the application.  A final plat prepared by a registered land surveyor will be 
required for the project.  Staff is working with the applicant on the street names for the project. 
 
Utilities 
The applicant has engaged a civil engineer to conduct this work with preliminary documents 
being submitted as part of the application.  The work submitted include grading plans along with 
water and sanitary sewer plans.   
 
The project proposes the extension of a sanitary sewer line from Morris Thomas Road which 
generally parallels Keene Creek and progressing to the north and east to provide sanitary sewer 
service to each lot. 
 
The water main extension will connect from Morris Thomas Road running to the north and east 
and connect into the existing water main in Johnson Road.  This design will provide a looped 
water system for the proposed development. 
 
Upon submittal of the Final PUD the applicant will be required to submit construction 
documents for review and approval by the City Engineer.  Upon City acceptance, all utilities will 
be turned over to the City of Hermantown. 
 
Stormwater 
The applicant is proposing a series of six ponds located throughout the site to accommodate the 
stormwater associated with the project.  The applicant has engaged a civil engineer to conduct 
this work with preliminary documents being submitted as part of the application.  Upon 
submittal of the Final PUD the applicant will be required to submit erosion and sediment control 
plan for construction and post-construction control of run-off.  Bio-rolls, silt fencing and other 
Best Management Practices will be required in order to control runoff during construction. 
 
The stormwater ponds are within the proposed outlot for the plat and will be turned over to the 
City upon completion and acceptance by the City Engineer. 



City Council Agenda Report                                                                                      Resolution 2021-78                             
July 6, 2021                                                                                                                  Agenda Item: 12-C 
 

Working together to serve and build our community. 

 
Access 
The project is proposed to be accessed by way of a thru road connecting Morris Thomas Road to 
Johnson Road.  As part of the Valleyview Division plat, a 66’ road right of way was platted as 
Carlson Road.  This road had been envisioned to provide access to the property located to the 
west of Johnson Road.  This road would be a public, 28 foot wide asphalt roadway with curb and 
gutter with a 5’ foot width sidewalk along one side of the road. 
 
The City is requiring the applicant to construct a thru road connecting Morris Thomas to Johnson 
Road.  A thru road is beneficial from a life/safety standpoint as it provides two means of ingress 
and egress to a development for police and fire access.  The City’s goal is to ensure that adequate 
roads, sewer, water, fire and police protection are in place or provided for before the final 
preliminary plat is approved.   
 
The applicant will be fully responsible to design and construct the proposed roads within the 
project to City standards.  Upon completion and inspection by the City Engineer, the City will 
accept the road and maintain it from after time of acceptance. 
 
Land Swap 
As part of the 1995 Valleyview Division plat, the City created an outlot which was accessed by 
way of a 66’ road right of way platted as Carlson Road.  This outlot had been envisioned as 
future development of the original plat.  This 2.5 acre outlot abuts the proposed property and by 
its inclusion in the project allows for its development and access by way of Carlson Road.   
 
The City has discussed a land swap with the applicant, with the applicant making a formal 
request for the City’s Valleyview Division Outlot.  The proposed land swap encompasses the 
12.6 acre proposed plat outlot for the City’s 2.5 acre Valleyview Division Outlot.  This land 
swap accomplishes multiple goals: the protection of Keene Creek; the protection of wetlands; the 
location of stormwater ponds; available land for the City’s planned segment connection of the 
Munger Trail Spur; two points of ingress/egress for the proposed development and development 
of an existing outlot for residential housing. 
 
City staff will continue to work with the applicant on the details associated with this proposed 
land swap. 
 
Wetlands 
A wetland delineation was performed in the fall of 2020.  The plan envisions wetland impacts 
associated with the road construction and potentially 2-4 lots in order to accommodate a building 
footprint.  The applicant will be required to submit a wetland impact plan to the Hermantown 
Technical Evaluation Panel for their review and approval. 
 
The MN DNR has also identified a potential tributary to Keene Creek that runs from east to west 
along the south portion of the property and generally parallels Morris Thomas Road.  This 
classification of this unmapped water conveyance by the DNR as a tributary is still being 
discussed with the DNR.  The applicant will be required to obtain all necessary permits from the 
DNR should this water conveyance be classified as a tributary. 



City Council Agenda Report                                                                                      Resolution 2021-78                             
July 6, 2021                                                                                                                  Agenda Item: 12-C 
 

Working together to serve and build our community. 

Park Dedication Fees 
The developer will be required to pay park dedication fees consistent with the requirements of 
the City Zoning Ordinance. A park dedication fee of $1,100 per lot/unit will be paid at the time 
of final PUD approval.  Bedroom fees at the rate of $150/bedroom will be paid at the time of 
building permit. 
 
Summary 
 
Staff recommends approval of the Preliminary PUD based on the findings of this report and the 
following conditions 
 

1. The preliminary PUD meets the intent of the R-3, Residential Zoning District, Chapter 11 
– Planned Unit Developments, and the overall goals and policies of the Zoning 
Ordinance.  
 

2. The preliminary PUD meets the Comprehensive Plan for residential development and 
standards of a Planned Unit Development by providing public benefit through enhanced 
and coordinated development design and a greater variety of housing variety in the 
community. 
 

3. The preliminary PUD hereby approved is hereby expressly subject to the following 
conditions: 
 
 3.1 Property Owner is initially and continually in compliance with all of the  
  ordinances and regulations of the City of Hermantown. 
 
 3.2 Trees and brush cannot be burned on the Land, but may be chipped and  
  shredded. 
 
 3.3 An MPCA Stormwater Permit and erosion control measures must be in  
  place prior to any construction on the Final PUD. 
 
 3.4 All utility line easements shall be observed and any encroachment into the 
  utility right-of-way shall only be permitted with the written approval of  
  the entity that owns the utility. 
 
 3.5 The Property Owner shall take measures to control erosion that has the  
  potential to damage adjacent land, and control sedimentation that has the  
  potential to leave the site. 
 
 3.6 The Applicant will have one year from the date of the preliminary PUD  
  approval to file for a final PUD. 
 
 3.7 The Applicant is required to submit final construction documents (water,  
  storm sewer, sanitary sewer, drives, parking lots etc.) according to City 



City Council Agenda Report                                                                                      Resolution 2021-78                             
July 6, 2021                                                                                                                  Agenda Item: 12-C 
 

Working together to serve and build our community. 

 standards and coordinated with the City Engineer as part of the Final PUD 
 application. 

 
     4. The applicant shall pay a park dedication fee of $1,100 per lot/unit in lieu of   
 dedicated park land.  This fee will be paid at the time of PUD approval.  Bedroom  
 park dedication fees of $150.00/bedroom will be paid at time of building permit. 
 
     5. The Applicant shall enter into an agreement with the City for a land swap for Applicants 
12.6  acre outlot for the City’s 2.5 acre Outlot A associated with the Valleyview Division plat. 
 
     6. The applicant shall sign a consent form assenting to all conditions of this    
 approval.  
 
     7. The applicant shall pay an administrative fine of $750 per violation of any    
 condition of this approval.   
 

 
SOURCE OF FUNDS (if applicable) 
 
N/A 

 
ATTACHMENTS: 

• Location Map 
• Correspondence from Chief Crace 
• Preliminary Site Plan 
• Preliminary Plat 
• Valleyview Division Plat 
• Aerial with Road Alignment 
• Proposed Twinhome Building Example 

 



  
 
 

1 

Resolution No. 2021-78 
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING PRELIMINARY PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT FOR 
THE KEENE CREEK TRAIL SUBDIVISION DEVELOPMENT 

 
 WHEREAS, Jay Zierden/Zierden Builders (“Applicant”) submitted an application (“Application”) 
for a Preliminary Planned Unit Development (“Preliminary PUD”) to allow for construction of 21 single 
family lots and 8 twinhome lots (“Project”) on a site located at the NE quadrant of Okerstrom Road and 
Morris Thomas Road, Parcels 395-0010-07589 and 395-0195-00040 in the City of Hermantown; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Hermantown Planning and Zoning Commission held a public hearing on the 
Preliminary Planned Unit Development (“Preliminary PUD”) on June 15, 2021 following notice as required 
by the City’s Zoning Code; and 

 
WHEREAS, following the public hearing on the Preliminary PUD, the Hermantown Planning and 

Zoning Commission recommended by a 4-3 vote that the City Council approve the Preliminary PUD; and 
 
 WHEREAS, after due consideration of the entire City file, the testimony at the public hearing 
conducted by the Hermantown Planning and Zoning Commission and all other relevant matters the City 
Council hereby makes the following findings of fact related to the Preliminary PUD. 
 

A. FINDINGS OF FACT 
 

1. Applicant made application for the Preliminary PUD which is to be located within the City 
of Hermantown. 

 
2. Applicant is the owner of parcel 395-0010-07589 and the City of Hermantown is owner or 

parcel 395-0195-00040. 
 
3. Applicant will be the user of the PUD. 
 
4. The fee required to be submitted with the Preliminary PUD application has been paid. 
 
5. The Planning and Zoning Commission held a public hearing on the Preliminary PUD 

following notice as required by ordinances of the City of Hermantown. 
 
6. The Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Hermantown submitted its report and 

recommendation on the Preliminary PUD to the City Council within the time period set forth in the 
ordinances of the City of Hermantown. 

 
7. The City Council considered the Preliminary PUD after receiving the report and 

recommendation of the Planning and Zoning Commission. 
 
8. The Preliminary PUD is consistent with the Hermantown Comprehensive Plan and is a 

permitted use in the R-3 Zone District in which it is located.  
 
9. The tract of land (“Land”) affected by the Preliminary PUD is legally described on 

Exhibit A attached hereto.  
 



  
 
 

2 

10. The Preliminary PUD includes provisions for the preservation and creation of natural 
amenities. 

 
11. Natural systems, resources, topography, vegetation and other natural features will be 

preserved and enhanced to the extent possible.  
 
12. The Preliminary PUD is located on more than two and one half (2 ½) acres of contiguous 

land. 
 
13. The Preliminary PUD includes residential uses. 
 
14. The Preliminary PUD provides a public benefit with the following: 

 
14.1 Preservation and enhancement of natural systems and resources, topography, 
vegetation, and other natural features. – This project proposes a 12.6 acre outlot which 
consists of wetlands, Keene Creek and a future city trail.   

 
 14.2 Provision of a variety of housing and community types. – The project 
 proposes single family lots of varying sizes along with twinhome lots to the 
 community. 
 
 14.3 Provision of recreational amenities including trails and parks. – The Project  
 proposes green space associated with the proposed outlot as part of the   
 development.  The Project has an interior sidewalk which connects to Morris  
 Thomas Road and Carlson Road.  In the future, the City is planning   
 construction of the Munger Trail Spur trail segment which will connect   
 the existing trail segments south of Morris Thomas Road, running to Keene  
 Creek Park and the northern segment at Hermantown Road which connects  
 to Stebner Park and the Hermantown Marketplace. 

 
15. Maps were provided with the Plan and contained the following: 

 
15.1. The existing topographic character of the land. 
 
15.2. A composite of all natural amenities of the site. 
 
15.3. The size of the site and proposed uses of the land to be developed together with an 

identification of off-site land uses. 
 
15.4. The density of land use to be allocated to the overall development. 
 
15.5. The approximate location of thoroughfares. 
 
15.6. The location of open space. 

 
16. The Preliminary PUD includes the following: 

 
16.1. A statement of the ownership of all land involved in the Preliminary PUD.  
 
16.2. An explanation of the general character of the Preliminary PUD. 



  
 
 

3 

 
16.3. A statement describing how all necessary governmental services will be provided 

for the Project. These will also be addressed in a Development Agreement(s) for development as a 
condition to the approval of the Final PUD. 

 
B. CONCLUSION 

 
On the basis of the foregoing Findings of Fact, the City Council of the City of Hermantown is 

hereby resolved as follows: 
 
1. The Preliminary PUD meets the intent of the R-3, Residential Zoning District, Chapter 11 

– Planned Unit Developments, and the overall goals and policies of the Zoning Ordinance.   
 
2. The Preliminary PUD meets the Comprehensive Plan for residential development and 

standards of a Planned Unit Development by providing public benefit through enhanced and coordinated 
development design and a greater variety of housing types in the community. 

 
3. The Preliminary PUD hereby approved is hereby expressly subject to the following 

conditions: 
 

3.1. That the Preliminary PUD will be constructed as described in the plans 
accompanying the Application and the conditions contained herein and the Development 
Agreement. 

 
3.2. The Zoning Administrator of the City of Hermantown shall be notified at least five 

(5) days in advance of the commencement of the work authorized hereunder and shall be notified 
of its completion within five (5) days thereafter. 

 
3.3. Applicant shall grant access to the site at all reasonable times during and after 

construction to authorized representatives of the City of Hermantown for inspection to see that the 
terms of this permit are met. 

 
3.4. Property Owner is initially and continually in compliance with all of the ordinances 

and regulations of the City of Hermantown. 
 
3.5. Trees and brush cannot be burned on the Land, but may be chipped and shredded. 
 
3.6. An MPCA Stormwater Permit and erosion control measures must be in place prior 

to any construction on the Preliminary PUD. 
 
3.7. All utility line easements shall be observed and any encroachment into the utility 

right-of-way shall only be permitted with the written approval of the entity that owns the utility. 
 
3.8. The Property Owner shall take measures to control erosion that has the potential 

to damage adjacent land, and control sedimentation that has the potential to leave the site. 
 

3.9. The Applicant will have one year from the date of the Preliminary PUD approval 
to submit a Final PUD application and enter into a Development Agreement with the City. 

 



  
 
 

4 

3.10. The Applicant shall sign a consent form assenting to all conditions of this 
Resolution.  

 
3.11. The Applicant is required to submit preliminary and final construction documents 

(water, storm sewer, sanitary sewer, drives, parking lots etc.) according to City standards and 
coordinated with the City Engineer which will be incorporated into the Development Agreement 
for the Final PUD. 

 
3.12. The Applicant shall pay park dedication fees consistent with the requirements of 

the City Zoning Ordinance. A park dedication fee of $1,100 per lot/unit will be paid at the time of 
final PUD approval.  Bedroom fees at the rate of $150/bedroom will be paid at the time of building 
permit. 

 
3.13. The Applicant shall enter into an agreement with the City for a land swap for 

Applicants 12.6 acre outlot for the City’s 2.5 acre Outlot A associated with the Valleyview Division 
plat. 
 
4. The approval given by this Resolution is not effective until Applicant executes and delivers 

an acceptance of the terms and provisions of this Resolution. 
 
5. The approval made by this resolution only extends to the Preliminary PUD as defined in 

this resolution.  
 
6. The Applicant shall pay an administrative fine of $750 per violation of any condition of 

this Resolution.   
 

 
Councilor ___ introduced the foregoing resolution and moved its adoption. 

  
 

The motion for the adoption of such resolution was seconded by Councilor ____, and upon a vote 
being taken thereon, the following voted in favor thereof: 

 
Councilors  
 
and the following voted in opposition thereto: 
 
  
 
 WHEREUPON, such resolution was duly passed and adopted July 6, 2021. 
 
  



  
 
 

5 

ACCEPTANCE OF RESOLUTION 
 

 Jay Zierden/Zierden Builders (“Applicant”) hereby acknowledges and accepts the conditions 
specified on the foregoing Resolution and covenants and agrees to comply with each and every such condition. 
 
 Applicant acknowledges that the failure to comply with all of the modifications and conditions shall 
constitute a violation of the Hermantown Zoning Ordinance and that the City of Hermantown may, in such 
event, exercise and enforce its rights against the undersigned by instituting any appropriate action or proceeding 
to prevent, restrain, correct or abate the violation. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREAS, Jay Zierden/Zierden Builders has executed this acceptance the _____ day 
of _______________, 2021. 
 
 DEVELOPER: 
 
 Jay Zierden/Zierden Builders 
 
 
 By _____________________________________ 
       Its ___________________________________ 
       
 
STATE OF MINNESOTA   ) 
    )ss. 
COUNTY OF ST. LOUIS  ) 
 
 The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this _____ day of _______________, 2021, 
by Jay Zierden/Zierden Builders. 
 
 
 ________________________________________ 
 Notary Public 
  



  
 
 

6 

EXHIBIT A 
 
SW1/4 OF SE1/4 EX COMM 691.04 FT N OF SE COR ALONG E LINE TO PT OF BEG THENCE 
LEFT IN A WLY DIRECTION 89DEG35'50" 329.22 FT THENCE RIGHT IN A NLY DIRECTION 
89DEG35'50" 631.55 FT TO N LINE OF FORTY THENCE ELY ALONG N LINE TO E LINE OF 
FORTY THENCE SLY ALONG E LINE TO PT OF BEG & EX BEG AT SE COR THENCE N 544.02 
FT TO THE PT OF BEG THENCE W AT AN ANGLE OF 89DEG35'50" 329.29 FT THENCE N AT 
AN ANGLE OF 90DEG25'15" 147.02 FT THENCE E AT AN ANGLE OF 89DEG34'45" 329.29 FT 
THENCE S TO PT OF BEG & EX BEG AT SE COR THENCE N 397 FT TO PT OF BEG THENCE 
WLY 329.36 FT THENCE N AT AN ANGLE OF 90DEG25'15" 147.02 FT THENCE E AT AN 
ANGLE OF 89DEG34'45" 329.29 FT THENCE S TO PT OF BEG & EX THAT PART COMM AT SE 
COR ALSO BEING THE PT OF BEG THENCE N ALONG THE E LINE 397 FT THENCE DEFLECT 
90DEG24'10" TO THE LEFT IN A WLY DIRECTION 329.36 FT THENCE DEFLECT 89DEG34'15" 
TO THE LEFT IN A SLY DIRECTION AND PARALLEL WITH THE E LINE 397 FT TO THE SLY 
LINE THENCE ELY ALONG SLY LINE TO THE PT OF BEG SECTION TWENTY FIVE (25), 
TOWNSHIP FIFTY (50), RANGE FIFTEEN (15). 
 
PARCEL: 395-0010-07589 
 
AND 
 
OUTLOT A VALLEYVIEW DIVISION SECTION TWENTY FIVE (25), TOWNSHIP FIFTY (50), 
RANGE FIFTEEN (15). 
 
PARCEL: 395-0195-00040 
 

 
 
 

 



Location Map 

 

 

SITE

O
K

E
R

S
T

R
O

M
  R

O
A

D
 

MORRIS THOMAS ROAD 

JO
H

N
SO

N
 R

O
A

D
 

CITY R.O.W. 

OUTLOT A 



CH-Bonnie Engseth 

Sub.Jed: FW: Keene Creek Trail Subdivision • Road Access 

From: HPO-Jlm Crace 
Sent: Monday, June 28, 20214:11 PM 
To: CH-Eric Johnson <erlc.Johnson@hermantownmn.com> 
Subject: RE: Keene Creek Trail Subdivision · Road Access 

Eric, 
The stance from the Police Department is (and always has been) that any new housing area 
should have two independent avenues of egress. The reasons for this Is that It is much easier 
to patrol areas that are connected and emergency response is more predicable when there are 
two ways in/out of an area. In addition, for Fire/Rescue, it is better to have two ways into a 
neighborhood in the event that one is blocked In some fashion. 

I understand that this is not always possible, but when possible, we should always strive for 
this as a standard. 

If you have any further questions, feel free to contact me. 

Sincerely, 

Chief CRace 

+ " . RitMi#MOHRlffitiiiti1fW 
~ ,. 

JlmCr~ 
Qllol of Pollot 

HERIIIAtffllWN l'OUCI!' DIIWnMENT' 
5121 MlpNQ- ~d 
H•rm1nto.n, MN t!IIU 

otltu: :U'-72t-UOO 
~lo Malit a1e.1.211-1202 
r.,,11: cnoo01Mrm1nwwninn.com 

1 



6SANSANSANSANSANSANSANSANSANSANSANSANSANSANSANSANSANSANSAN

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

FO
FO

FO
FO

FO
FO

FO
FO

FO
FO

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W

1305

1310

1315

1301

1302

1303

1304

1306

1307
1308

1309

1311

1312

1313

1314

1316

1300

1298
1299

1280

1285

1290

1295

1300

1276

1276

1277

1278

1279

1281

1282

1283

1284

1286
1287
1288
1289

1291

1292

1293

1294

1296

1297
1298
1299

1301
1302
1303
1304

1270

1275

1271

1272

1273

1274

1315

1320

1311
1312

1313

1314

1316

1317

1318

1319

1321

1322

1280

1285

1290

1295

13
00

13
05

1310

1315

1281

1282

1283

1284

1286

1287

1288

1289

1291

1292

1293

12
94

12
96

1297129812
9913

0113
0213
0313
0413

0613
0713

0813
09

1311131213131314131613171318

1270

1270

1267
1267

1268

1268

1269

1269

1271

1271

1272

1273

1274

1305

1301

1302

13031304

1306

1307

1305

1303

1304

1306

1270

1275
1280

1285

1290

1295

12
68

1269

1300

1299

1299

1301

1290

12
90

1290

1295

1295

1275
1275

12
851285

1290

1280

1275

1275

1275

<<<<<<<<

<<
<<

<< <<<<<<<< << <<

<

<

< <<

< <<

<

< < <

<
<

<

<

<<<<<<<<
<<

<<

<<

<<

<<
<<

<< <<

<<<<

<<
<<

1295

1295

1300

1285

1290
1295

12801285

1305

1305
1300

13
05

13
05

1310

1310

1315

1315

1305

1310

1310

1310
1315

13
05

1310

1300

1305

1300

12
90

1295

1285

1275

1280

1280

13
05

OH OH

13
10

13
05 13

10

License No.
I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS PLAN, REPORT, OR
SPECIFICATION WAS PREPARED BY ME OR
UNDER MY DIRECT SUPERVISION AND THAT I AM
A DULY LICENSED PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER
UNDER THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF MINNESOTA.

Date

NAME

DATE REGNO

© MSA Professional Services, Inc.

www.msa-ps.com

ENGINEERING | ARCHITECTURE | SURVEYING
FUNDING | PLANNING | ENVIRONMENTAL KEENE CREEK TRAIL SUBDIVISION

DARREN WEETS
CITY OF HERMANTOWN

PROJECT NO.

14491004
SHEET

G_
PRELIMINARY   DRAWN BY:            JAS

   DESIGNED BY:       Init

   CHECKED BY:        Init
OVERALL SITE PLAN

  PLOT DATE: 5/20/2021 12:48 PM, G:\14\14491\14491004\CADD\Construction Documents\14491004 Overall Site Plan.dwg

  PROJECT DATE: .

REVISION

.

.

.

NO. DATE

. .

. .

. .

BY
.

.

.

0 60 120

(218) 722-3915
332 W Superior Street, Duluth MN 55802

OKERSTROM ROAD

M
O

R
R

IS
 T

H
O

M
AS

 R
O

AD

C
AR

LS
O

N
 R

O
AD

KEENE

CREEK

SEE INSET FOR CONTINUATION

INSET

JOHNSON ROAD

MATCH LINE

MATCH LINE

PROPOSED WATER MAIN (TYP)

PROPOSED STORM
SEWER  (TYP)

PROPOSED WATER MAIN (TYP)

PROPOSED STORM
SEWER (TYP)

PROPOSED 8" PVC
SANITARY SEWER (TYP)

PROPOSED 8" PVC
SANITARY SEWER (TYP)

PROPOSED KEENE CREEK COURT

PROPOSED KEENE CREEK TRAIL

CONNECT TO EXISTING
SANITARY STUB AT MANHOLE



, ..... , 
..... ., • 01.tf"\..a-t A- • 1'Cla-DP~p 

QUT\_-,,. 

= ''""''-E: ~. e,,1.,-t L.GT #-rv-,1..c'-'0N£ Ldl 
TI1t50lffi1fAST ~ Of'----... 

CREEK TRAIL ,--~ol'!ii,"u,u,=',,.~ .··· ""' !\l"!;;,"'lf'f#',,-. ,'f i 
·:--.--i-- ·-- ,IAN~ r---"-:.r·~.Jt:~,~--- ...l!!i,n-.:_·~=" ·;;--.:: ,~'WL "~"""" .;r J:l"J~~'--, . ... ; { .N'''""""""'" 

~~ JtoN \ ~· ~:.~~J ,,--~.J{~~1:S~ ~") (-~wfwi ~ I ~ Ol'THE / CIW!LDlL.&LOR1~1\1?SON I i 1tfc~ffl,f 
/ 7- ~tN~ikf~u~~ \ :; V,/ 1/ i, EXCEPTION ~-~ 314 INC~ / I f NOl1'20•:14.,r --,~ 1 J,,-- 296.•T NOt1'18~-W ·--,, / SZ,.JP / N00"20"24,r - ,,\ l ' 

_, ,. ·.; ,. / , - - · ·--···· - ---. / PIPC IIISeRl&(O 13194 \ ' .. , ,. - ') I 
t:~ 100 · •· ,0000 wi,,:,,:; ~ «· 1~ .o., • ,oo.oo ! ~,6 .l125 ,o,::oo 10000 e, .. n 1uso 122eo ' ·1 

. IL 

LEGEND 
• FOUIO SECTION C()RN(FI . 
e FOUNOMONIM'.Mf 

0 

© 

-0-

$ 
----.l= 

8 n£CTR1C MEIER. n(U)\l[IIFY . '""""' 
Df.UNEATED Wm.ANO BOUNOtdf'I' 

--•--uNDtftafl:OUNDruc:T1'11C 

--~-- UNDERaROUNOF'StROPTIC 

---"- WATtft LM --·---- \ . 

,,/· [ 
roor:iii...'/Fiiofl~--"" It ! 

::~ ~£! 

:;:;;; p 
f-- ~L 

=~= 
~~; :~~ 
','-' 

•··LiJ 
u: 

'.]:Li. 

ki 
I 
~~ ~· i 

, - , ,-T-T~ 'l,-T--1r-,1-- ·r 0 ~ 
0 .. - , I '?- 1 , I ,, , I , , ~, ,_;., \.N 

i\ ~ 
S 6 ! § 7 ! ~ 8 : 't 9 : ! ,o : ~ 11 ~ : ~., 1] ·~ i_ 13 

-L _J ; ;:, i; ~= ~; ~' l- A ----. 
L _~ L ~L-~L-~L-~ L -~ L 

s L 0 C K 

"'~ 

KEENE 961 .63 

"> 

;- ,p· . . 
~' "'" ' _,,,, .1-

?,./ -""] 
,.:\~ -'/ 

v~,· ,.,/ I < g ,~ I 
-\'i\( / . I ~ 
,.k,- ~ - J ... 

/. 

1 

! DA~ 
ROAD 

I :11·
A' i

1 

l jl 
11 

~1 1, I 
~t ::!,_ 0 --,u..11 

!I 
~ I . ~ fib~ 
' b t . ~ ~ 

HJI: 
11 

• - · -PIU'OSCOS01'10t: UN( ~~ 

~' .,•< --.~;'j. 
jf~ ;~"'--:;.~7 
'·-:.-:1..[;,~_.. I 

l1 

IL z* 
6 a:4_ 120 

I 

::~!:~~.~ 
(SQ.'!11'8)1Wle3. 

t 

-~ . ~·· ~· ·~=----=-.~4, ~~ ..1. . ~ .4T' .. . _ -E1-::r----==----=.c -> -~:. ;,, -- w,1 ais--·---,1s--=-:;"" ,:,j 
l - ~- JJ.-n~-- : r--<::"=-~+: _;:- --.--- , \· j ~.~ a ~-1.122.75 /~ -

/ ::l 1322.75 --.J~ 

1 

---.,--- I I , 
1 

,I 1079.7~ ROA __ D___ -- .. ---- ---- ----- / I ~ .. -- -1·:it>T\ / \ ',. OKERSTRO __ M _ _ __ 1.. __ ,,,,."---+-:--- ~ ---- .,_,,,.., _ _.. , FOUND IRON ROD-, - ' ' ' - --- ----- I ·; .... '11?Il.H Of' 
-"- SCRIBED 18147 ~ --\" ------ --- ---- \ s,0:-ii,;"'Ji,,. "· ,S I 

I ~™~~~---, 
L __ ! 

r --L-, 
160.00 

BENCHMARK: '•-R1M•127U1 '·-RIM.,1213.0J 

MICIQTM0NM£NTLAl([SUJIJMNDTRES£T 
El.fllATION • 1214.U 

"TIIIS~lllT\&'!Sl«M:aROI.Nl!NOIC\TIONSO/F\llfJ'fll'SHIO~~--.&J-«;S..THC 

---;c.~lii":t:: ,5 

I 
0C.!_ONCDl1'! $\A. l • I 

~~l~k~~~~~~ ~ MSA~~~~~~;:G 
3llW Sl/perior StrMl,Du!'JIIIWISSII02 

at11 n2-391,-~-

KEENE CREEK TRAIL 
CITY OF HERMANTOWN 
ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MN 

PRELIMINARY PLAT 
14491004 

20F2 



• 
• 

It! 

-... - .. --------.. -.. ..... 

-~-D-

... 

... llllft'f .... .., ... tPN 

.,, ... ..,lfl ... 117M ---...._ WT~.,&.~ 

1illn 1,~ 

0 .. ,trllDl ... flD.IID 

CMl'IIDl ...... 111:!UND 

UIIIGl' ....... •IIClffll .... OPNW''V4 GI'• 'f4,,... Maaao 1'0 tw1 A IUIINII .. -.. ..... 

-....... ICIION29,,-IIIIW 

........ Dall\ ........ . .,,,,..,. 

_-:::;;,:......·. 

• ~ -::__!_.!:. __ _ 

.O~'-~ 
~ 

__ .. 

·..iitr-r --· 

PLAT OF 

VALLEYVIEW DIVIS.ION 
LOCATED IN THEE 1/2 OF NW 1/4 OF SE 1/4, 

SECTION 25, T.50N., R.15W. 
OF n-E FOJRTH PRIIOPAI... ~DIAN 

; -~o ... 
~000.N' 
l r·J_~ 

I
i 20: 
~"-"~ 

1l-' 
I~ .... -
~& .... ;-· 
~~-i-
i '"' !t !-~;; : i :-I 

•t14Gl'a"4GP ~.I, 
IBCIIQIIII, ,.. .... -+ 

-::-... :C.~;:! 

PIIII Dodloalior, 

KNOW AU. IMlN BY THUE PRESalTS: Tho! Citf. <II -. • -
-v.:-~._fiJNW«o.-

Colpcntion, -Md--<11.lho -p,opoity- in lhoClly --.Counly<ll8l~-- towtt 

Eut Half <II - '2ualW <II Quanor (E 1/2 <11. IM 1/4 <II 8E 114) •. 
SECTION ~(26), 1'QYIN-Filly J!O) Nor111.<IIIWIGl!-Wootof111e 
F-Pflrlclpol-.__..to ... T --Sw¥ay-
Coftloli*,g1t.M-<II·- . - ....... &: .. _ 
Hallo-lho-tobo-and •VAI.I.E.'IVIEWDMSIONand,do holoby-and-tot,a-lor __ lho ___ and_ 

~1ho--•1hoMlontllil1for--anty. 

™IMTNES8WHEl!EOF•--nto .,.our-tllil~ 
dav of h 1ttff. cA 1195. 

°"""' 
Cltyol-

Z?b:9t:: c...a-:::--- z{ ~.., 0 ,4.. ,,; 
STA'TE OF MINNESOTA ) 

)88 
COUNTY OF ST. LOUIS ) 

Theto,ogoing-- ~ I mo .!:fhc1ay <II~ 
1~ by OA,<1c/:Ti («r/i+:' Md ~ " SY( ol the Cly ~ -·Munldpal-onJ:of -. 

~ I•=-~ I ~-St.Lou9Counly.Mii ---·- Mycr-E>il*IO-
lholobycoltllYflell-·-anc1~1ho--ontllil·plalU· 
VALLEVVIEW DIVISION. t1,t tllilplallu~---t,a-"-IIII· d--"""9dly- ....... plal5 ... and_.,.loot,·lhalllll ---~-lnlho. __ ....... __ __ ooneclly...,_.......... ....- .... --.......... 
MIMMZ..,..1 orPlll,la~tobe . oet.thlriathown. 

STA'TE OF MINNESOTA ) 
)8S 

COUNTY OF ST. LOUIS J rDaii l a..=.~:="' 

Tllo"'°IIOlnll~-- _nio .... ~--
~ 1"611,D*L-IIN~No. 1S7M. 

• 
....,..a_ 1~ !,f..b-,.,eG r:.li.ocJ.. • ~ Publo.·st. Loull Count,, MN ... ---- My~--

WodoholobyOO!tilyflelonlho. ,~~ eo..ndl.of--. ....- . 

~£4---
~- Cly 

I ho,wbyCOll!t/lhal""'plalhaboan . 
)'\MEW 1995. 

--~La-t ICf.S-

1915.lhoCl!y 

. .,..,.. 

.... a, .... fll ... ::.::::·\· 
'"--' ............. _..,.,._--

. =:ma::;: . .. - ... ...,;;...a ..... ~_,. ..... ., .. 
- __J,lL. · IWl.li. ' ...... _...., .. 
•.., -: 

0e...~~v'\ 
'"'>-s 

All ,_hlll 
?@,b flt . , 19 9£.. 

Gonion D. Mmul 
·St. l.aais ~ Auil~or 

··~~ly 

.,3 9 ,.- - 1.9.S::. 

,;. 

:,; 

,• 

ft-. . . .... 

,~ ":\ 

, 

. ..;, ., 
' -.. ~) 



.~ 
'-. r· .. 



Twinhome Example 

 

 



City Council Agenda Report                                                                                      Resolution 2021-79                             
July 6, 2021                                                                                                                  Agenda Item: 12-D 
 

Working together to serve and build our community. 

TO: Mayor & City Council 
 

 
FROM:  Eric Johnson, Community 

Development Director 

 
DATE: June 22, 2020 Meeting Date:  7/6/21 

 
SUBJECT: Preliminary Plat – Keene Creek 

Trail Subdivision 
Agenda Item: 12-D Resolution 2021-79 

 
REQUESTED ACTION 
Approve a Preliminary Plat with Jay Zierden/Zierden Builders for the Keene Creek Trail 
Subdivision 

 
DESCRIPTION OF REQUEST 
Applicant is requesting approval of a Preliminary Plat for construction of a 21 lot single family 
home and 8 twinhome lot (8 units total) for a total of 29 lots located in the NE intersection of 
Okerstrom Road and Morris Thomas Road.  The property is located in an R-3 zoning district. 
 
SITE INFORMATION: 
Parcel Size:   36.5 acres 
Legal Access:   Morris Thomas Road and Carlson Road (Future) 
Wetlands:   Yes, delineation approved in 2020 
Existing Zoning:  R-3, Residential 
Airport Overlay:  None 
Shoreland Overlay:  Natural Environment 
Comprehensive Plan: Suburban 
 
Development Details 
The applicant is proposing to construct 21 single family home lots and 8 twinhome lots (8 units 
total) for a total of 29 lots on an existing 33 acre lot.  In addition, the applicant has requested the 
City enter into an agreement to swap the 2.5 acre Outlot A of the Valleyview Division Plat for 
the 12.6 acre outlot proposed as part of this plat.  The proposed project will consist of 21 single 
family lots ranging in size from 16,400 square feet to 58,890 square feet.  In addition, the 
applicant is proposing 8 twinhome lots ranging from 11,743 square feet to 20,605 square feet in 
size for the purpose of building 4 twinhomes, for a total of 8 units total. 
 
A public hearing for the Preliminary Plat was held on Tuesday, June 15, 2021.  There were 
approximately 30 people in attendance.  Public concern was expressed over the proposed Carlson 
Road connection and how this future road could affect traffic and safety along Johnson and 
Portland Roads.  In addition, a petition signed by 44 residents of Johnson and Portland Roads to 
stop the Carlson Road connection was submitted to the City and included in the Planning and 
Zoning Commission packet.  The project as proposed with the Carlson Road connection was 
recommended for approval 4-2. 
 



City Council Agenda Report                                                                                      Resolution 2021-79                             
July 6, 2021                                                                                                                  Agenda Item: 12-D 
 

Working together to serve and build our community. 

Zoning Analysis: 

The property is zoned R-3, Residential.  The applicant has applied for a Planned Unit Development 
(PUD) for the property.  A PUD is a permitted use in an R-3 zone district. Section 11 of the zoning 
ordinance explains that: ‘A PUD is intended to encourage a more efficient and creative use of land 
and development, more efficient and effective use of streets, utilities and public services; 
protection of natural resources; and more efficient and effective provision of recreational, public 
and open space than can be achieved through conventional development procedures. 
 
The purpose of the PUD request is to allow for the creation of 8 twinhome lots and for 17 of the 
proposed 21 single family lots to be less than ½ acre (21,780 square feet) in size. 
 
Plat 
The applicant is currently only seeking approval of a preliminary plat.  A preliminary plat is a 
drawing that provides enough information for the City to determine that the proposed 
development can meet the City’s zoning, environmental, engineering, and other development 
standards.  Approval of the preliminary plat does not grant approval to develop the property.  It 
provides the applicant and City with a basis for further planning direction and design. 
 
The applicant is proposing to divide the property into 29 lots.  A preliminary plat has been 
provided as part of the application.  A final plat prepared by a registered land surveyor will be 
required for the project.  Staff is working with the applicant on the street names for the project. 
 
Setbacks 
City Code allows a PUD to have standards that meet the City’s goals for each proposed 
development.  These standards include building height, density, roadway widths and setbacks.  
The proposed project is for 21 lot single family home and 8 twinhome lot (8 units total) for a 
total of 29 lots.  The single family lots meet the underlying front and rear yard setback 
requirements of the R-3 zoning district.  The applicant is proposing a minimum 10’ foot side 
yard setback, 20’ aggregate total as opposed to the 25’ aggregate total associated with the R-3 
district.  The PUD allows for the setting of site specific setbacks. 
 
The twinhome lots propose a 50’ front yard setback, a 40’ rear yard setback and a minimum 10’ 
foot side yard setback (20’ aggregate total).  The twinhomes are located within the interior of the 
site and do not abut any existing single family homes. 
 
Utilities 
The applicant has engaged a civil engineer to conduct this work with preliminary documents 
being submitted as part of the application.  The work submitted include grading plans along with 
water and sanitary sewer plans.   
 
The project proposes the extension of a sanitary sewer line from Morris Thomas Road which 
generally parallels Keene Creek and progressing to the north and east to provide sanitary sewer 
service to each lot. 
 



City Council Agenda Report                                                                                      Resolution 2021-79                             
July 6, 2021                                                                                                                  Agenda Item: 12-D 
 

Working together to serve and build our community. 

The water main extension will connect from Morris Thomas Road running to the north and east 
and connect into the existing water main in Johnson Road.  This design will provide a looped 
water system for the proposed development. 
 
Upon submittal of the Final PUD the applicant will be required to submit construction 
documents for review and approval by the City Engineer.  Upon City acceptance, all utilities will 
be turned over to the City of Hermantown. 
 
Stormwater 
The applicant is proposing a series of six ponds located throughout the site to accommodate the 
stormwater associated with the project.  The applicant has engaged a civil engineer to conduct 
this work with preliminary documents being submitted as part of the application.  Upon 
submittal of the Final PUD the applicant will be required to submit erosion and sediment control 
plan for construction and post-construction control of run-off.  Bio-rolls, silt fencing and other 
Best Management Practices will be required in order to control runoff during construction. 
 
The stormwater ponds are within the proposed outlot for the plat and will be turned over to the 
City upon completion and acceptance by the City Engineer. 
 
Access 
The project is proposed to be accessed by way of a thru road connecting Morris Thomas Road to 
Johnson Road.  As part of the Valleyview Division plat, a 66’ road right of way was platted as 
Carlson Road.  This road had been envisioned to provide access to the property located to the 
west of Johnson Road.  This road would be a public, 28 foot wide asphalt roadway with curb and 
gutter with a 5’ foot width sidewalk along one side of the road. 
 
The City is requiring the applicant to construct a thru road connecting Morris Thomas to Johnson 
Road.  A thru road is beneficial from a life/safety standpoint as it provides two means of ingress 
and egress to a development for police and fire access.  The City’s goal is to ensure that adequate 
roads, sewer, water, fire and police protection are in place or provided for before the final 
preliminary plat is approved.   
 
The applicant will be fully responsible to design and construct the proposed roads within the 
project to City standards.  Upon completion and inspection by the City Engineer, the City will 
accept the road and maintain it from after time of acceptance. 
 
Land Swap 
As part of the 1995 Valleyview Division plat, the City created an outlot which was accessed by 
way of a 66’ road right of way platted as Carlson Road.  This outlot had been envisioned as 
future development of the original plat.  This 2.5 acre outlot abuts the proposed property and by 
its inclusion in the project allows for its development and access by way of Carlson Road.   
 
The City has discussed a land swap with the applicant, with the applicant making a formal 
request for the City’s Valleyview Division Outlot.  The proposed land swap encompasses the 
12.6 acre proposed plat outlot for the City’s 2.5 acre Valleyview Division Outlot.  This land 
swap accomplishes multiple goals: the protection of Keene Creek; the protection of wetlands; the 



City Council Agenda Report                                                                                      Resolution 2021-79                             
July 6, 2021                                                                                                                  Agenda Item: 12-D 
 

Working together to serve and build our community. 

location of stormwater ponds; available land for the City’s planned segment connection of the 
Munger Trail Spur; two points of ingress/egress for the proposed development and development 
of an existing outlot for residential housing. 
 
City staff will continue to work with the applicant on the details associated with this proposed 
land swap. 
 
Wetlands 
A wetland delineation was performed in the fall of 2020.  The plan envisions wetland impacts 
associated with the road construction and potentially 2-4 lots in order to accommodate a building 
footprint.  The applicant will be required to submit a wetland impact plan to the Hermantown 
Technical Evaluation Panel for their review and approval. 
 
The MN DNR has also identified a potential tributary to Keene Creek that runs from east to west 
along the south portion of the property and generally parallels Morris Thomas Road.  This 
classification of this unmapped water conveyance by the DNR as a tributary is still being 
discussed with the DNR.  The applicant will be required to obtain all necessary permits from the 
DNR should this water conveyance be classified as a tributary. 
 
Park Dedication Fees 
The developer will be required to pay park dedication fees consistent with the requirements of 
the City Zoning Ordinance. A park dedication fee of $1,100 per lot/unit will be paid at the time 
of final PUD approval.  Bedroom fees at the rate of $150/bedroom will be paid at the time of 
building permit. 
 
Summary 
 
Staff recommends approval of the Preliminary Plat based on the findings of this report and the 
following conditions 
 
1. The proposed preliminary plat meets the intent of the R-3, Residential Zoning District and 

the overall goals and policies of the Zoning Ordinance.   
 

2. The proposed preliminary plat meets the Comprehensive Plan criteria for residential 
development. 
 

3. The Applicant shall enter into an agreement with the City for a land swap for Applicants 12.6 
acre outlot for the City’s 2.5 acre Outlot A associated with the Valleyview Division plat. 

 
ATTACHMENTS: 

• Location Map 
• Preliminary Site Plan 
• Preliminary Plat 
• Valleyview Division Plat 
• Aerial with Road Alignment 



Resolution No. 2021-79 
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING PRELIMINARY PLAT OF KEENE CREEK TRAIL 
SUBDIVISION AND IMPOSING CONDITIONS ON SUBMITTAL OF THE FINAL PLAT 

 
 WHEREAS, Jay Zierden/Zierden Builders (Applicant) has requested a preliminary plat for Keene 
Creek Trail Subdivision comprised of 21 single family lots, 8 twinhome lots and two out lots in an R-3 
zoning district; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Hermantown Planning and Zoning Commission has recommended the approval 
of the preliminary plat following a public hearing on June 15, 2021; and 
 

WHEREAS, upon the satisfaction of the conditions set forth herein, the preliminary plat will 
satisfy the requirements of the Hermantown Zoning Code; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council has duly considered this matter and believes that it is in the best 

interests of the City of Hermantown that the preliminary plat be approved, subject to certain conditions 
being met. 

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Hermantown, 

Minnesota, as follows: 
 

1. The preliminary plat is in accordance with and conformity to the Hermantown Comprehensive 
Plan and Hermantown Zoning Ordinance. 
 

2. The preliminary plat of Keene Creek Trail Subdivision is hereby approved. 
 

3. The following conditions are imposed upon the final plat: 
 

a. The final plat shall be submitted within one year of the date of the approval of the 
preliminary plat. 

b. The title of the land underlying the plat shall be approved by the City Attorney. 
c. Any deficiency noted by the surveyor on the preliminary plat will be corrected on the 

final plat. 
d. Applicant shall pay a cash contribution in lieu of parkland dedication per the schedule 

adopted in the Hermantown Fee Schedule. 
e. Applicant shall enter into a development agreement with the City at time of final plat that 

outlines development responsibilities and provide financial securities for site 
improvements and utility installation. 

f. Applicant agrees to construct, at their own expense, a connection between Morris 
Thomas Road and Johnson Road, via Carlson Road, in a manner and time to be 
determined via development agreement with City. 

g. Regardless of the impact on the number of approved lots, all lots will meet the 
requirements associated with the Planned Unit Development approval for the project. 
Additional requirements per the Hermantown Zoning Ordinance, include but not limited 
to: 

i. Section 1020.02.2. Frontage. The entire required frontage of each lot must abut 
on a street that has been officially accepted by the City of Hermantown or other 
governmental body with jurisdiction over such street, except as provided for flag 
lots and cul-de-sacs; and 



ii. 1020.04.3. When a lot completely abuts a cul-de-sac, the required frontage may 
be measured at the building setback line. 

h. Prior to approval of the final plat, the applicant shall submit an application for wetland 
replacement plan associated with the wetland impacts proposed on site. 

i. Prior to approval of the final plat, the applicant shall submit and receive approval from 
the City Engineer of a permanent stormwater treatment plan that meets the City standards 
codified in Sections 1080 and 1060 of the City Code. 

j. Prior to approval of the final plat, the applicant shall submit and receive approval from 
the City Engineer a road design meeting the Hermantown Urban Section Road Standards 
with a 28’ wide curb face to curb face bituminous paved road with a sidewalk on at least 
one side and all other Hermantown road design standards including 30 mph speed design. 

k. Prior to approval of the Final Plat, the applicant shall submit and receive approval from 
the City Engineer a road design meeting the Hermantown Urban Section Road Standards 
with cul-de-sacs designed to R/W width of 130’ with a paved surface of 100’ paved 
surface. 

l. The applicant shall sign a consent form assenting to all conditions of this approval.  
 
Councilor ____ introduced the foregoing resolution and moved its adoption. 

  
 The motion for the adoption of such resolutions was seconded by Councilor _____ and, upon a 
vote being taken thereon, the following voted in favor thereof: 
 
 Councilors 
 
and the following voted in opposition thereto: 
 
   
  
 WHEREUPON, such resolution was declared duly passed and adopted July 6, 2021. 

 
 
 



Location Map 

 

 

SITE

O
K

E
R

S
T

R
O

M
  R

O
A

D
 

MORRIS THOMAS ROAD 

JO
H

N
SO

N
 R

O
A

D
 

CITY R.O.W. 

OUTLOT A 



6SANSANSANSANSANSANSANSANSANSANSANSANSANSANSANSANSANSANSAN

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

FO
FO

FO
FO

FO
FO

FO
FO

FO
FO

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W

1305

1310

1315

1301

1302

1303

1304

1306

1307
1308

1309

1311

1312

1313

1314

1316

1300

1298
1299

1280

1285

1290

1295

1300

1276

1276

1277

1278

1279

1281

1282

1283

1284

1286
1287
1288
1289

1291

1292

1293

1294

1296

1297
1298
1299

1301
1302
1303
1304

1270

1275

1271

1272

1273

1274

1315

1320

1311
1312

1313

1314

1316

1317

1318

1319

1321

1322

1280

1285

1290

1295

13
00

13
05

1310

1315

1281

1282

1283

1284

1286

1287

1288

1289

1291

1292

1293

12
94

12
96

1297129812
9913

0113
0213
0313
0413

0613
0713

0813
09

1311131213131314131613171318

1270

1270

1267
1267

1268

1268

1269

1269

1271

1271

1272

1273

1274

1305

1301

1302

13031304

1306

1307

1305

1303

1304

1306

1270

1275
1280

1285

1290

1295

12
68

1269

1300

1299

1299

1301

1290

12
90

1290

1295

1295

1275
1275

12
851285

1290

1280

1275

1275

1275

<<<<<<<<

<<
<<

<< <<<<<<<< << <<

<

<

< <<

< <<

<

< < <

<
<

<

<

<<<<<<<<
<<

<<

<<

<<

<<
<<

<< <<

<<<<

<<
<<

1295

1295

1300

1285

1290
1295

12801285

1305

1305
1300

13
05

13
05

1310

1310

1315

1315

1305

1310

1310

1310
1315

13
05

1310

1300

1305

1300

12
90

1295

1285

1275

1280

1280

13
05

OH OH

13
10

13
05 13

10

License No.
I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS PLAN, REPORT, OR
SPECIFICATION WAS PREPARED BY ME OR
UNDER MY DIRECT SUPERVISION AND THAT I AM
A DULY LICENSED PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER
UNDER THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF MINNESOTA.

Date

NAME

DATE REGNO

© MSA Professional Services, Inc.

www.msa-ps.com

ENGINEERING | ARCHITECTURE | SURVEYING
FUNDING | PLANNING | ENVIRONMENTAL KEENE CREEK TRAIL SUBDIVISION

DARREN WEETS
CITY OF HERMANTOWN

PROJECT NO.

14491004
SHEET

G_
PRELIMINARY   DRAWN BY:            JAS

   DESIGNED BY:       Init

   CHECKED BY:        Init
OVERALL SITE PLAN

  PLOT DATE: 5/20/2021 12:48 PM, G:\14\14491\14491004\CADD\Construction Documents\14491004 Overall Site Plan.dwg

  PROJECT DATE: .

REVISION

.

.

.

NO. DATE

. .

. .

. .

BY
.

.

.

0 60 120

(218) 722-3915
332 W Superior Street, Duluth MN 55802

OKERSTROM ROAD

M
O

R
R

IS
 T

H
O

M
AS

 R
O

AD

C
AR

LS
O

N
 R

O
AD

KEENE

CREEK

SEE INSET FOR CONTINUATION

INSET

JOHNSON ROAD

MATCH LINE

MATCH LINE

PROPOSED WATER MAIN (TYP)

PROPOSED STORM
SEWER  (TYP)

PROPOSED WATER MAIN (TYP)

PROPOSED STORM
SEWER (TYP)

PROPOSED 8" PVC
SANITARY SEWER (TYP)

PROPOSED 8" PVC
SANITARY SEWER (TYP)

PROPOSED KEENE CREEK COURT

PROPOSED KEENE CREEK TRAIL

CONNECT TO EXISTING
SANITARY STUB AT MANHOLE





• 
• 

It! 

-... - .. --------.. -.. ..... 

-~-D-

... 

... llllft'f .... .., ... tPN 

.,, ... ..,lfl ... 117M ---...._ WT~.,&.~ 

1illn 1,~ 

0 .. ,trllDl ... flD.IID 

CMl'IIDl ...... 111:!UND 

UIIIGl' ....... •IIClffll .... OPNW''V4 GI'• 'f4,,... Maaao 1'0 tw1 A IUIINII .. -.. ..... 

-....... ICIION29,,-IIIIW 

........ Dall\ ........ . .,,,,..,. 

_-:::;;,:......·. 

• ~ -::__!_.!:. __ _ 

.O~'-~ 
~ 

__ .. 

·..iitr-r --· 

PLAT OF 

VALLEYVIEW DIVIS.ION 
LOCATED IN THEE 1/2 OF NW 1/4 OF SE 1/4, 

SECTION 25, T.50N., R.15W. 
OF n-E FOJRTH PRIIOPAI... ~DIAN 

; -~o ... 
~000.N' 
l r·J_~ 

I
i 20: 
~"-"~ 

1l-' 
I~ .... -
~& .... ;-· 
~~-i-
i '"' !t !-~;; : i :-I 

•t14Gl'a"4GP ~.I, 
IBCIIQIIII, ,.. .... -+ 

-::-... :C.~;:! 

PIIII Dodloalior, 

KNOW AU. IMlN BY THUE PRESalTS: Tho! Citf. <II -. • -
-v.:-~._fiJNW«o.-

Colpcntion, -Md--<11.lho -p,opoity- in lhoClly --.Counly<ll8l~-- towtt 

Eut Half <II - '2ualW <II Quanor (E 1/2 <11. IM 1/4 <II 8E 114) •. 
SECTION ~(26), 1'QYIN-Filly J!O) Nor111.<IIIWIGl!-Wootof111e 
F-Pflrlclpol-.__..to ... T --Sw¥ay-
Coftloli*,g1t.M-<II·- . - ....... &: .. _ 
Hallo-lho-tobo-and •VAI.I.E.'IVIEWDMSIONand,do holoby-and-tot,a-lor __ lho ___ and_ 

~1ho--•1hoMlontllil1for--anty. 

™IMTNES8WHEl!EOF•--nto .,.our-tllil~ 
dav of h 1ttff. cA 1195. 

°"""' 
Cltyol-

Z?b:9t:: c...a-:::--- z{ ~.., 0 ,4.. ,,; 
STA'TE OF MINNESOTA ) 

)88 
COUNTY OF ST. LOUIS ) 

Theto,ogoing-- ~ I mo .!:fhc1ay <II~ 
1~ by OA,<1c/:Ti («r/i+:' Md ~ " SY( ol the Cly ~ -·Munldpal-onJ:of -. 

~ I•=-~ I ~-St.Lou9Counly.Mii ---·- Mycr-E>il*IO-
lholobycoltllYflell-·-anc1~1ho--ontllil·plalU· 
VALLEVVIEW DIVISION. t1,t tllilplallu~---t,a-"-IIII· d--"""9dly- ....... plal5 ... and_.,.loot,·lhalllll ---~-lnlho. __ ....... __ __ ooneclly...,_.......... ....- .... --.......... 
MIMMZ..,..1 orPlll,la~tobe . oet.thlriathown. 

STA'TE OF MINNESOTA ) 
)8S 

COUNTY OF ST. LOUIS J rDaii l a..=.~:="' 

Tllo"'°IIOlnll~-- _nio .... ~--
~ 1"611,D*L-IIN~No. 1S7M. 

• 
....,..a_ 1~ !,f..b-,.,eG r:.li.ocJ.. • ~ Publo.·st. Loull Count,, MN ... ---- My~--

WodoholobyOO!tilyflelonlho. ,~~ eo..ndl.of--. ....- . 

~£4---
~- Cly 

I ho,wbyCOll!t/lhal""'plalhaboan . 
)'\MEW 1995. 

--~La-t ICf.S-

1915.lhoCl!y 

. .,..,.. 

.... a, .... fll ... ::.::::·\· 
'"--' ............. _..,.,._--

. =:ma::;: . .. - ... ...,;;...a ..... ~_,. ..... ., .. 
- __J,lL. · IWl.li. ' ...... _...., .. 
•.., -: 

0e...~~v'\ 
'"'>-s 

All ,_hlll 
?@,b flt . , 19 9£.. 

Gonion D. Mmul 
·St. l.aais ~ Auil~or 

··~~ly 

.,3 9 ,.- - 1.9.S::. 

,;. 

:,; 

,• 

ft-. . . .... 

,~ ":\ 

, 

. ..;, ., 
' -.. ~) 



.~ 
'-. r· .. 



City Council Agenda Report  Resolution 2021-80 
July 6, 2021  Agenda Item: 12-E 
 
TO: Mayor & City Council 

 

 
FROM:  John Mulder, City Administrator  

DATE: June 30, 2021 
 

Meeting Date:  7/6/21 

SUBJECT: Road Improvement District 
No. 537 (Lavaque Jct. Rd.) 

Agenda Item: 12-E Resolution 2021-80 

 
REQUESTED ACTION 
Approve Pay Application #3 to Ulland Brothers for the construction related to the Lavaque Jct Rd. 
project – Road Improvement District No. 537. 

 
BACKGROUND 
Attached is Pay Application #3 for the work associated with the Lavaque Jct. Rd. Project – Road 
Improvement District No. 537 from May 22, 2021 through June 26, 2021. NCE and Ulland Brothers, Inc. 
have reviewed the project progress thus far and agreed upon quantities of work completed. The amount of 
Pay Application #3 is $275,049.98. The City will hold a 5% retainage of the completed construction through 
the duration of the project. This retainage amount for pay application #3 is $27,047.00. 

NCE has reviewed the quantities through construction inspection and discussions with Ulland Brothers, 
Inc. representatives. I recommend payment in the amount of $275,049.98 be authorized at the July 6, 2021 
City Council Meeting.   

 
SOURCE OF FUNDS (if applicable) 
475-431150-530 Proj. 537 

 
ATTACHMENTS 
Pay Application #3 



Resolution No. 2021-80 
 
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING PAY REQUEST NUMBER 3 FOR ROAD IMPROVEMENT 
DISTRICT NO. 537 (LAVAQUE JUNCTION ROAD) TO ULLAND BROTHERS, INC. IN THE 

AMOUNT OF $275,049.98 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Hermantown has contracted with Ulland Brothers, Inc. for construction 
of Road Improvement District No. 537 (Lavaque Junction Road) (“Project”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, Ulland Brothers, Inc. has performed a portion of the agreed upon work in said 
Project; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Ulland Brothers, Inc. has submitted Pay Request No. 3 in the amount of 
$275,049.98; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City will maintain an accumulated retainage as shown on the pay requests until 
the final work and documentation is completed; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Northland Consulting Engineers LLP has approved such Pay Request No. 3 
provided that $27,047.00 accumulated as retainage of 5% be withheld pending final acceptance of the 
Project by the City of Hermantown. 
 
 WHEREAS, the necessary documentation for the pay request is on file and available for 
inspection. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Hermantown, 
Minnesota as follows: 
 
 1. Pay Request No. 3 is hereby approved. 
 
 2. The City is hereby authorized and directed to pay to Ulland Brothers, Inc. the sum of 
$275,049.98 which is the amount represented on Pay Request No. 3. 
 
 Councilor _____ introduced the foregoing resolution and moved its adoption. 
 
 The motion for the adoption of such resolution was seconded by Councilor ____ and, upon a vote 
being taken thereon, the following voted in favor thereof: 
 
 Councilors  
 
and the following voted in opposition thereto: 
 
  
  
 WHEREUPON, such resolution has been duly passed and adopted July 6, 2021. 



 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

EJCDC~ Contractor's Applicat10n for Payment No. 3 

ENGINEERS JOINT CONTRACT Application I May 22, 2021 through June Application Date: 6/29/2021 DOCUMENTS COMMITTEE 26,2021 Period: 
Project Lavaque Junction From (Contractor): Via (Engineer): 

To City of Hermantown 
(Owner): Street lmpr. District #537 Ulland Brothers Inc. Northland Consulting Engineers, LLP 

Owner's Contract Number: Contractor's Project Number: Engineer Project Number: 

Street Improvement District #537 20-8014 

Application For Payment Application For Payment 

Change Order Summary Previous Pav Application Summary 

Approved Change Orders Approved Pay Applications 

Number Additions Deductions Number Date Amount 
I I 4/27/2021 SJS,462.73 

2 2 6/1/2021 $200,380.27 

3 3 

4 4 

TOTAL 8. TOTALS $238,843.00 

NET CHANGE BY CHANGE 
ORDER: 

I. ORIGINAL CONTRACT PRICE ............................................................................................................................... .. $ 1,353,290.00 

2. Net change by Change Orders ....................................................................................................................................... . $ 0.00 

3. Current Contract Price (Line l ± 2) ............................................................................................................................ .. $ 1,353,290.00 

4. TOTAL COMPLETED AND STORED TO DATE 

See attached Pay Application Summnry ............................................................................................................................ . $ 540,939.98 

5. RETAINAGE: 
a. 5% X $540,939.98 Work Completed ................................................................ .. $ 27,047.00 

b. 5% X Stored Mnterinl ............................................................... .. $ 

c. Total Rctninagc (Line 5.n + Linc 5.b) ............................................................................................................... .. $ 27,047.00 

6. AMOUNT ELIGIBLE TO DATE (Line 4- Linc 5.c) ................................................................................................ .. $ 513,892.98 

7. LESS PREVIOUS PAYMENTS (Linc 8 ) ................................................................................................................... .. $ 238,843.00 

9. AMOUNT DUE THIS APPLICATION ...................................................................................................................... .. $ 275,049.98 
10. BALANCE TO FINISH, PLUS RETAINAGE 

(Linc 3 - 4 + Line 5.c above) ........................................................................................................................................... .. $ 839,397.02 

Payment of: $ 275,049.98 
(Line 9 or other - attach explanation of the other amount) 

Contractor's Certification 
The undersigned Contractor certifies, to the best of its knowledge, the 
following: 
( I) All previous progress payments received from Owner on account of 
Work done under the Contract have been applied on account to discharge 
Contractor's legitimate obligations incurred in connection with the Work 
covered by prior Applications for Payment : 
(2) Title to all Work, materials and equipment incorporated in said Work, 
or otherwise listed in or covered by this Application for Payment, will pass 
to Owner at time of payment free and clear of all Liens, security interests, 
and encumbrances (except such as are covered by a bond acceptable to 
Owner indemnifying Owner against any such Liens. security interest, or 
encumbrances): and 

turc - Ulland Brothers Inc. 

Date: 

R~~ 

~E2--
David Bolf, P.E. - City Engineer 

Approved by: 

John Mulder, City Administrator 

EJCDC® C-620 Contractor's Application for Payment 
ii) 2013 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC. All rights reserved. 

Page I of I 

6/29/2021 

(Date) 

(Date) 



t}!:!~~E!g~!~L~d 
Pay Application #3 - June 29, 2021 

City of Hermantown 
Lavaque Junction 

~tructural, i:' lvil and forMsk fnglneern,g Street Improvement District #537 

Spec. Contract Total Ulland Unit 
Total Project 

Item No. Item Description Unit of Measure Completed Completed 
Number Quantities Price 

Quantities Cost 
BASE BID 

1 2021 .501 MOBILIZATION LS 1 $24,174.15 0 .5 $12,0B7.0B 

2 2101.501 CLEARING AND GRUBBING LS 1 $16,000.00 1 $16,000.00 

3 2101.524 CLEARING TREE 35 $400.00 35 $14,000.00 

4 2101 .524 GRUBBING TREE 35 $170.00 35 $5,950.00 

5 2104.502 REMOVE SIGN TYPE C EACH 38 $40.00 0 $0.00 

6 2104.502 REMOVE MAIL BOX SUPPORT EACH 35 $35.00 35 $1,225.00 

7 2104.502 REMOVE HYDRANT EACH 5 $800.00 5 $4,000.00 

8 2104.502 SALVAGE HYDRANT EACH 1 $1,200.00 1 $1,200.00 

9 2104.502 SALVAGE PIPE APRON EACH 1 $200.00 1 $200.00 

10 2104.503 REMOVE PIPE CULVERTS LF 896 $11.00 117 $1,287.00 

11 2104.503 REMOVE WATER SERVICE PIPE LF 46 $9.00 0 $0.00 

12 2104 .503 SAWING BITUMINOUS PAVEMENT (FULL DEPTH) LF 370 $2.00 370 $740.00 

13 2104.503 SAWING CONCRETE PAVEMENT (FULL DEPTH) LF 12 $3 .00 0 $0.00 

14 2104.504 REMOVE BITUMINOUS PAVEMENT SY 9,852 $1.80 9852 $17,733.60 

15 2104.504 REMOVE BITUMINOUS DRIVEWAY PAVEMENT SY 800 $6.00 800 $4,800.00 

16 2104.504 REMOVE CONCRETE DRIVEWAY PAVEMENT SY 12 $39.00 0 $0.00 

17 2104.618 SALVAGE BRICK PAYERS SF 455 $8.30 455 $3,776.50 

18 2105.601 WETLAND RESTORATION LS 1 $2,500.00 0 $0.00 

19 2105.507 SELECT GRANULAR BORROW MOD 7% (CV) CY 8,143 $12.00 6333 $75,996.00 

20 2106.504 GEOTEXTILE FABRIC TYPE 5 SY 22,429 $2.50 13328 $33,320.00 

21 2106.507 COMMON EXCAVATION CY 14,776 $10.80 6626 $71,560.80 

22 2106.507 MUCK EXCAVATION CY 5,500 $10. 70 4580 $49,006.00 

23 2106.507 GRANULAR BORROW {CV} CY 5,500 $16.00 3340 $53,440.00 

24 2130.523 WATER MGAL 52 $35 .00 4 $140.00 

25 2211.507 AGGREGATE BASE (CV) CLASS 5 CY 3,910 $30.00 0 $0.00 

26 2211.507 AGGREGATE BASE (CV) CLASS 5 DRIVEWAY CY 164 $75.00 0 $0.00 

27 2221.507 SHOULDER BASE AGGREGATE (CV) CLASS 5 CY 395 $45.00 0 $0 .00 

28 2215 .504 FULL DEPTH RECLAMATION SY 2,462 $4.20 2462 $10,340.40 

29 2360.509 TYPE SP 9.5 WEARING COURSE MIXTURE (3,B) TON 1,616 $60.00 0 $0.00 

30 2360.509 TYPE SP 12.5 NON-WEARING COURSE MIXTURE (3,B) TON 1,616 $58.00 0 $0 .00 

31 2360.609 TYPE SP 9 .5 BITUMINOUS MIXTURE FOR PATCHING TON 127 $185.00 0 $0.00 

32 2401.507 STRUCTURE EXCAVATION CLASS R CY 70 $300.00 49 $14,700.00 

33 2411.507 GRANULAR BACKFILL (CV) CY 140 $26.00 0 $0.00 

34 2451.507 COARSE FILTER AGGREGATE (CV) CY 82 $31.00 0 $0.00 

35 2501.502 24" RC PIPE APRON EACH 4 $800.00 4 $3,200.00 

36 2501.503 36" RC PIPE APRON EACH 1 $200.00 1 $200.00 

37 2501.503 24" RC PIPE CULVERT LF 88 $90.00 80 $7,200.00 

38 2501.503 36" RC PIPE CULVERT LF 8 $72.00 8 $576.00 

39 2501.503 12" CS PIPE CULVERT LF 34 $31.00 0 $0.00 

40 2501.503 15" CS PIPE CULVERT LF 1,258 $31.00 60 $1,860.00 

41 2504.602 CONNECT TO EXISTING WATER MAIN EACH 2 $2,200.00 2 $4,400.00 

42 2504.602 RELOCATE HYDRANT EACH 1 $1,600.00 1 $1,600.00 

43 2504.602 HYDRANT EACH 9 $7,300.00 8 $58,400.00 

44 2504.602 8" GATE VALVE AND BOX EACH 3 $3,000.00 1 $3,000.00 

45 2504.602 1" CURB STOP AND BOX EACH 1 $400 .00 1 $400.00 

46 2504.602 l" CORPORATION STOP EACH 1 $400.00 1 $400.00 

47 2504.603 1" TYPE K COPPER PIPE LF 54 $28.00 52 $1,456.00 

48 2504.603 HYDRANT RISER LF 10 $1,000.00 0 $0.00 

49 2504.603 6" WATERMAIN HOPE SDR·ll LF 30 $71.00 30 $2,130.00 

so 2504.603 6" WATERMAIN DUCTILE IRON CL-53 LF 49 $90.00 27 $2,430.00 

51 2504.603 8" WATERMAIN HOPE SDR-11 LF 1,289 $47.00 1100 $51,700.00 

52 2504.604 4" POLYSTYRENE INSULATION SY 67 $60.00 57 $3,420.00 

53 2506.502 ADJUST FRAME AND RING CASTING EACH 11 $400.00 0 $0.00 

54 2506.502 MANHOLE FRAME SEAL (EXTERNAL) EACH 11 $450.00 0 $0.00 

55 2511.507 RANDOM RIPRAP CLASS II CY 11 $68.00 0 $0 .00 



56 2531.504 6" CONCRETE DRIVEWAY PAVEMENT SY 12 $145.00 0 $0.00 

57 2540.602 MAIL BOX SUPPORT EACH 39 $125.00 0 $0.00 

58 2540.618 INSTALL BRICK PAVERS SF 300 $18.00 0 $0.00 

59 2563.601 TRAFFIC CONTROL LS 1 $2,000.00 0.8 $1,600.00 

60 2564.502 INSTALL SIGN PANEL TYPE C EACH 45 $125 .00 0 $0.00 

61 2564.518 SIGN PANELS TYPE C SF 54 $36.00 0 $0.00 

62 2573.501 EROSION CONTROL SUPERVISOR LS 1 $2,000.00 0 $0.00 

63 2573.501 STABILIZED CONSTRUCTION EXIT LS 2 $1,200.00 0 $0.00 

64 2573.502 CULVERT END CONTROLS EACH 45 $235.00 0 $0.00 

65 2573.503 SILT FENCE, TYPE HI LF 1,095 $3.05 1792 $5,465.60 

66 2573.503 SEDIMENT CONTROL LOG TYPE WOOD FIBER LF 410 $2.90 0 $0.00 

67 2574.507 COMMON TOPSOIL BORROW CY 1,400 $26.00 0 $0.00 

68 2574.508 FERTILIZER TYPE 1 POUND 254 $1.00 0 $0.00 

69 2575.504 EROSION CONTROL BLANKET CATEGORY 3N SY 6,121 $1.60 0 $0.00 

70 2575 .504 SODDING TYPE LAWN SY 12,366 $4 .80 0 $0.00 

71 2575.505 SEEDING ACRE 1.27 $90.00 0 $0.00 

72 2575.508 SEED MIXTURE 25-131 (UPLAND) POUND 96 $3.10 0 $0.00 

73 2575 .508 SEED MIXTURE 34-371 (WETLAND) POUND 57 $82.00 0 $0.00 

74 2582.503 4" SOLID LINE PAINT (WR) LF 10,496 $0.25 0 $0.00 

75 2582.503 4" DOUBLE SOLID LINE PAINT (WR) LF 5,248 $0.50 0 $0.00 

76 2582.503 24" SOLID LINE PAINT (WR) LF 30 $5.00 0 $0.00 

TOTAL AMOUNT EARNED $540,939 .98 



City Council Agenda Report  Resolution 2021-81 
July 6, 2021  Agenda Item: 12-F 
 
TO: Mayor & City Council 

 

 
FROM:  John Mulder, City Administrator  

DATE: June 23, 2021 
 

Meeting Date:  7/6/21 

SUBJECT: Old Hwy 2 Reclamation Agenda Item: 12-F Resolution 2021-81 
 

REQUESTED ACTION 
Approve Final Pay Application to Sinnott Contracting for the construction related to the Old Hwy 2 
Pavement Reclamation project and close out the project 

 
BACKGROUND 
Attached is the Final Pay Application for the work associated with the Old Hwy 2 project from May 29, 
2021 through June 29, 2021. NCE and Sinnott Contracting have reviewed the project progress thus far and 
agreed upon quantities of work completed. The contract price was increased from $44,000.00 to $54,579.00 
after change order #1. The amount of this Final Pay Application is $15,700.25. I recommend the city release 
the 5% retainage accrued for pay application #1. This retainage amount for pay application was $2,046.25.  

NCE has reviewed the quantities through construction inspection and discussions with Sinnott Contracting 
representatives. I recommend final payment in the amount of $15,700.25 be authorized at the July 6, 2021 
City Council Meeting. This amount includes payment for work completed after pay application #1 along 
with the 5% retainage from pay application #1. All work has been completed per the plans and 
specifications. I hereby recommend to the city that it accepts the project.  

 
SOURCE OF FUNDS (if applicable) 
475-431150-530 – Proj. 540 

 
ATTACHMENTS 
Final Pay Application 



Resolution No. 2021-81 
 
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING FINAL PAY REQUEST FOR OLD HWY 2 TO SINNOTT 
CONTRACTING, LLC IN THE AMOUNT OF $15,700.25 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Hermantown has contracted with Sinnott Contracting, LLC for 

construction of Old Hwy 2 (“Project”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, Sinnott Contracting, LLC has completed the agreed upon work in said Project; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Sinnott Contracting, LLC has submitted Final Pay Request in the amount of 
$15,700.25; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Northland Consulting Engineers LLP has approved such Final Pay Request; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the necessary documentation for the final pay request is on file and available for 
inspection. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Hermantown, 
Minnesota as follows: 
 
 1. Final Pay Request is hereby approved. 
 
 2. The City is hereby authorized and directed to pay to Sinnott Contracting, LLC the sum of 
$15,700.25 which is the amount represented on Final Pay Request. 
 
 Councilor ____ introduced the foregoing resolution and moved its adoption. 
 
 The motion for the adoption of such resolution was seconded by Councilor ____ and, upon a vote 
being taken thereon, the following voted in favor thereof: 
 
 Councilors  
 
and the following voted in opposition thereto: 
 
  
  
 WHEREUPON, such resolution has been duly passed and adopted July 6, 2021. 



 

102 S. 21st Avenue West, Suite One, Duluth, Minnesota 55806, voice (218) 727-5995, www:nce-engineers.com 

 
 

Northland 
Consulting Engineers L.L.P. 

 
Structural, Civil and Forensic Engineering Services 

June 29, 2021 
 
John Mulder 
City Administrator 
City of Hermantown 
5105 Maple Grove Road 
Hermantown MN 55811 

Re: Old Highway 2 Pavement Reclamation 
 
Dear John: 
 
Attached is the final pay application for the work associated with the Old Highway 2 Pavement Reclamation project 

from May 29, 2021 through June 29, 2021.  NCE and Sinnott Contracting, LLC have reviewed the project progress 

thus far and agreed upon quantities of work completed.  The contract price was increased from $44,000.00 to 

$54,579.00 after change order #1. The amount of this final pay application is $15,700.25.  I recommend the city 

release the 5% retainage accrued for pay application #1. This retainage amount for pay application #1 was $2,046.25. 

NCE has reviewed the quantities through construction inspection and discussions with Sinnott Contracting, LLC 

representatives.  I recommend final payment in the amount of $15,700.25 be authorized at the July 6, 2021 City 

Council Meeting. This amount includes payment for work completed after pay application #1 along with the 5% 

retainage from pay application #1. All work has been completed per the plans and specifications. I hereby recommend 

to the city that it accepts the project. 

 
Please contact me with any questions you may have. 
 
Thank you, 
 
 
 
 
David Bolf, P.E. – City Engineer 
Northland Consulting Engineers 
218-727-5995 
david@nce-duluth.com  
 
CC: Bonnie Engseth, City of Hermantown 
 Trent Prigge, P.E., Northland Consulting Engineers 
 Dan Wyman, Sinnott Contracting, LLC 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

EJCDC~ Contractor's Application for Payment No. Final 
-- Application 'May 29, 2021 through ENGINEERS JOINT CONTRACT Application Date : 6/29/2021 DOCUMENTS COMMITTEE June 29, 2021 ·------ Period: 

To City of Hermantown 
Project Old Highway 2 From (Contractor) : Via (Engineer) : 

(Owner): Pavement Reclamation Sinnott Contracting, LLC Northland Consulting Engineers, LLP 

Owner's Contract Number: Contractor's Project Number: Engineer Project Number: 

20-8017 

Application For Payment Application For Payment 

Change Order Summary Previous Pay Application Summary 

Approved Change Orders Approved Pay ApJlications 

Number Additions Deductions Number Date Amount 

I $10,579.00 I 6/ 1/2021 $38.878.75 

2 2 

3 3 
4 4 

TOTAL 8. TOTALS $38,878.75 

NET CHANGE BY CHANGE $10,579.00 
ORDER: 

1. ORIGINAL CONTRACT PRICE .............. ....... ................ ....... ....... ........... ......... ....................................................... . . s ______ 4~4,_oo_o_.o_o 
2. Net change by Change Orders ............. .................... .......... .................... ........ ................................... ... ....... ................. . s ______ 1~0,_s7_9_.o_o 
3. Current Contract Price (Line 1 ± 2) ............ ... .................. ........ .... ..... ....... ... ... ......... ............ ......... .......... ........ ........... .. . S ______ S_4..c.,5_7_9._0_0 

4. TOTAL COMPLETED AND STORED TO DATE 

See attached Pay Application Summary ... ... ........................ ... ........ .... .. ... .......... ................................................ ..... .... ... .. . s ______ s4~,_s7_9_.o_o 
5. RETAINAGE: 

a. 5°/o X Work Completed .... ................................ ...... .... ... .......... ..... . $ ----------
b. 5°/o X Stored Material.. .......... ........... .... ........... ......................... . . s ----------
c. Total Retainage (Line 5.a + Line 5.b) .... .... ........................... ....................... ..................... ................................ . $ -----------

6. AJ\10UNT ELIGIBLE TO DATE (Line 4 - Line 5.c) ...... .. ................... ....... ............. .......... ........ ................ .......... ..... . s ______ s~4,_s7_9_.o_o 
7. LESS PREVIOUS PAYMENTS (Line 8 ) .......................................... .. .... .............................. .................................... . s ______ J_s..c.,s_1_s_.1_s 
9. AMOUNT DUE THIS APPLICA TIO. 1 ... . ... ....................................... . ................................................................... . . .. S ______ I_S-'-17_0_0_.2_5 
IO. BALA 'CE TO FI ISH, PLUS RETAINAGE 

(Line 3 - 4 + Line 5.c above).............. ......... .... .......... ................ .. .......... ........... ......................................... ...................... $ _________ _ 

Payment of: s 15,700.25 
(Linc 9 or other - attach explanation of the other amount) 

Contractor's Certification 

The undersigned Contractor certifies, to the best of its knowledge, the 
following: 
(I) All previous progress payments received from Owner on account of 
Work done under the Contract have been applied on account to discharge 
Contractor's legitimate obligations incurred in connection with the Work 
covered by prior Applications for Payment; 
(2) Title to all Work, materials and equipment incorporated in said Work, 
or otherwise listed in or covered by this Application for Payment, will 
pass to Owner at time of payment free and clear of all Liens, security 
interests, and encumbrances (except such as are covered by a bond 
acceptable to Owner indemnifying Owner against any such Liens, security 

David Bolf, P.E. - City Engineer 

Approved by: 

John Mulder, City Administrator 

EJCDC® C-620 Contractor's Application for Payment 
<C) 20 I 3 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC. All rights reserved. 

Page I of I 

6/29/2021 

(Date) 

(Date) 



Completed

Cost

1 2021.501 MOBILIZATION LS 1 $1,570.72 1 $1,570.72 

2 2104.502 REMOVE SIGN TYPE C EACH 8 $50.00 8 $400.00 

3 2104.502 REMOVE MAIL BOX SUPPORT EACH 4 $50.00 4 $200.00 

4 2104.503 SAWING BITUMINOUS PAVEMENT (FULL DEPTH) LF 76 $4.25 76 $323.00 

5 2123.510 MOTOR GRADER HOUR 16 $290.00 16 $4,640.00 

6 2211.507 AGGREGATE BASE (CV) CLASS 5 CY 800 $25.00 800 $20,000.00 

7 2215.504 FULL DEPTH RECLAMATION SY 14,284 $0.92 14284 $13,141.28 

8 2540.602 MAIL BOX SUPPORT EACH 4 $275.00 4 $1,100.00 

9 2563.601 TRAFFIC CONTROL LS 1 $1,250.00 1 $1,250.00 

10 2564.502 INSTALL SIGN PANEL TYPE C EACH 8 $50.00 8 $400.00 

11 2564.518 SIGN PANELS TYPE C SF 13 $75.00 13 $975.00 

12 CO #1 CHANGE ORDER #1 LS 1 $10,579.00 1 $10,579.00 

$54,579.00

Completed 

Quantities

Final Pay Application - June 29, 2021

BASE BID

TOTAL AMOUNT EARNED

Item No.
Spec. 

Number
Item Description Unit of Measure

Contract Total 

Quantities

City of Hermantown
Old Highway 2 Pavement Reclamation

 Sinnot Unit         

Price 

Total Project

LESS PAY APPLICATION #1 $38,878.75

TOTAL FINAL PAY APPLICATION $15,700.25



City Council Agenda Report  Resolution 2021-82 
July 6, 2021  Agenda Item: 12-G 
 
TO: Mayor & City Council 

 

 
FROM:  John Mulder, City Administrator  

DATE: June 30, 2021 
 

Meeting Date:  7/6/21 

SUBJECT: Keene Creek Park Trail Agenda Item: 12-G Resolution 2021-82 
 

REQUESTED ACTION 
Approve Change Order #1 to Veit Companies for additional work on Keene Creek Trail Project 

 
BACKGROUND 
There are multiple pieces to this change order #1. There was muck encountered in (2) areas that NCE 
directed the contractor to remove the muck and backfill with select granular borrow. We also found an old 
septic tank and leach field that got abandoned. In discussions with SLC, they allowed us to place riprap in 
Keene Creek under their DNR permit. This effort saved $ by not having to install a fence. Lastly, we 
directed Veit to excavate and find a buried catch basin. 
 
The attached change order and compensating summary outlines the description and costs related to this 
change order. I recommending approval of change order #1 in the amount of $50,329.57 be authorized at 
the July 6, 2021 City Council Meeting.   
  

 
SOURCE OF FUNDS (if applicable) 
Park Dedication 
GMPTC Grant 

ATTACHMENTS 
Change Order #1 
 
 
 



Resolution No. 2021-82 
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING CHANGE ORDER NUMBER 1 FOR  
KEENE CREEK PARK TRAIL 

 
 WHEREAS, the City of Hermantown has contracted with Veit & Company, Inc. for construction 
of Keene Creek Park Trail (“Project:”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, Veit & Company, Inc. has submitted Change Order No. 1 for: 
  

This change order adjusts the contract quantities both up and down to reflect the actual 
constructed quantities. In addition, there were various extra items of work directed by the  
Engineer, summarized below: 
 
1. Muck Excavation sta: 6+88 – sta: 8+68 and sta: 18+00 – sta: 22+35 

i. Muck excavated and placed onsite = 424 CY @ $5.65/CY =     $2,395.00 
ii. Muck excavation exported = 775 CY @ $14.50/CY =             $11,237.50 

2. Abandon Septic Tank and Field = Lump Sum Cost =    $2,850.00 
3. Exploratory Dig and exposed catch basin = Lump Sum =   $   930.00 
4. Remove trees and RipRap in Keene Creek = Lump Sum =   $5,135.00 

            Subtotal      $22,548.10  
 

5. Adjusted Contract Quantities from Attached Summary =      Subtotal      $27,781.47 
 

       TOTAL    $50,329.57 
 
 WHEREAS, Veit & Company, Inc. has recommended such Change Order No. 1, and; 
 
 WHEREAS, Northland Consulting Engineers LLP has approved such Change Order No. 1. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Hermantown, 
Minnesota as follows: 
 

1. Change Order No. 1 is hereby approved. 
 
 Councilor ____ introduced the foregoing resolution and moved its adoption. 
 
 The motion for the adoption of such resolution was seconded by Councilor ____ and, upon a vote 
being taken thereon, the following voted in favor thereof: 
 
 Councilors  
 
and the following voted in opposition thereto: 
 
  
 
 WHEREUPON, such resolution has been duly passed and adopted July 6, 2021. 



EJCDC® C-941, Change Order.
Prepared and published 2013 by the Engineers Joint Contract Documents Committee.  

Page 1 of 1

Change Order No. 1

Date of Issuance: 6/29/21 Effective Date:
Owner: City of Hermantown Owner's Contract No.: 21-8001
Contractor: Veit Companies Contractor’s Project No.:
Engineer: Northland Consulting Engineers Engineer's Project No.: 21-8001
Project: Keene Creek Trail SSID:

The Contract is  modified as follows upon execution of this Compensating Change Order:

Description: This change order adjusts the contract quantities both up and down to reflect the actual constructed 
quantities.  In addition, there were various extra items of work directed by the engineer, summarized below.

1) Muck Excavation sta: 6+88 – sta: 8+68 and sta: 18+00 – sta: 22+35
i. Muck excavated and placed onsite = 424 CY @ $5.65/CY =  $ 2,395.60

ii. Muck excavation exported = 775 CY @ $14.50/CY = $11,237.50
2) Abandon Septic Tank and Field = Lump Sum Cost = $ 2,850.00
3) Exploratory Dig and exposed catch basin = Lump Sum = $    930.00
4) Remove trees and RipRap in Keene Creek = Lump Sum = $ 5,135.00

Subtotal = $22,548.10

5) Adjusted Contract Quantities from Attached Summary = Subtotal = $27,781.47

Total = $50,329.57

Attachments:  1) Compensating Summary

CHANGE IN CONTRACT PRICE CHANGE IN CONTRACT TIMES 

Original Contract Price:
$ 286,778.53
Increase from previously approved Change Orders: Extend Contract Time to 9/4/21

$ 0

Contract Price prior to this Change Order:

$ 286,778.53
Increase of this Change Order:
$ 50,329.57

Contract Price incorporating this Change Order:
$ 337,108.10

RECOMMENDED: ACCEPTED: ACCEPTED:
By: By: By:

Engineer Owner Contractor
Title: Title: Title:
Date: Date: Date:

david
Snapshot

david
Typewritten Text
City Engineer

david
Typewritten Text
6/29/21

ADammer
Typewritten Text
Project Manager6/29/2021



Compensating Change Order Justification
City of Hermantown

Keene Creek Trail 6/29/21

Item No. Spec.
Number Item Description Unit of Measure Contract Total

Quantities
Veit Unit
Price

Total Project
Completed
Quantities

Completed Quantity Compensating Comments
Cost Increase/Decrease Cost

BASE BID
1 2021.501 MOBILIZATION LS 1 $31,000.00 1 $31,000.00 0 $0.00

2 2101.501 CLEARING AND GRUBBING LS 1 $12,500.00 1 $12,500.00 0 $0.00
3 2101.524 CLEARING TREE 6 $300.00 6 $1,800.00 0 $0.00
4 2101.524 GRUBBING TREE 6 $150.00 6 $900.00 0 $0.00

5 2104.503 REMOVE METAL CULVERT L F 32 $18.00 32 $576.00 0 $0.00

6 2105.507 COMMON EXCAVATION (CV) C Y 1730 $16.00 1730 $27,680.00 0 $0.00
7 2105.504 GEOTEXTILE FABRIC TYPE 5 S Y 5200 $1.05 5200 $5,460.00 0 $0.00

8 2105.507 SELECT GRANULAR BORROW MOD 7% (CV) C Y 1200 $25.00 3000 $75,000.00 1800 $45,000.00 1,800 CY of Select in (2) muck areas

9 2211.507 AGGREGATE BASE (CV) CLASS 5 C Y 1300 $35.00 1600 $56,000.00 300 $10,500.00 250 CY of Class 5 in soft areas and bridge culverts

10 2301.504 CONCRETE PAVEMENT 6" S Y 67 $93.00 67 $6,231.00 0 $0.00

11 2360.509 TYPE SP 9.5 WEARING COURSE MIXTURE (3;B) TON 440 $100.00 440 $44,000.00 0 $0.00

12 2511.507 RANDOM RIPRAP CLASS II C Y 85 $50.00 85 $4,250.00 0 $0.00

13 2501.503 12" CP PIPE CULVERT L F 20 $24.00 45 $1,080.00 25 $600.00 NCE directed to add culvert in existing drainage course
14 2501.503 18" CP PIPE CULVERT L F 115 $36.00 115 $4,140.00 0 $0.00
15 2501.502 12" GS PIPE APRON EACH 2 $282.00 4 $1,128.00 2 $564.00 NCE directed to add culvert in existing drainage course
16 2501.502 18" GS PIPE APRON EACH 8 $354.00 8 $2,832.00 0 $0.00

17 2557.503 WIRE FENCE DESIGN SPECIAL VINYL COATED L F 294 $32.00 0 $0.00 -294 -$9,408.00 Worked under SLC's permit to place fill in Keene Creek - fence not needed
18 2557.502 VEHICULAR GATE EACH 2 $4,650.00 2 $9,300.00 0 $0.00

19 2563.601 TRAFFIC CONTROL LS 1 $1,650.00 1 $1,650.00 0 $0.00

20 2564.502 INSTALL SIGN TYPE C EACH 12 $285.00 12 $3,420.00 0 $0.00

21 2573.501 STABILIZED CONSTRUCTION EXIT LS 2 $1,180.00 2 $2,360.00 0 $0.00
22 2573.503 SILT FENCE; TYPE HI L F 4510 $3.75 4720 $17,700.00 210 $787.50 Extra silt fence placed to control sediment
23 2573.503 FILTER BERM TYPE 4 L F 965 $3.30 0 $0.00 -965 -$3,184.50 Item Not needed

24 2575.504 SODDING TYPE LAWN S Y 1300 $14.25 0 $0.00 -1300 -$18,525.00 NCE directed to hydroseed - no sod required
25 2575.505 SEEDING ACRE 0.71 $343.00 1.00 $343.00 0 $99.47 NCE directed to hydroseed area originally to be sodded
26 2575.508 SEED MIXTURE 36-311 (UPLAND) LB 54 $36.00 65 $2,340.00 11 $396.00 NCE directed to hydroseed area originally to be sodded
27 2575.508 SEED MIXTURE 34-361 (WETLAND) LB 6 $47.50 12 $570.00 6 $285.00 NCE directed to hydroseed area originally to be sodded
28 2575.605 MULCH MATERIAL TYPE 1 ACRE 0.71 $2,300.00 1.00 $2,300.00 0 $667.00 NCE directed to hydroseed area originally to be sodded
29 CO #1 SOIL CORRECTION, SEPTIC, EXPLORATORY DIG & RIP RAP LUMP SUM 1 $22,548.10 1.00 $22,548.10 0 $0.00

TOTAL AMOUNT EARNED Compensating Amount $27,781.47
$337,108.10



City Council Agenda Report  Resolution 2021-83 
July 6, 2021  Agenda Item: 12-H 
 
TO: Mayor & City Council 

 

 
FROM:  John Mulder, City Administrator  

DATE: June 23, 2021 
 

Meeting Date:  7/6/21 

SUBJECT: Trunk Sewer Spur & Munger 
Trail Spur – Sanitary Sewer 
Improvement District No. 448  

Agenda Item: 12-H Resolution 2021-83 

 
REQUESTED ACTION 
Approve Pay Application #12 to Utility Systems of America for the construction related to the Trunk 
Sewer Spur and Munger Trail Spur Project – Sanitary Sewer Improvement District No. 448. 

 
BACKGROUND 
Attached is Pay Application #12 for the work associated with the Hermantown Trunk Sewer Spur & 
Munger Trail Spur – Sanitary Sewer Improvement District No. 448 from Pay Application #11 through June 
28, 2021. NCE and Utility Systems of America, Inc. (USA) have reviewed the project progress thus far and 
agreed upon quantities of work completed. The amount of Pay Application #12 is $278,948.17. The City 
will hold a 5% retainage of the completed construction through the duration of the project. This retainage 
amount stands at $205,525.60 to date. 

NCE has reviewed the quantities through construction inspection and discussions with Utility Systems of 
America, Inc. representatives. I recommend payment in the amount of $278,948.17 be authorized at the 
July 6, 2021 City Council Meeting.     

 
SOURCE OF FUNDS (if applicable) 
Sales Tax 

 
ATTACHMENTS 
Pay Application #12 



Resolution No. 2021-83 
 
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING PAY REQUEST NUMBER 12 FOR SEWER IMPROVEMENT 
DISTRICT NO. 448 TO UTILITY SYSTEMS OF AMERICA, INC. IN THE AMOUNT OF 

$278,948.17 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Hermantown has contracted with Utility Systems of America, Inc. for 
construction of Sewer Improvement District No. 448 (“Project”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, Utility Systems of America, Inc. has performed a portion of the agreed upon work in 
said Project; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Utility Systems of America, Inc. has submitted Pay Request No. 12 in the amount of 
$278,948.17; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City will maintain an accumulated retainage as shown on the pay requests until 
the final work and documentation is completed; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Northland Consulting Engineers LLP has approved such Pay Request No. 12 
provided that $204,525.60 accumulated as retainage of 5% be withheld pending final acceptance of the 
Project by the City of Hermantown. 
 
 WHEREAS, the necessary documentation for the pay request is on file and available for 
inspection. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Hermantown, 
Minnesota as follows: 
 
 1. Pay Request No. 12 is hereby approved. 
 
 2. The City is hereby authorized and directed to pay to Utility Systems of America, Inc. the 
sum of $278,948.17 which is the amount represented on Pay Request No. 12. 
 
 Councilor _____ introduced the foregoing resolution and moved its adoption. 
 
 The motion for the adoption of such resolution was seconded by Councilor _____ and, upon a 
vote being taken thereon, the following voted in favor thereof: 
 
 Councilors 
 
and the following voted in opposition thereto: 
 
  
  
 WHEREUPON, such resolution has been duly passed and adopted July 6, 2021. 



 

102 S. 21st Avenue West, Suite One, Duluth, Minnesota 55806, voice (218) 727-5995, www:nce-engineers.com 

 

 

Northland 
Consulting Engineers L.L.P. 

 
Structural, Civil and Forensic Engineering Services 

June 29, 2021 

 

John Mulder 

City Administrator 

City of Hermantown 

5105 Maple Grove Road 

Hermantown MN 55811 

Re: Hermantown Trunk Sewer Spur & Munger Trail Spur – Sanitary Sewer Improvement District No. 448 

 

Dear John: 

 

Attached is Pay Application #12 for the work associated with the Hermantown Trunk Sewer Spur & Munger Trail 

Spur – Sanitary Sewer Improvement District No. 448 from Pay Application #11 through June 28, 2021.  NCE and 

Utility Systems of America, Inc. (USA) have reviewed the project progress thus far and agreed upon quantities of 

work completed.  The amount of Pay Application #12 is $278,948.17.  The City will hold a 5% retainage of the 

completed construction through the duration of the project.  This retainage amount stands at $204,525.60 to date. 

 

NCE has reviewed the quantities through construction inspection and discussions with Utility Systems of America, 

Inc. representatives.  I recommend payment in the amount of $278,948.17 be authorized at the July 6, 2021 City 

Council Meeting.   
 

Please contact me with any questions you may have. 

 

Thank you, 

 

 

 

 

David Bolf, P.E. – City Engineer 

Northland Consulting Engineers 

218-727-5995 

david@nce-duluth.com  

 

CC: Bonnie Engseth 

 Adam Zwak, P.E. 

 Jim Pucel, P.E. 



EJCDC~ Contractor's Aoolication for Payment No.I 12 

ENGINEERS JOINT CONTRACT Application 
May 29th, 2021 to June 28, 2021 Application Date: 6/29/2021 DOCUMENTS COMMITTEE 

Period: ----------
To From (Contractor): 

(Chmer): 
City of Henuantown 

Util ity Systems of America, Inc. 
Via (Engineer): Northland Consulting Engineers, LLP 

Project: Tnmk Sewer Spur & Munger Trail Contrac t: Tnmk Sewer Spur & Munger 
Spur - Sanitary Sewer Improvement Trail Spur - Sanitary Sewer 
District No. 448 Improvement District No. 448 

Owner's Contract No.: Contractor's Project No.: 

Sanitary Sewer Improvement District No. 448 

Ap11lication For Payment 

an2e r er C h O d S ururuary 

Approved Change Orders 

Number Additions Deductions 

I S15, IOO.OO 

2 $28,900.00 

3 $93,908.57 

4 Time Extension 

5 $38,975.00 

6 $4,500.00 

TOTALS $ 181 ,383.57 

NET CHANGE BY 
$181,383.57 

CHANGE ORDERS 

Ap11lication For Payment 

reVIOUS ay ,pp 1cahon umman• P P A r S 
Approved Pav Aoolicalions 

Number Date Amount 

I 4/6/2020 s 455,588.49 

2 5/4/2020 s 30,045.81 

3 6/312020 s 101 ,408.63 
4 7/6/2020 s 654,831.60 

5 8/312020 s 188,378.58 

6 912/2020 $ 573,269.10 

7 10/5/2020 $ 600,156.5 1 

8 11/2/2020 s 322,822.04 

9 12/6/2020 s 118,902.95 

10 1/13/2021 $ 432,032.60 

I I 6/7/202 1 s 129,601.89 

12 

13 

14 

8. TOTALS S3,607,038.20 

Contractor's Certification 

The w,dersigned Concractor certifies, to the besc of its knowledge, the following: 
( I) All previous progress payments received from O\.mcr on accoWlt of \Vork 
done tmder the Contract have been applied on accolll"lt to discharge Contractor's 
legitimate obligations incurrrd in connection ,,ith the Work col'ered by prior 
Applications for Payment~ 
(2) Title to all Work. materials and equipment incolJ>Orated in said Work, or 
otl1erwise listed in or covered by this Application for Payment, will pass to Owner 
at time of payment free and clear of aJI Liens, security interests, and encrnnbrances 
(except such as are covered by a bond acceptable to 0\\11er indemnifying Owner 
against any such Liens, security inlercst, or cnctunbrances)~ and 
(3) All tl1 Work covered by tl1is APP. ·cation for Payment is in accordance with 
the Contr I Documenls and is not e relive. 

Engineer's Project 
16-808 

No.: 

I. ORIGINAL CONTRACT PRICE ..................................... ...... ................... S S4,l09,784.JO 

2. N<t ch201t by Chan&• Ordtrs ................................................................... S SISl,383.57 

J, Currt nt Conlrart Pri<'t (Lint 1 :i 2) ......................................... .................. S S4,391,167,87 

4. TOTAL COMPLETED AND STORED TO DATE 

Ste au achtd Pay Applicalion Summ:.ry (Linr [) .................. ...... _ ................ S s.&,090,51 1.97 

S. RETAINACE: 

a. 5°/. X S4,090,5 I l.91 Work Com11l<1t d............. s _...;S;.:l;.;;0_.4,.:.5l;.:5"-.6'-'0'---

S1ortd ~Jat,rial ................ S ----- ---- ---
c. Toca! Rt1ru na1t (Llnt 5.• + Lint 5.b) .........•..................•... S Sl04,5l5.60 

6. AMOUNT ELIG IBLE TO DATE (Lint 4• Li11e 5.c) ............................... S Sl,885,986.17 

1. LESS PREVIOUS PA \ 'MENTS (Lin t 8 ) .......•..........•.......•.•....................• S SJ,607,038.20 

9. AMOUI\T DUE T HIS APPLICATION .... - ....• ......•................................• S Sl78,9~8.17 

10. BALANCE TO FINISH, PLUS RETAINACE 

(Lint]. 4 + Line 5., abo\"t) ............................• .. ....•...•.................. .. ............•. s __ s_s_o_s~,1_8_1.s_o __ 

Payment of: s ______ Sc_2_7-'-8"""9_48"-."""17'--------
(Line 9 or olher - attach explanation of the orher amounl) 

is recommended by: ~ ~ 6(29/2021 

~-~ (Date) 

EJCDC® C-620 Contraclor's Appl icalion for Paymem 
020 13 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC'. All rights reserved 

Page t of I 



•~· 
'::: .!:~. . ........... .. 

' . 
' " 
" " " " " " 
" " . 
" " ' " " " 

'"""' , .... , 
100l> 

"'-''" ...... ,., ... , 
10"51" , ... .,. 
:·:·~~ 
'"""' 

'7 »11507 OuRE<,,>.1eBASE ct...<SS 
,a 11 507 ORE<aA. eA5E ' 

,, 
" " 

" " " ., 

" ,, 
" 

tEPAVEM NT 

00 ... 4 PesPO WEAAl..a •EMlXT\JllE ,a 

50.~ ri~e::2.:~~IH<l~ ~~T~E ;1"'!::': 

,SI.S<l7 COAf!SE LTER ""~"E le 

'"·"'' 0...,._,_.,,"""1<FI« 
,.l.507 TJO\X;T"" E<CAVA CLASS 

12"c:,.'lFIPE,'J'RON 
""CASP1 e""R<>N 
l<CASFI"" VERT 
,s·C,,SPIF'!SClA_\>t!ll 

UN<! LY 
S1'!U('T [ROJWwE STRUCNSe '1E"'ON < 
n,;c;, EJ,SLVSI' 

"""""'-"fFW<CSE>,!. 
cc,<SfRUC1 .. ,Nsn,e 

:,_503 <""""60. SOUDUr<C """ LG 
2,003 4"&'<.lOLl<CPAltfl' 
>.Ml ,. SQUO r,e PAINT 

7' ,:l00.509 l'YPCSPa. YaEARJt/G SEMl<Tl,i!E H 

" " " 
1' 210< . .,. uEOTeXilLEF,., .. CTV e, " "°"·"'' E<CAVATI -co,m 
1' 2\06,S07 SE<.ECT EM IKMENT MOO 711 

a, 1001,00l 2'"RC P SewfA.DE QN,00& 

o, mu,,, '""'"'-'" "'""""""" 

" " " 
" 

"""°' '"'""'-" 
CER" •WATER W,JN srua _,,.oe.,or, ROA 

RO>·>JOiSOXCVCVERT 

• .,., .. f!CPw. •==•• """"' 
CER•l·l • ..._, .. """RJ """""'"",..s" 
CE~"· S"lOE M;:SfUB 

Pay Appllcatlon #12 .06/29121 
Trunk Sewer Spur & MungorTrall Spur 

San Harv Sewer District lmDroVem1nl District No. 448 

u,.,! c .. ~ .. t1ot,l USAu,• ... .. ,.. .. . .,,.,.. . ... 
'" , .. •1-100000 000 '" , .. 

" " " "~ "~ "~ 
" 

<SOOOOO 100 

11.00 

"" 
' . 
" .. 
'" "' "' .. , .. 

i~,;,, 
i;i,,. 
''" ,. 
' ' 

"" " " 

' .. 
" . . 

.. 
" '" ,W' .. 
,m 
•;;,' 
" "" 

-\.@00 

:.: .. .. .. , .. , .. .. 
'·" =· ,000.00 

'-'' ,. ... , .. 
11.00 .. 
=• .~-: .. .. 
.~:: 
'"" 
1'.00 
1'.00 
5'.00 

~: .. ... 
'17.00 
1".00 ,,.oo 

,oco.oo 
··~: ,. 

·:: ,. 
'" '·" =• .. 

0000 .. ,,. 
700.00 

-~ ~ ,. 
::: 

' . 

,. 
"·" ... 
"" ... 
"'" ,moo 

. . 

"·'° ... 
' . . 
" 
" " "' .. .. . 

... . 
" " 
,. 
'"' ... 

' .. 
' " ' . 

'"' 

' .. 
" . . 
,. 
'" " ,,_ ... 
'' '""' 
"" ... 
'" 

1',00 

" '" 

.. ... 
,rn 

' . 
" '" 
"' .. .. . 

'"-"" 
'" '!::· 
'"' '" .. 
'" ' .. 
" 

" " 

::: 
'·"' 

., 
'·'" ,., 
" ' . 

··'" 

' "°:,00 . . 

' " :g~ 
"" 

' A!> A1.0"<I ....._. <IROV! 

' ' 

1,000.00 
\.100 

"°"·"" ... 
=• 

""''-"" 
""'" ,,oo.oo 

''i):: 
"'·" ':::: 

,_000.00 -· 
1 :~~-: 

,., .. 
40,l,00 

''"""' 
1,00.00 

-· ·::: 
"J·::.: 
''" "'·" 
070000 

moo 
,0000 
,oo.oo . . 

'""·"" 

,.. 
uoo.oo ,,. 
•• ,.oo 

'-'""-"" 

·-::: 
"'"" '"~' ..00.00 

.. ,. 

"' 
,,., ... 

un 

.. , 
" :;: 
'" 

,.m 

'"' 

. . .. 
'" 

" ;;!, 
"" ,oo 
0 

';_':i 
'" ,,._. 
rn 

.. 
"" .. 

"OOll.00 
•200.00 

,., ..... 
•• m 

6:>tS.00 ·-· 1000000 

'"""·"" ,-. 
.. ,, 00 

1'000.00 

,.'°"·"" 
• . oo 

,,,,.,,00 

100.00 ·'"-'"' ,.,,.,oo 

.' ''.: .. ... ,.. 
' :·1.:: ,.,._.,. 

'"' . .... =· 

TRU.lt5!Wl!R•PURC0$1 I MUHOAATRM.OPURCOOT 

'"~'"" u,,...~,..~• 
COHTRACT BRl!AXOOWI< 

ORiGOW-TRu••-<OHTIW:l-UNl u~,, .... ~• 
TOTAO.O,IG(NA1.C0•1,w;,;l»UNl 

CU"""'<OH'IRACfAYOUH, 

""·"')' .. ~ ... , ..... 
M)h,117~7 

P""11DUS MATERIALS $lORECWO• HAND 

.... eoHSTRue .. O(U.oA,.'1o) I 

,"1>0ED MA1"RIAI.$ STORUIO" HAND 

0. TOfAL C0MPLUE0 & OTO .. D TO OAT! 
........ ,. ............. 0 
. '<R!T ...... OE 1.h,E ••'<l 
,LU$PREVlOI.ISP~VA .. S 

.. 
'·" 

... ... 
: 
"' 
., 
= , .. . 
""' "' ';',':: ·'" , .. , .. 

... 
" 

., .. 
"" . . 
~: 
., ... 
'"' ,. 
' ' .,,. 

. ... 
" . . 

,m 
"·' ,., 
"' "' 

,. .. , .. 
"·" '·" 

. -· "-""·"" 

"'"""·"" '"""·"" 

'"'·"" =• 
'" ,000.00 

''"'"' ,•::: 
..... 00 

11,00000 

"'""' ·-· =·· 1'000,00 

'"'"·"" ,03200 

"''""'°" ''"'"" '"'°"" 
"""·00 

7000.00 

'"""·"" ''-'"""" »»oOO 

., ... oo 

"'~:!i: 
'40000.0IJ 
.. oo.oo 
,000.00 ..u, 
6'00.00 

,moo 
100.00 -· .... ·-· 

'-""'-"" 
=• 

"""'"" ,.moo 
~0,0.00 

.~::-gg 
'~°''-" \.005.C<I 

'"'·"' .,,:,soo 
"""'' 

,0000 

,,0000 

'""·"' ,,oo,00 

TDTALAMOUMTEAl\"!O .. ~ .. ~"~' 
.... .., ... 

1, 1, ......... 

I 1,.0,..,,u, 
'°'·"'·" ... ,~,, ... 

PAY APPLICATION 1112jLh, •·•·•I Is 27894a,17j 

""'"" 


	AGENDA COVER SHEET - July 6 Hermantown City Council Meeting - Remote Instructions  In-Person Expectations
	2021-07-06 agenda
	2021-07-06 Correspondence
	Correspondence Sheet
	Correspondence
	21-79
	21-92
	21-93
	21-94
	21-100
	21-101
	21-102
	21-103
	21-104
	21-105

	Presentation - CIP
	2021-07-06 Capital Improvement Plan
	CIP By Dept
	CIP by Funding Source

	Presentation - PUD Rpt
	2021-07-06 ARDC - PUD Study
	Hermantown PUD Report Council  Review July 06
	Executive Summary
	Introduction
	Planning Context
	Recommendations
	Appendix


	2021-06-21 minutes
	2021-76 - Golden Oaks
	2021-07-06 Golden Oaks - SUP
	2021-76 Golden Oaks Permitting Assignment
	Golden Oaks Partial Release SUP
	Golden Oaks Amendment to Special Use Permit (SUP)
	Golden Oaks Consent to Assignment

	2021-77 - Shaine Stokke Dev Agmt - Jenny Farms
	2021-07-06 Jenny Farms-Stokke Dev Agmt
	2021-77 Jenny Farms-Stokke Dev Agmt
	Shaine Stokke Dev Agmt - Jenny Farms

	2021-78 - Zierden PUD
	2021-07-06 Keene Creek Subdivision PUD
	2021-78 Keene Creek Trail Development Preliminary PUD
	RESOLUTION APPROVING PRELIMINARY PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT FOR THE KEENE CREEK TRAIL SUBDIVISION DEVELOPMENT

	Zierden PUD Location Map
	Zierden PUD Email
	Zierden PUD Overall Site Plan
	Zierden PUD Colored Plat Map
	Zierden PUD Colored Valleyview Plat Map
	Zierden PUD Road Layout
	Zierden PUD Twinhome Example

	2021-79 - Keene Creek Plat
	2021-07-06 Keene Creek Subdivision Pre Plat
	2021-79 Keene Creek Trail Subdivision Pre Plat
	Keene Creek Plat Location Map
	Keene Creek Overall Site Plan
	Keene Creek Plat 6-29-2021 Updated Plat
	Keene Creek Plat Colored Valleyview Plat Map
	Keene Creeek Plat Road Layout

	2021-80 - Lav Jct Pay App #3
	2021-07-06 Pay App #3 Lav Jct
	2021-80 Pay Request  #3- Lav Jct
	Lavaque Jct Pay App #3

	2021-81 - Old Hwy 2 Final Pay App
	2021-07-06 Old Hwy 2 Final Pay App
	2021-81 Final Pay Request - Old Hwy 2
	Old Hwy 2 Final Pay Estimate

	2021-82 - Keene Creek Trail Change Order #1
	2021-07-06 Keene Creek Trail Chg Ord #1
	2021-82 Change Order #1 - Keene Creek Trail
	Keene Creek Trail Change Order #1

	2021-83 - Trunk Sewer Pay App #12
	2021-07-06 Trunk Sewer Pay App #12
	2021-83 Trunk Sewer Pay App #12
	Trunk Sewer Pay Application #12 Letter
	Trunk Sewer Pay App #12

	ADPB389.tmp
	June302021

	2021-07-06 Correspondence.pdf
	Correspondence Sheet
	Correspondence
	21-79
	21-92
	21-93
	21-94
	21-100
	21-101
	21-102
	21-103
	21-104
	21-105
	21-106




